
 

 

 

 

 
 

 TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

450 S. Parish, Johnstown, CO  
Monday, October 03, 2022 at 7:00 PM  

  

MISSION STATEMENT: Enhancing the quality of life of our residents, businesses, and visitors 

through community focused leadership. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pledge of Allegiance 

ROLL CALL 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

1. October Business of the Month 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the audience are invited to speak at the Council meeting.  Public Comment is reserved for 

citizen comments on items not contained on the printed agenda.  Citizen comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes per speaker. When several people wish to speak on the same position on a given item, they are 

requested to select a spokesperson to state that position. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The Consent Agenda is a group of routine matters to be acted on with a single motion and vote.  Council 

or staff may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda for 

discussion. 

2. August 29, 2022 Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 

3. September 7, 2022 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes  

4. Water and Sewer Service Agreement - Evergreen Flex Industrial, with Triple Covid 

Confidence, LLC 

5. Water and Sewer Service Agreement - Ledge Rock Center Commercial Phase I, with Ledge 

Rock Center, LLC 

6. Water and Sewer Service Agreement - Lockard Gateway Storage (355 Mountain View Dr.), 

with Lockard Development Group, Inc. 

7. August 2022 Financial Statements and Sales Tax Report 

8. Resolution 2022-39 Acknowledging Receipt of the Fiscal Year 2023 Preliminary Budget 

9. September 2022 List of Bills 

 

1



 

 

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

10. Town Manager's Report 

TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 

OLD BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

11. Amendment to Water Treatment Plant Design Agreement with Burns & McDonnell 

12. Resolution No. 2022-42: Resolution Terminating A Local Disaster Emergency 

13. Resolution 2022-43: Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute All Documents to Effectuate 

the Sale of the Real Property, Known as Tract A and Lots 2-5, West Ledge Rock Center 

Subdivision Filing No. 1 

PUBLIC HEARING 

14. Resolution 2022-40 Approving an Amendment to the 2534 P.U.D. Design Guidelines Land Use 

Plan on 2.1 Acres, to allow Multifamily 

15. Resolution 2022-41 Approving the Final Subdivision Plat for Johnstown Farms Filing No. 2 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

16. Informational items  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

17. An executive session to discuss matters subject to negotiations and to instruct negotiators 

pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e) regarding an economic development project. 

ADJOURN 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who need accommodation in order to attend 

or participate in this meeting should contact Town Hall at (970) 587-4664 within 48 hours prior to the 

meeting in order to request such assistance. 

 

2



 
 TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING  

450 S. Parish, Johnstown, CO  
Monday, August 29, 2022 at 6:00 PM  

  

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Gary Lebsack called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

ROLL CALL 

Present:  

Mayor Lebsack 

Councilmember Berg 

Councilmember Mellon 

Councilmember Young 

Councilmember Dominguez 

Absent:   

Councilmember Molinar  

Councilmember Morris  

AGENDA APPROVAL 

It was moved by Councilmember Mellon and seconded by Councilmember Berg to approve the agenda.  

The motion was carried with a unanimous vote.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment.  

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Second Reading: Ordinance 2022–237. An Ordinance Amending The Town Of Johnstown Municipal 

Code Concerning Town Sales Taxes To Provide A Credit Against Sales Tax If A Certain Public 

Improvements Fee Has Been Paid In Connection With The Development Known As Ledge Rock 

Center; Repealing And Replacing Ordinance No. 2022-231 

It was moved by Councilmember Mellon and seconded by Councilmember Young to accept the consent agenda. 

The motion carried.   

NEW BUSINESS 

2. Resolution 2022-38: A Purchase & Sale Agreement Between The Town of Johnstown and Anadarko 

E&P Onshore LLC 

Sarah Crosthwaite, Economic Development Manager, noted the Town is looking to purchase this 

property regarding the commercial development of Ledge Rock. Ms. Crosthwaite stated if this 

agreement was approved there would be 60-day contingency period to allow items such as onsite 

inspections.  

3

Item #2.



A motion was made by Councilmember Berg to approve Ordinance 2022-38.  

Councilmember Mellon provided the second, and the motion was approved.  

3. Second Amended And Restated Development And Reimbursement Agreement Ledge Rock Center 

Commercial Johnstown, Colorado  

Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney, presented the substantive agreement relating to the Ledge Rock project. 

Ms. Rocklin noted there were several items in the contract to finalize and asked Council to approve the 

agreement subject to minor amendments. Elisabeth Cortese, Special Counsel, spoke to the substance of 

the agreement speaking to the requirements of the developer.  

Councilmember Mellon moved to approve the Second Amended and Restated Development and 

Reimbursement Agreement, Ledge Rock Center Commercial, Johnstown, Colorado, as may be amended 

by the Town Manager and Town Attorney, without modifying the substance, and authorize the Mayor to 

execute the final form of agreement 

Councilmember Young seconded and the motion passed. 

4. Water and Sewer Service Agreement - Ledge Rock Center Multi-Family South 

Matt LeCerf, Town Manager, noted this agreement area is commonly referred to as Lots A and Tracts F 

of the East Ledge Rock Subdivision Filing No. 2. 

Councilmember Beg moved to approve the Water and Sewer Service Agreement for Ledge Rock Center 

Multi-Family South  

Councilmember Mellon provided the second and the motion passed.   

5. Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Purchase and Sale Of Real Property For Ledge Rock 

Center Commercial  

Mr. LeCerf reviewed the proposed amendment to the purchase and sale agreement will convey 7.835 

acres Tracts A, Lots 2-5 of the attached document to the packet. The remaining property would remain 

the Town of Johnstown for use, which the Towns hopes will be in Phase Two.  

Councilmember Mellon moved to approve the Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Purchase 

and Sale of Real Property For Ledge Rock Center Commercial.  

Councilmember Young provided the second and the motion passed.  

6. Developer Contribution Agreement with attached Covenants Securing Funding Commitment 

Ms. Rocklin noted this agreement sets forth the developers agreement to provide the developer short fall 

funding advance to the developer fund account.  

Councilmember Berg moved to approve the Developer Contribution Agreement, as may be amended by 

the Town Manager and Town Attorney, without modifying the substance, and authorize the Mayor to 

sign the final form of agreement and the Covenants Securing Funding Commitment. 

Councilmember Mellon provided the second and the motion passed.  

7. Amended And Restated Escrow Agreement (2022 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds Ledge Rock 

Center Commercial Metropolitan District) 

Ms. Rocklin presented to Council this agreement which relates to the first fund issuance, noting it had 

been amended to take into account the new circumstances.  

Councilmember Young moved to approve the Amended and Restated Escrow Agreement for Ledge Rock 

Center Commercial, authorize the Town Manager and Town Attorney to revise the Amended and 

Restated Escrow Agreement, if warranted, after the issuance of bonds by the Ledge Rock Center 

Commercial Metropolitan District to modify the allocation of bond proceeds between the Bond 

Proceeds Account and Developer Funds Account, and thereafter authorize the Mayor to execute the 

Amended and Restated Escrow Agreement. 

4

Item #2.



Councilmember Mellon provided the second and the motion passed.  

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Councilmember Dominquez noted recent events in Greeley. 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

Mayor Lebsack also noted events in Greeley.  

ADJOURN 

 

Mayor Lebsack adjourned the August 29, 2022 Special Meeting at 6:39 pm. 

__________________________ 

Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

 

__________________________ 

Hannah Hill, Town Clerk 

5

Item #2.



 
 TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

450 S. Parish, Johnstown, CO  
Wednesday, September 07, 2022 at 7:00 PM  

  

MISSION STATEMENT: Enhancing the quality of life of our residents, businesses, and visitors 

through community focused leadership. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Gary Lebsack called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

ROLL CALL 

Present:  

Mayor Lebsack 

Councilmember Berg 

Councilmember Dominguez 

Councilmember Mellon 

Councilmember Molinar 

Councilmember Morris 

Councilmember Young 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 It was moved by Councilmember Berg and seconded by Councilmember Young to approve the agenda.  

The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

1. Proclamation - Suicide Awareness and Prevention Month.  

Allyce Torres, Program Director of North Range's Suicide Education and Support Services Program read the 

proclamation declaring September Suicide Awareness and Prevention Month.  

2. Business of the Month Presentation  

Sarah Crosthwaite, Economic Development Manager, presented September Business of the month to Nick 

Jackson of Trek Bicycle.  

3. CDOT Segment 6 Update and Closure Information –  

Abra Geissler, P.E. from Colorado Department of Transportation presented updates and upcoming closures of I-

25 to Town Council.  

 

6

Item #3.



 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

There was no public comment.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

4. August 15, 2022 Minutes 

5. August 19, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 

6. Water and Sewer Service Agreement - Thompson River Ranch East Clubhouse & Pool, with Clayton 

Properties Group II, Inc. 

7. Additional August 2022 List of Bills 

8. Agreement for Inclusion of Property between the Town of Johnstown and the Ledge Rock Center 

Commercial Metropolitan District 

 

It was moved by Councilmember Mellon and seconded by Councilmember Molinar to adopt the consent 

agenda  

The motion passed.  

 

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

9. Town Manager's Report 

Matt LeCerf, Town Manager, presented the report, and reminded Council of September 12th, 2022 Work 

Session, and that the September 19th Regular meeting would be cancelled. September 26th was noted to be a 

Work Session if needed.  

 

TOWN ATTORNEY REPORT 

The Town Attorney did not have a report.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

10. Request for approval of a contract with Colorado Paving Inc. for the Charlotte Street Improvement 

Project 

Troy White, Public Works Manager, noted that this item has been presented to Council previously and the 

contract is not ready to be signed. Council asked for the start date of the project, Mr. White noted work 

should begin around mid-October.  

Councilmember Mellon moved and Councilmember Morris seconded to approve a contract with Colorado 

Paving Inc. in an amount not to exceed $4,824,043 for construction of the Charlotte Street Improvement 

Project and authorize the Town Manager to sign the contract  

 The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

7

Item #3.



 

11. Design Contract with Sanderson Stewart for Colorado Boulevard 

Mr. White noted this is for the design of Colorado Blvd. for the Purvis Development. Sanderson Stewart is 

familiar with the utilities and base survey for the roadway in the area which would allow for a better plan 

integration and faster project delivery.  

Councilmember Berg moved and Councilmember Mellon provided the second to approve a contract with 

Sanderson Stewart in an amount not to exceed $89,235 for design of approximately 1900 lineal feet of 

Colorado Blvd.  

The motion passed with all in favor.  

 

12. RFP Award for Raw Water Transmission Project 

Doug Gossett, The Town’s Civil Engineer II, presented noting the Town is undergoing improvements to its 

utilities. The Town is currently under design to increase the capacity of the water treatment plant from 6.2 

million gallons per day to 12 million gallons per day. In order to supply the raw water needed to the new 

treatment plant, the existing 11-mile, 16-inch raw water pipeline, from Lone Tree Reservoir to the water 

treatment plant and the existing pump station at Lone Tree Reservoir needs to be expanded to increase 

capacity. Mr. Gossett noted staff recommended asking for 20% contingency on this project.   

Councilmember Young moved, with Councilmember Morris providing the second, to approve awarding the 

design services to Civil Resources, LLC as presented for a total not to exceed $652,000 with access to a 20% 

contingency for additional design services with authorization from the Town Manager  

The motion passed with all in favor.  

 

COUNCIL REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Councilmember Morris noted traffic concerns and speeding in Town.  

Councilmember Young reported on RE5J Education Foundation is hosting a golf tournament, and the Historical 

Society is holding the annual Quilt & Craft Fair at the YMCA.  

Councilmember Berg noted veteran’s memorial at 402 and I-25 is on track for dedication before Veteran’s Day.  

 

MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

Mayor Lebsack noted the town sponsors the upcoming YMCA Gala, and upcoming 4th grade visits.  

 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

13. Informational items were included in the packet.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

14. An executive session under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) to the Request for Proposal regarding a 

Prosecuting Attorney for Municipal Court 

 

8

Item #3.



 

Councilmember Berg moved, Councilmember Young seconded, to adjourn into an executive session under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) regarding the Request for Proposal regarding a Prosecuting Attorney for 

Municipal Court  

The motion passed with all in favor.  

Town Council Moved into executive session at 8:06 PM, and reconvened at 8:16 PM.  

Mayor Lebsack noted Council only discussed what was moved to discuss and no action was taken.  

  

ADJOURN 

Mayor Lebsack adjourned the September 7, 2022 Regular Council Meeting at 8:17 PM.  

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who need accommodation in order to attend 

or participate in this meeting should contact Town Hall at (970) 587-4664 within 48 hours prior to the meeting 

in order to request such assistance. 

 

9

Item #3.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Water & Sewer Service Agreement – Evergreen Flex Industrial 

(5002 Marketplace Dr.), with Triple Covid Confidence, LLC 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Water & Sewer Service Agreement 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Kim Meyer, Planning and Development Director 

 

    

ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

 

The Developer, Triple Covid Confidence, LLC, has received administrative approval for the 

Evergreen Flex Industrial Site Development Plan, including a 39k square-foot light industrial, flex 

building in the PUD-JC zone. 

 

The annual in-building water demand is 

estimated at 2.63 acre-feet.  The annual 

permanent irrigation water demand is 

estimated at 0.37 acre-feet; with 0.69 

acre-feet for temporary irrigation  

The Developer may receive credit for the 

0.69 AF once the temporary irrigation 

system has been permanently removed 

or otherwise disabled, to the satisfaction 

of the Town.   

The Developer has obtained 4.0 AF (1/2 share) of Home Supply water from the existing 

VMJ/Taylor Family water bank created in 2019. Remaining surplus balance in that VMJ water 

bank will be 30.04 acre-feet after this allocation, per Exhibit B. 

 

The surplus credit for Triple Covid Confidence, LLC, from that 4.0 AF allocation equals 0.31 

AF; potentially increasing to 1.0 AF with the removal of the temporary irrigation system. That 

credit may be applied upon a future audit of water use, or, if not needed, may be transferred to 

another development within Town limits.  

Development 

Component 

Demand 

(AF/YR) 

Consumption 

(AF/YR) 

In-building 2.63 0.13 

Perm Irrigation 0.37 .31 

Temp Irrigation 0.69 0.59 

Total Potable 3.69 1.03 

10

Item #4.



 

The Community That Cares 
https://johnstown.colorado.gov/  

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The agreement was prepared by the Town Attorney. 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE :  

 

N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

Approve the Water & Sewer Service Agreement for Evergreen Flex Industrial, with Triple Covid 

Confidence, LLC. 

 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

11

Item #4.

https://johnstown.colorado.gov/


   

 

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 
___ day of _______________ 2022, by and between TRIPLE COVID CONFIDENCE, LLC, 
a Colorado limited liability company (“Developer”), and THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, a 
Colorado municipal corporation (“Town”), collectively sometimes referred to as the “Parties” 
and singularly as “Party.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, Developer owns an interest in land located in Lot 3, replat of Lot 1, replat of 
Lot 3 of the amended plat of the Great Colorado Marketplace Subdivision, Town of Johnstown 
described more particularly on Exhibit “A” (“Subject Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property has been annexed to the Town; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the Subject Property is being developed by Developer as “Evergreen Flex 
Industrial” (DEV21-0003), a 39,125 ft2 flex-style commercial building anticipated to have 3 to 
5 tenants, with 8,676 ft2 (0.19 acre) of permanent irrigated landscape and 59,850 ft2 (1.37 acre) 
of temporary irrigated landscape (the “Temporary Irrigation Area”) (together, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer and the Town desire to set forth their agreement concerning 
water rights dedication, preliminary projections of water and sewer demand and a current 
commitment by the Town for water and sewer service for the Project.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1.  Water and Sewer Demand Studies.  In compliance with the Town Water Rights 
Dedication Ordinance (“Ordinance”), Developer has submitted to the Town a preliminary water 
and sewer demand analysis for the Project.  Said analysis was received by the Town and is on 
file with the Town and, as modified by the Town’s Water Engineer by a revised memorandum 
dated August 26, 2021, is hereby accepted by the Town.  The analysis sets forth the projected 
water and sewer demands for the Project as follows: 

   
Development Component Demand 

(AF/YR) 
Consumption (AF/YR) 

In-building 2.63 0.13 
Permanent Landscape Irrigation  0.37 0.31 
Temporary Landscape Irrigation 0.69 0.59 

Total 3.69 1.03 
 

 
 2. Water Rights Dedication and Credits.  Pursuant to that certain Water Service 
Agreement executed by and among the Town, VMJ Properties, LLC, a Colorado limited liability 

12

Item #4.



 

 2

company, and Johnson-Taylor Family Properties, LLLP, a Colorado limited liability limited 
partnership (collectively, “VMJ”), dated September 16, 2019, and recorded at reception 
#20190057364 in the Larimer County Clerk and Recorder’s office, VMJ has a surplus raw water 
credit with the Town in the amount of 34.04 acre-feet.  As evidenced by the Raw Water Credit 
Allocation Acknowledgment, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit B, 
VMJ has sold to Developer, and otherwise authorized Developer to use, one-half (1/2) share of 
the Consolidated Home Supply Ditch and Reservoir Company, representing 4.0 acre-feet, to 
satisfy the raw water demands of the Project.  
 

3.  Temporary Irrigation Area.  Of the 3.69 acre-feet of raw water dedicated to the 
Town, .69 acre-feet will be used for temporary irrigation.  When the landscaping associated with 
the Temporary Irrigation Area is established to Developer’s satisfaction, Developer shall 
permanently disable the irrigation system(s) used to irrigate the Temporary Irrigation Area and 
provide written notice to the Town of such act.  Upon written notice from the Town that the 
Town has accepted the permanent disabling of the temporary irrigation system, Developer may, 
subject to written consent of the Town in a subsequent agreement(s), utilize the .69 acre-feet to 
offset increased demands, if any, which are not currently projected for the Project or assign the 
.69 acre-feet to another project or development within the Town’s boundaries.  

 
4. Surplus dedication credit.  The dedication of the one-half (1/2) share of the 

Consolidated Home Supply Ditch and Reservoir Company described in Paragraph 2, above, will 
provide to Developer raw water credits in excess of the water demand projected for the Project.  
As a result of said dedication, Developer will have a surplus dedication credit with the Town of 
0.31 acre-feet.  The credit is calculated as follows: 

 
Dedication Credit:                  4.00 acre-feet 
    
LESS estimated demand:             3.69 acre-feet 
 
Net current surplus credit:       0.31 acre-feet 
 

 
At such time as Developer permanently removes the irrigation system serving the Temporary 
Irrigation Area, provides written proof of such removal to the Town and obtains the Town’s 
written acceptance, as provided in Paragraph 3 above, the surplus dedication credit will increase 
to 1.0 acre-feet.   
 

5. Commitment to serve.  Subject to Developer's performance of all the covenants 
contained herein and payment of all required fees, the Town commits to provide to the Project up 
to 2.63 acre-feet per year of water supply for residential in-building use together with the 
corresponding sewer service, up to 0.37 acre-feet per year for permanent irrigation, and up to 
0.69 acre-feet per year for temporary irrigation to establish permanent vegetation, as described 
above. 

 
6. Future review of water usage and dedication requirements.  In accordance 

with the Ordinance, the Town reserves the right to review actual water usage within the Project 

13

Item #4.



 

 3

at a point in time after water usage has been established to confirm the adequacy of the water 
demand projections made by the Developer, and to require additional water rights dedication 
and/or cash-in-lieu payments, if necessary, based on actual water usage. 

 
7. Payment of Water Court Transfer fees.  Upon execution of this Agreement, 

Developer shall pay to the Town the sum of One thousand one hundred seven Dollars 
($1,107.00) as payment of the water court transfer fees required by the Ordinance.  This payment 
is for the dedication of 3.69 acre-feet per year of estimated water demand (7.38 SFE) for the 
Project.  Pursuant to Paragraph 6, above, if future review requires additional dedication of water, 
additional water court transfer fees will be required at the time of dedication.   

 
8. Notices.  All notices, demands, or other documents required or desired to be 

given, made or sent to either Party under this Agreement shall be made in writing, shall be 
deemed effective upon receipt, and shall be personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid, 
certified mail, return receipt requested, as follows: 

 
TO DEVELOPER: 
 
Curt Brinker 
Triple COVID Confidence, LLC 
206 E 4th St., Suite 210 
Loveland, CO 80537 
 
 

TO THE TOWN: 
 
Town of Johnstown  
c/o Town Clerk  
P.O. Box 609  
450 S Parish Ave. 
Johnstown, CO 80534 
 
WITH A COPY TO  
THE TOWN ATTORNEYS: 
 
Avi Rocklin, Esq. 
Johnstown Town Attorney 
1437 N. Denver Avenue, #330 
Loveland, CO 80538 
 
Peter J. Ampe 
Hill & Robbins, P.C. 
1160 Lincoln St., Suite 2720 
Denver, CO  80264 
 

The addresses for notices may be changed by written notice given to the other Party in the 
manner provided above. 
 

9. Default.  In the event of default by either Party hereunder, the non-defaulting 
Party shall notify the defaulting Party in writing of such default(s), specifying the nature and 
extent thereof.  If such default is not cured within thirty (30) days, the non-defaulting Party shall 
be entitled to such remedies as are provided by law, including the Town's ordinances. 

10. Successors and assigns.  The benefits and burdens of this Agreement shall 
respectively inure to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto.  This 

14

Item #4.



 

 4

agreement shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the other Party, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

11. Amendment or modification.  No amendment or modification of this Agreement 
shall be of any force or effect unless in writing and executed by the Parties hereto with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 
 

12. Attorney's fees and costs.  If any judicial proceedings may hereafter be brought 
by the Town to enforce any of the provisions hereof against Developer, including an action for 
specific performance and/or damages, the Town, if the prevailing party, shall be entitled to 
recover the costs of such proceedings, including reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable expert 
witness fees. 
 

13. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by 
either Party shall not constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by said Party, 
concerning either the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

14. Headings for convenience only.  Paragraph headings and titles contained herein 
are intended for convenience and reference only and are not intended to define, limit, or describe 
the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 
 

15. Non severability.  Each paragraph of this Agreement is intertwined with the 
others and is not severable unless by mutual consent of the Parties hereto. 
 

16. Choice of laws and venue.  This agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
Parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.  Venue for any legal action 
shall be in the County of Weld, State of Colorado. 
 

17. Entire agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties related to the subject matter hereof and any prior agreements pertaining thereto whether 
oral or written have been merged or integrated into this Agreement. 
 

18. No Presumption. Each Party acknowledges that it has carefully read and 
reviewed the terms of this Agreement. Each Party acknowledges that the entry into and 
execution of this Agreement is of its own free and voluntary act and deed, without compulsion. 
Each Party acknowledges that it has obtained, or has had the opportunity to obtain, the advice of 
legal counsel of its own choosing in connection with the negotiation and execution of this 
Agreement and with respect to all matters set forth herein. The Parties agree that this Agreement 
reflects the joint drafting efforts of all Parties and in the event of any dispute, disagreement or 
controversy arising from this agreement, the Parties shall be considered joint authors and no 
provision shall be interpreted against any Party because of authorship. 

 
19. Recordation.  This Agreement will be recorded by the Town at Developer’s 

expense in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Larimer County, Colorado, shall run with the 
Subject Property, will be binding upon the Parties hereto and the permitted successors and 

15

Item #4.



 

 5

assigns of the Developer and will constitute notice of this Agreement to all persons or entities not 
parties hereto. 

 
*IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year 

first above written. 

 

Signatures follow.  
  

16

Item #4.



17

Item #4.



 

 7

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, 
a municipal corporation 

 

By: _______________________________ 
 Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ______________________________ 
 Hannah Hill, Town Clerk 
  

18

Item #4.



 

 8

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
LOT 3, IN REPLAT OF LOT 1, REPLAT OF LOT 3, OF THE AMENDED PLAT OF GREAT 
COLORADO MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION, TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COUNTY OF 
LARIMER, STATE OF COLORADO 
 
ACCORDING TO PLAT RECORDED OCTOBER 3,2014 AT RECEPTION NO. 20140056818 

19

Item #4.



20

Item #4.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Water & Sewer Service Agreement – Ledge Rock Center 

Commercial Phase I (In-Building), with Ledge Rock Center, LLC 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Water & Sewer Service Agreement 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Kim Meyer, Planning and Development Director 

 

    

ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

 

The Developer, Ledge Rock Center, LLC, has received approvals for the Ledge Rock Center 

Outline Development Plan, and is in development review for several associated development 

projects, which include approximately 850,000 SF of commercial uses at build out. For 

consideration is a Water and Sewer Service Agreement between the Town and the Developer for 

Phase I of the project, which will include up to 385,000 SF on approximately 48 acres. 

 

Due to the status of this commercial/retail project as an economic development project for 

Johnstown, the Developer is requesting that the Town accept cash-in-lieu for the in-building water 

needs associated with Phase I of the project and create a Ledge Rock Center Water Bank, setting 

aside up to 3.6 shares (28.8 annual AF) from the Town’s water portfolio surplus to be available 

for purchase at a subsequent date. The purchase price for the water will be determined at the time 

of sale based on current fair market value.  The irrigation water for landscaped areas will be 

accommodated under a separate water agreement with the Ledge Rock Center Commercial 

Metropolitan District, who will own the common areas and maintain the landscaping. The District 

similarly desires to pay cash-in-lieu for the irrigation water. 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Developer will be required to provide a preliminary 

water demand analysis for each commercial building, based upon the anticipated or known 

use/user. Upon acceptance of that analysis by the Town, the Town will provide written 

authorization to use water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank, in the form attached to the 

Agreement, and the Developer will then be required to pay for the water. Developer shall have one 

year from the permit issuance for construction to be completed and obtain a Certificate of 

Occupancy.   

21

Item #5.



 

The Community That Cares 
https://johnstown.colorado.gov/  

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 

This Agreement does not require purchase of water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank. The 

Ledge Rock Center Water Bank will terminate as of December 31, 2025, unless extended prior to 

that date, and any water still remaining will be available for Town use. 

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The agreement was prepared by the Town Attorney. 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE :  

 

N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

Approve the Water & Sewer Service Agreement for Ledge Rock Center Commercial Phase I, 

with Ledge Rock Center, LLC 

 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

22

Item #5.

https://johnstown.colorado.gov/


WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
(Ledge Rock Center Commercial Phase I) 

 
 THIS WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 
____ day of _____________, 2022, by and between LEDGE ROCK CENTER, LLC, a Kansas 
limited liability company (“Developer”), and THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, a Colorado 
municipal corporation, (“Town”), collectively sometimes referred to as “the Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner, or anticipated owner, of approximately 48.610 
acres of land located in Northeast One-Quarter of Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 68 West 
of the Sixth Principal Meridian, County of Weld, State of Colorado, described more particularly 
on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (“Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is being developed as a destination retail shopping center 
containing approximately 385,000 square feet of new commercial and retail uses, to be known as 
Ledge Rock Center Commercial Phase I (“Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town obtained an analysis from Economic & Planning Systems, Inc., a 

California corporation, projecting that the Project will provide substantial economic benefits to the 
Town, including but not limited to, increased sales tax revenues and new employment 
opportunities; and   
 
 WHEREAS, to facilitate the development of the Project, the Developer has requested that 
the Town grant it the right to use water from the Town’s share of water supplies at the fair market 
value to serve the in-building water needs of the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town has an available supply of water to serve the in-building water 
needs of the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ledge Rock Center Commercial Metropolitan District, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the state of Colorado, will obtain the necessary water for 
irrigation and landscaping and enter into a separate water agreement with the Town related to such 
water use; and 
 

WHEREAS, Colorado municipalities are entitled to encourage new and expanded 
commercial and retail development through inducements and incentives; and  

 
WHEREAS, based on the anticipated economic benefits, the additional employment 

opportunities and the extraordinary opportunity presented by the location of the Project in the 
Town, subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Town Council desires to accommodate the 

23

Item #5.



 

 2

Developer’s request and finds that this Agreement is in the best interests of the citizens of the 
Town; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer and the Town desire to set forth their agreement concerning 
the use of the Town’s water for the in-building water needs of the Project, the creation of a water 
bank, and a commitment by the Town for water and sewer service for the Property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1. Recitals.  The Recitals are incorporated into the Agreement as if fully set forth 
herein. 
 

2. Creation of a Water Bank.  To facilitate the development of the Project, the Town 
agrees to allow the Developer to use up to three and six-tenths (3.6) shares of the Consolidated 
Home Supply Ditch and Reservoir Company (up to 28.8 acre-feet feet per year) from the shares 
owned by the Town for the commercial and retail in-building water needs of the Project, pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement.  The water may not be used for any other purpose.  Upon the 
execution of this Agreement, the water shares shall be set aside and placed into a water bank 
(“Ledge Rock Center Water Bank”).  The Town’s Water Engineer shall manage the Ledge Rock 
Center Water Bank and maintain an accurate accounting of the water that is used and the water 
that is still available for use by the Developer.   

 
The Ledge Rock Center Water Bank will terminate on December 31, 2025.  Water that has 

not been allocated to the use of the Developer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement by 
December 31, 2025, shall revert back to the Town, be available for any and all uses deemed 
appropriate by the Town and not be available for any use by the Developer absent a written 
amendment to this Agreement signed by the Parties.   

 
Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Developer shall not be obligated to 

purchase the right to use water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank. 
 

3. Water Demand and Approval of Water Use.  Prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for any portion of the Property, the Developer shall submit a preliminary water and sewer 
demand analysis to the Town in compliance with the Johnstown Municipal Code.  The preliminary 
analysis shall provide an estimated average annual water demand for the in-building needs of such 
portion of the Property.  Upon approval of the preliminary analysis by the Town, the Town agrees 
to provide the Developer with written authorization to use water from the Ledge Rock Center 
Water Bank, containing the applicable fees for such use, on the form attached as Exhibit B (“Water 
Use Authorization”).  Each Water Use Authorization that is executed by the Town Manager shall 
be incorporated herein and become a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein.   
 

24

Item #5.



 

 3

 4. Price for Use of Water.  The Developer agrees to pay the fair market value for the 
use of the water as determined by the Town Manager.  The Developer understands and agrees that 
the fair market value fluctuates and shall be established by the Town, at its sole discretion, when 
the Developer submits and the Town approves a preliminary water and sewer demand analysis for 
any portion of the Property.  Payment for the water shall be provided not later than the issuance of 
a building permit.  
 

5. Condition Subsequent; Certificate of Occupancy.  The Town’s grant of the right 
to use water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank to the Developer for the in-building water 
needs of the Project is subject to the condition that, within one year of the issuance of a building 
permit, the Developer complete construction of the portion of the Property that is the subject of 
the building permit and obtain a certificate of occupancy.  If the Developer does not obtain a 
certificate of occupancy within one year, the Town’s agreement to allow the Developer to use 
water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank for the portion of the Property that is the subject 
of the building permit shall terminate.  If the failure to obtain a timely certificate of occupancy is 
the result of excusable delays, as determined by the Town, the Town may, at its sole discretion, 
extend the time in which the Developer is required to obtain a certificate of occupancy.  Upon 
termination of the right to use water, the Town shall return the funds paid by the Developer for 
such use without the accrual of interest.  The Developer shall thereafter be required, prior to the 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the portion of the Property that is the subject of the 
building permit, to enter into a new water and sewer service agreement with the Town and dedicate 
sufficient water to the Town to satisfy the water needs of such portion of the Property. For the 
purposes of this section, a certificate of completion shall suffice to fulfill the certificate of 
occupancy requirement. 

 
6. Future review of water usage and dedication requirements.  In accordance with 

the Johnstown Municipal Code, the Town reserves the right to review actual water usage within 
the Property, or any portion thereof, at any point in time after water usage has been established to 
confirm the adequacy of the water demand projections contained in the preliminary analyses.  If 
the Town determines that the preliminary analyses, or any of them, underestimated the actual water 
demand for the in-building water needs, the Developer shall be required to pay for the use of 
additional water from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank, if the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank 
has not terminated and water is still available, or dedicate additional water to the Town.   

 
 7. Water and Sewer Taps.  Prior to or upon the issuance of a building permit, the 
Developer shall be required to obtain the appropriate water and sewer taps from the Town, per the 
Town’s adopted fee schedule. 
  
 8. Payment of Water Court Transfer Fees.  Upon approval of a Water Use 
Authorization and prior to issuance of a building permit, the Developer shall pay to the Town the 
water court transfer fees required by the Johnstown Municipal Code.  The Water Use Authorization 
shall contain the water court transfer fee.  If the actual water demand increases, additional water 
court transfer fees shall be required.   
 

25

Item #5.



 

 4

9. Commitment to Provide Water and Sewer.   Subject to the Developer’s 
performance of all the covenants contained herein, the issuance of a Water Use Authorization, 
payment of all required fees and issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Town commits to 
provide to the Property, or any portion thereof, the committed water supply together with the 
corresponding sewer service.     
 

10. Notice:  All notices, consents, applications or other instruments provided for under 
this Agreement shall be deemed properly given and received: (1) when personally delivered and 
received, sent by messenger service, or forwarded by electronic mail delivery, but only upon 
confirmation of receipt of such electronic mail; (2) on the next day after deposit for delivery with 
a nationally-recognized overnight courier service; or (3) three business days after deposit in the 
United States mail, by certified mail with return receipt requested. Such notices or communications 
will be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below: 

If to the Town: With a copy to: 

Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 
Town of Johnstown 
450 South Parish Avenue 
P.O. Box 609 
Johnstown, CO 80534 
mlecerf@johnstownco.gov 

Avi Rocklin, Town Attorney  
1437 N. Denver Avenue #330 
Loveland, CO 80538 
avi@rocklinlaw.com 

  
 and 
  
 Peter J. Ampe 

Hill & Robbins, P.C. 
1660 Lincoln St., Suite 2720 
Denver, CO  80264 
peterampe@hillandrobbins.com 

  
  

If to the Developer: With a copy to: 
  

Ledge Rock Center, LLC 
c/o Michael Schlup 
13725 Metcalf Ave. 
Overland Park, KS  66223 
mikeschlup@corbinpark.com 

Allen D. Schlup, Esq. 
A.D. Schlup Law, LLC 
10950 W. 192nd PL 
Spring Hill, KS 66083 
allen.schlup@adschluplaw.com 

 
The addresses for notices may be changed by written notice given to the other Party in the manner 
provided above. 
 

26

Item #5.



 

 5

 11. Default.  In the event of default by either Party hereunder, the non-defaulting Party 
shall notify the defaulting Party in writing of such default(s), specifying the nature and extent 
thereof.  If such default is not cured within thirty (30) days, the non-defaulting Party shall be 
entitled to such remedies as are provided by law, including the Town’s ordinances. 
 
 12. Successors and Assigns.  The benefits of this Agreement and the burdens hereunder 
shall inure to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Developer to the extent the 
successors and assigns occupy the Property.     
 
 13. Amendment or Modification.  No amendment or modification of this Agreement 
shall be of any force or effect unless in writing and executed by the Parties hereto with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 
 
 14. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  If any judicial proceedings may hereafter be brought 
to enforce or defend any of the provisions hereof, the Town, if the prevailing party, shall be entitled 
to recover the costs of such proceedings, including reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable 
expert witness fees. 
 
 15. Waiver.  The waiver of any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by 
either Party shall not constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by said Party, 
concerning either the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 
 
 16. Headings for Convenience Only.  Paragraph headings and titles contained herein 
are intended for convenience and reference only and are not intended to define, limit or describe 
the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
 17. Non-severability.  Each paragraph of this Agreement is intertwined with the others 
and is not severable unless by mutual consent of the Parties hereto. 
 
 18. Choice of Laws and Venue.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the 
Parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.  Venue for any claim, 
proceeding or action shall be in the County of Weld, State of Colorado. 
 
 19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties related to the subject matter hereof and any prior agreements pertaining thereto whether 
oral or written have been merged or integrated into this Agreement. 
 
 20. Findings.  The Town hereby finds and determines that execution of this Agreement 
is in the best interests of the public health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the Town 
and the provisions of this Agreement are consistent with the laws, regulations and policies of the 
Town. 
 

[The remainder of the page intentionally left blank.] 
  

27

Item #5.



28

Item #5.



 

 7

EXHIBIT A 
PROPERTY 

 LEDGE ROCK CENTER COMMERCIAL PHASE 1 
 

RETAIL EAST (40.78 AC.) – Exhibit A-1 Plat 
Tract B and Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the East Ledge Rock Center Filing No. 2 Subdivision (Rec. 
4853717), situate in the NE 1/4 of Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 68 West, of the 6 th 
P.M., Town of Johnstown, County of Weld, State of Colorado, containing approximately 40.78 
acres. 
 

-and- 
 
RETAIL WEST (7.83 AC.) – Exhibit A-2 Plat 
Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the West Ledge Rock Center Filing No. 1 Subdivision (Rec. 4838311), 
situate in the NE 1/4 of Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 68 West, of the 6th P.M., Town of 
Johnstown, County of Weld, State of Colorado, containing approximately 7.83 acres. 
 
 
 

29

Item #5.



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

-1

30

Item #5.

kmeyer
Text Box
IRRIGATION FOR TRACT A & C BY SEPARATE AGREEMENT



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

-2

31

Item #5.

kmeyer
Text Box
IRRIGATION FOR TRACT A BY SEPARATE AGREEMENT



 

 8

EXHIBIT B 
 

WATER USE AUTHORIZATION  
NO. ___ 

 
THIS WATER USE AUTHORIZATION supplements and is incorporated into the WATER AND 

SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT (“WSSA”) made and entered into on _________________, 20__, by 
and between LEDGE ROCK CENTER, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“Developer”), and THE 
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, a Colorado municipal corporation. 

 
1. Water Demand.  In compliance with the Johnstown Municipal Code, Developer submitted 

a preliminary water and sewer demand analysis to the Town for the in-building water needs of ___ (legal 
description and address)__________ (“Subject Property”).  The preliminary analysis sets forth an estimated 
average annual water demand of _____ acre feet per year for the in-building use of the Subject Property 
(___ SFE).  Based on the approval of the Town’s water engineer, the preliminary analysis is hereby accepted 
by the Town as follows:   

 
Development Demand  

(AF/YR) 
Consumption 

(AF/YR) 
 
In-Building Use 
 

  

The foregoing water demand will be satisfied by the use of ___ shares of the Consolidated Home 
Supply Ditch and Reservoir Company from the Ledge Rock Center Water Bank.  Pursuant to Paragraph 6 
of the WSSA and the Johnstown Municipal Code, the water demand set forth herein is subject to subsequent 
adjustment based on the actual water usage. 

 
2. Price for Use of Water.  Pursuant to Paragraph 4 of the WSSA, the price for the use of the 

_____ acre feet per year is $___ dollars ($____.00). 
 
3. Water Court Transfer Fee.  Pursuant to Paragraph 8 of the WSSA and the Johnstown 

Municipal Code, the water court transfer fee for the Subject Property is $___ dollars ($____.00). 
 
4. Surplus Credit.  The Ledge Rock Center Water Bank contains the following surplus water 

credit:   
 

Water Use Credit:               _____ acre-feet 
LESS Estimated demand:            _____ acre-feet 
Net current surplus credit:  _____ acre-feet 
 

 
Dated: _____________________, 20__.  By:_________________________________ 
            Matthew LeCerf, Town Manager 
Accepted by Ledge Rock Center, LLC   
By: ________________________________ 
_____________, Authorized Member 

32

Item #5.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL CONSENT AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Water & Sewer Service Agreement – Lockard Gateway Storage 

(355 Mountain View Rd.), with Lockard Development Group, Inc 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Water & Sewer Service Agreement 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Kim Meyer, Planning and Development Director 

 

    

ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

 

The Developer, Lockard Development Group, Inc, has received approval for the Lockard Gateway 

Storage Site Development Plan, including three buildings, totaling 38,000 square feet, for personal 

storage use in the Gateway (G) District zone. 

 

The annual in-building water demand is 

estimated at 0.10 acre-feet.  The annual 

landscaping irrigation water demand is 

estimated at 0.97 acre-feet.  

The Developer has obtained 1.07 AF of 

water per year from the existing raw 

water credit available to the I-25 

Gateway Center, LLC water bank. This 

water bank was created in 2019 and at that time had a surplus raw water credit with the Town in 

the amount of 33.92 AF.  

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The agreement was prepared by the Town Attorney. 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE :  

 

N/A 

Development 

Component 

Demand 

(AF/YR) 

Consumption 

(AF/YR) 

In-building 0.10 0.005 

Landscaping Irrigation 0.97 0.82 

Total Potable 1.07 0.83 

33

Item #6.



 

The Community That Cares 
https://johnstown.colorado.gov/  

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

Approve the Water & Sewer Service Agreement for Lockard Gateway Storage, with Lockard 

Development Group, Inc 

 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

34

Item #6.

https://johnstown.colorado.gov/


   

 

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into this ____ day of _______________, 2022, by and between LOCKARD 
DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC, a Colorado corporation (“Developer”) and THE TOWN OF 
JOHNSTOWN, a Colorado home-rule municipality, (“Town”), collectively sometimes referred 
to as the “Parties”. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer owns an interest in land comprised of approximately 1.9 acres 
and known as 25 Gateway Center Filing #3 Replat A, Block 3, Lot 2, more specifically described 
in the attached Exhibit A (“Subject Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Subject Property is being developed as 38,189 square-feet of light 
industrial storage garages and 0.387 acre of irrigated landscape, known as Johnstown 
Storage/Mountain View (the “Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, I-25 Gateway Center, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, previously 
dedicated ten (10) shares of stock in the Consolidated Home Supply Ditch and Reservoir Company 
to the Town to supply the required water for those certain lands in the development known as the 
I-25 Gateway Center; and 

 
WHEREAS, after execution of four separate water and sewer service agreements with the 

Town, on October 7, 2019, the Town and I-25 Gateway Center, LLC entered into an Addendum 
to Water Sewer Service Agreements with the Town (“Addendum”), wherein the parties agreed 
that, based on the initial dedication of water and the then existing use of the water, I-25 Gateway 
Center, LLC had a surplus raw water credit with the Town in the amount of 33.917 acre-feet at 
that time; and 

 
 WHEREAS, I-25 Gateway Center, LLC desires to assign a portion of the raw water credit 
to the Developer to supply the necessary water demand for the Project, as evidenced in Exhibit B, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on such assignment, the Developer and the Town desire to set forth 
their agreement concerning water rights dedication and use of the raw water, preliminary 
projections of water and sewer demand, and a current commitment by the Town for water and 
sewer service for the Project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and incorporating the foregoing recitals into the agreement, the Parties hereto agree 
as follows: 

 
1. Water and Sewer Demand Studies.  In compliance with the Town Water Rights 

Dedication Ordinance, set forth in the Johnstown Municipal Code, as amended, (“Ordinance”), 

35

Item #6.



 

 2

Developer has submitted to the Town a preliminary Water and Sewer Demand Analysis for the 
Project dated December 17, 2021.  Said analysis was received by the Town and is on file with the 
Town and as modified by the Town’s Water Engineer by memorandum dated March 25, 2022, is 
hereby accepted by the Town as to the potable water demands.  Said analysis addresses the 
projected water and sewer demands for the Project as follows: 

 
 

Development Component 
(Potable) 

Demand 
(AF/YR) 

Consumption 
(AF/YR) 

In-building use 0.10 0.005 
Landscaping irrigation 0.97 0.82 
Total potable water use 1.07 0.83 

 
2. Water Rights Dedication.  I-25 Gateway Center, LLC has assigned 1.07 acre-feet 

of its existing raw water credit to the Project, as shown in Exhibit B. 
 
3. Commitment to serve.  Subject to Developer's performance of all the covenants 

contained herein and payment of all required fees, the Town commits to provide to the Project up 
to 1.07 acre-feet per year of potable water supply together with the corresponding sewer service. 

 
4. Future review of water usage and dedication requirements.  In accordance with 

the Ordinance, the Town reserves the right to review actual water usage within the Project, at a 
point in time after water usage has been established, to confirm the adequacy of the water demand 
projections made by the Developer, and to require additional water rights dedication and/or cash-
in-lieu payments based on actual water usage.  

 
5.  Payment of Water Court Transfer fees.  Within ten days of the execution of this 

Agreement, Developer shall pay to the Town the sum of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) as 
payment of the Water Court Transfer Fees required by the Ordinance, based upon two (2) single 
family equivalent units.  

 
6. Notices.  All notices, demands, or other documents required or desired to be given, 

made or sent to either Party under this Agreement shall be made in writing, shall be deemed 
effective upon receipt and shall be personally delivered, sent by electronic mail (on condition of 
acknowledgment of receipt by the intended recipient) or mailed postage prepaid, certified mail, 
return receipt requested, as follows: 

 
TO DEVELOPER: 
 
Lockard Development Group, Inc. 
301 Alder Avenue, Dean Circle 
Johnstown, CO 80534 
Email: lockardassociates@gmail.com 
 

TO THE TOWN: 
 
Town of Johnstown  
c/o Town Clerk  
450 S. Parish Ave.  
Johnstown, CO 80534 
Email: hhill@johnstownco.gov 
 
 

36

Item #6.



 

 3

WITH A COPY TO  
THE TOWN ATTORNEYS: 
 
Avi Rocklin, Esq.  
Johnstown Town Attorney  
1437 N. Denver Avenue, #330 
Loveland, CO 80538 
Email: avi@rocklinlaw.com 
 
Peter J. Ampe 
Hill & Robbins, P.C. 
1660 Lincoln St., Suite 2720 
Denver, CO  80264 
Email: peterampe@hillandrobbins.com 

 
The addresses for notices may be changed by written notice given to the other Party in the manner 
provided above. 
 

7. Default.  In the event of default by either Party hereunder the non-defaulting Party 
shall notify the defaulting Party in writing of such default(s), specifying the nature and extent 
thereof.  If such default is not cured within thirty (30) days and the non-defaulting Party desires to 
seek recourse, the Parties shall participate in mediation, the costs of which shall be shared equally 
by both Parties.  If mediation is not successful after a ninety-day period, either Party may then 
commence an action in a court of competent jurisdiction, and shall be entitled to such remedies as 
are provided by law, including the Town’s ordinances. 

8. Successors and assigns.  The benefits and burdens of this Agreement shall 
respectively inure to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties hereto.  This 
Agreement shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the other party, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

9. Amendment or modification.  No amendment or modification of this Agreement 
shall be of any force or effect unless in writing and executed by the Parties hereto with the same 
formality as this Agreement. 
 

10. Attorney’s fees and costs.  If any judicial proceedings may hereafter be brought 
to enforce any of the provisions hereof, including an action for specific performance and/or 
damages, the Town, if the prevailing party, shall be entitled to recover the costs of such 
proceedings, including reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable expert witness fees. 
 

11.  Waiver.  The waiver of any breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement by 
either Party shall not constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by said Party, 
concerning either the same or any other provision of this Agreement. 
 

12.  Headings for convenience only.  Paragraph headings and titles contained herein 
are intended for convenience and reference only and are not intended to define, limit, or describe 
the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

37

Item #6.



 

 4

 
13. Non severability.  Each paragraph of this Agreement is intertwined with the others 

and is not severable unless by mutual consent of the Parties hereto. 
 

14. Choice of laws.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.  Venue for any claim, proceeding or action 
shall be in Weld County, State of Colorado. 
 

15. Entire agreement and Authorization.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties related to the subject matter hereof and any prior agreements 
pertaining thereto whether oral or written have been merged or integrated into this Agreement.  
Each of the undersigned represents to the others that he/she is authorized by his/her respective 
entity to execute this Agreement on behalf of that entity. 

 
16. No Presumption.  Each Party acknowledges that it has carefully read and reviewed 

the terms of this Agreement.  Each Party acknowledges that the entry into and execution of this 
Agreement is of its own free and voluntary act and deed, without compulsion.  Each Party 
acknowledges that it has obtained, or has had the opportunity to obtain, the advice of legal counsel 
of its own choosing in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and with 
respect to all matters set forth herein.  The Parties agree that this Agreement reflects the joint 
drafting efforts of all Parties and in the event of any dispute, disagreement or controversy arising 
from this agreement, the Parties shall be considered joint authors and no provision shall be 
interpreted against any Party because of authorship. 

 
17. Recordation.  This Agreement may be recorded by the Town at Developer’s 

expense in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Weld County, Colorado, and, effective as of the 
date of such recordation, this Agreement shall run with the Subject Property, shall be binding upon 
the Parties hereto and the permitted successors and assigns of the Developer and shall constitute 
notice of this Agreement to all persons or entities not parties hereto. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first 

above written.   
 
 

[Signatures Follow on Separate Page] 

38

Item #6.



39

Item #6.



EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BLOCK 3, LOT 2, BLOCK 3 OF THE I-25 GATEWAY CENTER, FILING NO. 3, REPLAT A, TOWN 
OF JOHNSTOWN, WELD COUNTY, COLORADO (REC #2681036) 

 

40

Item #6.



41

Item #6.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - General Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

General Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 68,989,739      68,989,739      

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 16,614,281      16,413,716      101.2%
Licenses & Permits 3,160,286        1,156,650        273.2%
Fines & Forfeitures 162,222           160,500           101.1%
Intergovernmental 86,943             25,000             347.8%
Earnings on Investment 139,779           52,500             266.2%
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,764,624        253,000           1092.7%
Transfers In -                      -                      

Total Operating Revenues 22,928,135      18,061,366      126.9%

Expenditures:
Legislative 767,045           932,500           82.3%
Town Manager 512,832           1,644,593        31.2%
Town Clerk 313,911           509,750           61.6%
Finance 281,825           417,510           67.5%
Planning 322,276           759,878           42.4%
Reimbursements 405,545           300,000           135.2%
Building Inspections 162,565           271,400           59.9%
Police 2,855,988        4,878,580        58.5%
Public Works 346,662           761,200           45.5%
Buildings 152,511           293,250           52.0%
Transfers Out 863,109           42,837,000      2.0%

Total Expenditures 6,984,272        53,605,661      13.0%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 15,943,864      (35,544,295)     

Prior Period Adjustment

Ending Fund Balance* 84,933,603      33,445,444      

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues 
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
42

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Conservation Trust Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Conservation Trust Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 100,051 100,051

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 55,839             81,100             68.9%
Earnings on Investment 140                  50                    280.2%

Total Operating Revenues 55,979             81,150             69.0%

Expenditures:
Operations -                      -                      
Capital Outlay 79,593             145,000           54.9%

Total Expenditures 79,593             145,000           54.9%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (23,613)            (63,850)            

Ending Fund Balance* 76,438 36,201

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0
20,000
40,000
60,000
80,000

100,000
120,000
140,000
160,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
43

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Parks and Open Space Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Parks and Open Space Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 7,277,919 7,277,919

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 1,010,268 498,150 202.8%
Miscellaneous Revenue 59,121 222,000 26.6%
Transfers In 0 1,162,000 0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 1,084,802        1,884,650        57.6%

Expenditures:
Operations 318,577           1,037,550        30.7%
Capital Outlay 1,473,325        2,737,000        53.8%
Transfers Out -                      -                      

Total Expenditures 1,791,902        3,774,550        47.5%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (707,100)          (1,889,900)       

Ending Fund Balance* 6,570,819        5,388,019        

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
44

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Street and Alley Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Street and Alley Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 15,131,804 15,131,804

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 3,224,275        3,191,400        101.0%
Intergovernmental 189,828           707,667           26.8%
Charges for Services 631,473           881,000           71.7%
Capital Investment Fees 1,928,359        420,550           458.5%
Earnings on Investment 36,944             2,000               1847.2%
Miscellaneous Revenues 1,235               -                      0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 6,012,114        5,202,617        115.6%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance 1,312,496        3,599,400        36.5%
Capital 1,416,693        2,769,000        51.2%

Total Expenditures 2,729,189        6,368,400        42.9%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 3,282,925        (1,165,783)       

Ending Fund Balance* 18,414,729      13,966,021      

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
45

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Capital Projects Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Capital Projects Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 14,524,244 14,524,244

Revenues:
Taxes and Fees 753,266           240,000           313.9%
Miscellaneous Revenue -                      -                      
Interest 58,304             4,500               1295.6%
Transfers In -                      (60,000)            0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 811,571           184,500           439.9%

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 869,107           7,111,500        0.0%
Transfers Out -                      -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 869,107           7,111,500        12.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (57,536)            (6,927,000)       

Ending Fund Balance* 14,466,707      7,597,244        

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0
1,000,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
4,000,000
5,000,000
6,000,000
7,000,000
8,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
46

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Tax Allocation Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Tax Allocation Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 41,435 95,951

Revenues:
Taxes & Fees 104,580           645,000           16.2%
Earnings on Investment -                      50                    0.0%

Total Operating Revenues 104,580           645,050           16.2%

Expenditures:
Miscellaneous 104,580           645,050           16.2%

Total Expenditures 104,580           645,050           16.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures -                      -                      

Ending Fund Balance* 41,435             95,951             

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
47

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Water Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Water Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 22,391,126 22,391,126

Revenues:
Charges for Services 3,575,899        3,838,700        93.2%

Total Operating Revenues 3,575,899        3,838,700        93.2%

Expenses:
Administration 152,664           428,650           35.6%
Operations 1,931,438        3,968,650        48.7%
Capital Outlay 10,302,716      20,910,280      49.3%
Depreciation 362,324           425,000           85.3%
Transfers Out -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 12,749,142      25,732,580      49.5%

Operating Income (Loss) (9,173,243)       (21,893,880)     

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Tap Fees 1,890,945        1,006,050        188.0%
Capital Investment Fees 1,987,255        850,650           233.6%
Misc. Revenues 1,018,837        40,179,550      2.5%
Interest Expense 82,802 6,900 1200.0%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 4,979,839        42,043,150      11.8%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses (4,193,404)       20,149,270      

Ending Cash Balance* 18,197,722 42,540,396

* - Unaudited

 

67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
48

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Sewer Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Sewer Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 62,270,933 62,270,933

Revenues:
Charges for Services 1,978,032        2,984,000        66.3%

Total Operating Revenues 1,978,032        2,984,000        66.3%

Expenses:
Administration 128,153           244,050           52.5%
Operations 939,902           1,991,800        47.2%
Capital Outlay 10,734,215      49,189,000      21.8%
Depreciation 191,264           245,000           78.1%
Debt Service 976,575           1,953,150        50.0%

Total Operating Expenses 12,970,109      53,623,000      24.2%

Operating Income (Loss) (10,992,077)     (50,639,000)     

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Improvement Fees 4,086,323        2,396,740        170.5%
Misc. Revenues 290,545           1,915,000        15.2%
Interest Expense 311,256           1,200               25938.0%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 4,688,123        4,312,940        108.7%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses (6,303,954)       (46,326,060)     

Ending Cash Balance* 55,966,980      15,944,873      

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0
1,000,000
2,000,000
3,000,000
4,000,000
5,000,000
6,000,000
7,000,000
8,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
49

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Drainage Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Drainage Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Cash Balance 3,515,563 3,515,563

Revenues:
Charges for Services 571,865           475,900           120.2%

Total Operating Revenues 571,865           475,900           120.2%

Expenses:
Administration 88,779             156,765           56.6%
Operations 109,076           364,100           30.0%
Capital Improvements 196,523           480,000           40.9%
Transfer Out -                       -                       

Total Operating Expenses 394,378           1,000,865        39.4%

Operating Income (Loss) 177,487           (524,965)          

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Revenues 330,137           110,000           300.1%
Misc. Revenues -                       -                       
Interest Expense 10,844             1,000               1084.4%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 340,981           111,000           307.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenses 518,468           (413,965)          

Ending Cash Balance* 4,034,031        3,101,598        

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
50

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Cemetery Perpetual Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Cemetery Perpetual Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 153,817 153,817

Revenues:
Miscellaneous Revenue 10,031             5,000               200.6%
Earnings on Investment 616                  60                    1027.5%

Total Operating Revenues 10,647             5,060               210.4%

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance -                      -                      
Capital Outlay -                      -                      
Transfers Out -                      -                      

Total Expenditures -                      -                      

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 10,647             5,060               

Ending Fund Balance* 164,464           158,877           

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
51

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Library Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Library Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 6,665,722 6,665,722

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 486,564           488,959           99.5%
Miscellaneous Revenue 1,452               11,000             13.2%
Capital Investment Fees 591,937           215,000           275.3%
Interest 36,052             5,000               721.0%
Transfers In 1,018,862        1,140,000        89.4%

Total Operating Revenues 2,134,867        1,859,959        114.8%

Expenditures:
Operations 488,346           1,472,000        33.2%
Capital Outlay -                      -                      0.0%

Total Expenditures 488,346           1,472,000        33.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures 1,646,521        387,959           

Ending Fund Balance* 8,312,243        7,053,681        

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

400,000

800,000

1,200,000

1,600,000

2,000,000

2,400,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
52

Item #7.



Town of Johnstown, Colorado
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Recreation Center Fund
Period Ending August 31, 2022

Unaudited

Recreation Center Fund

 2022
Actuals
August 

2022
Adopted
Budget

%
Complete

Beginning Fund Balance 922,738 922,738

Revenues:
State Grants 12,500             0
Transfers In -                       -                       
Earnings on Investment -                       -                       

Total Operating Revenues 12,500             -                       

Expenditures:
Operations & Maintenance 345,833           500,000           0.0%
Capital Outlay -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 345,833           500,000           69.2%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources over Expenditures (333,333)          (500,000)          

Ending Fund Balance* 589,405           422,738           

* - Unaudited
67% of the fiscal year has elapsed

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Revenue Budget

2022 Revenues
YTD vs. Budgeted

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

Expenditures Budget

2022 Expenditures
YTD vs. Budgeted

 
53

Item #7.



Sales Tax Analysis and Comparison
2022

Month/Year
Sales Tax
Collected*

Motor Vehicle
Sales Tax
Collected*

Total Sales
Taxes Collected*

Jan-21 744,120 178,705 922,826
Feb-21 743,695 139,660 883,356
Mar-21 906,817 124,138 1,030,955
Apr-21 918,293 168,662 1,086,954
May-21 896,848 213,617 1,110,465
Jun-21 1,015,237 219,682 1,234,920
Jul-21 1,028,270 196,440 1,224,709
Aug-21 999,329 206,802 1,206,132
Sep-21 1,057,297 211,060 1,268,357
Oct-21 1,074,502 176,424 1,250,927
Nov-21 991,990 124,164 1,116,155
Dec-21 1,510,803 214,790 1,725,593

2021 Total 11,887,203 2,174,145 14,061,348

Jan-22 860,076 176,235 1,036,312
Feb-22 1,039,339 131,014 1,170,353
Mar-22 1,140,339 183,753 1,324,092
Apr-22 1,225,967 212,749 1,438,716
May-22 1,081,813 175,308 1,257,121
Jun-22 1,387,474 211,390 1,598,864
Jul-22 1,314,434 159,699 1,474,133
Aug-22 0 0 0
Sep-22 0 0 0
Oct-22 0 0 0
Nov-22 0 0 0
Dec-22 0 0 0

2022 Total 8,049,442 1,250,149 9,299,590

Jan - Jul 2021 6,253,280 1,240,905 7,494,185
Jan - Jul 2022 8,049,442 1,250,149 9,299,590
% Increase (Decrease) 28.72% 0.74% 24.09%

* Amounts shown reflect different reporting periods for various entities.

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

1,600,000

1,800,000

2,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2021-2022 Month to Month Comparison - Sales Tax Revenues

2021 2022

54

Item #7.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Acknowledgement of Receipt of 2023 Budget 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  1. Resolution 2022-39 

    2. FY 2023 Preliminary Budget 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Devon McCarty, Interim Finance Director 

 

    

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

  

The Town of Johnstown Municipal Code, Section 4-2 states that “No later than October 15 of each 

year, the Town Manager, as designated by the Town Council and required by Colorado Law, shall 

submit to the Town Council the proposed annual budget for the ensuing fiscal year.”  The attached 

Resolution 2022-41 acknowledges that the Council was in receipt of the preliminary 2023 Budget 

document prior to the required date as the document was presented to the Council at two separate 

work sessions, held on September 6, 2022 and September 26, 2022.   

 

The budget in its entirety has been included with this resolution and will be made available to the 

public for inspection at Town Hall and on the Town’s website. 

 

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The Town Attorney drafted the Resolution.  

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE:  

 

NA 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-39 acknowledging receipt of the FY 

2023 preliminary budget document. 

 

 

55

Item #8.



 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

For Approval:  I move to approve Resolution 2022-39 acknowledging receipt of the FY 2023 

Preliminary Budget. 

 

For Denial:  I move to deny Resolution 2022-39 as presented. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

56

Item #8.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-39 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO,  

ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF THE FY 2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS, the preliminary budget for FY 2023 was provided to the Council for review on September 

7, 2022; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the general, water, and sewer funds were presented to the Town Council on September 12, 

2022 during a budget work session; and 

 

WHEREAS, the conservation trust, parks and open space, streets and alley, capital projects, tax 

allocation, drainage, cemetery, library, recreation center funds were be presented to the Town Council on 

September 26, 2022 during a budget work session. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Johnstown, Colorado 

that:  

 

Section 1. The preliminary budget for 2023 was provided to the Town Council on September 7, 2022 

with budget work sessions held on September 12, 2021 and September 26, 2022.  

 

Section 2. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  

 

Section 3. Repealer. All resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed, 

provided that such repealer shall not repeal the repealer clauses of such resolution nor revive any 

resolution thereby.  

 

Section 4. Certification. The Town Clerk shall certify to the passage of this resolution and make not less 

than one copy of the adopted resolution available for inspection by the public during regular business 

hours.  

 

INTRODUCED, READ, PASSES, AND ADOPTED THIS 3rd DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022.  

 

 

 

       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

ATTEST: 
 

By:___________________________________ By:_________________________________ 

      Hannah Hill, Town Clerk                Gary Lebsack, Mayor 
 

57

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Impact Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Outlay Service Total

Council 49,790  270,000  6,500  480,150  806,440  25,000  -  -  831,440  
Town Manager 865,110  290,295  75,705  138,820  1,369,930  55,000  -  -  1,424,930  
Town Clerk 290,810  99,960  37,350  4,500  432,620  -  -  -  432,620  
Finance 153,560  245,950  15,260  6,500  421,270  -  -  -  421,270  
Planning 547,830  24,200  25,580  8,050  605,660  -  -  -  605,660  
Bldg Inspections 103,350  199,700  5,970  800  309,820  -  -  -  309,820  
Police 4,165,900  343,140  405,970  112,100  5,027,110  307,500  450,000  -  5,784,610  
Public Works 633,800  17,050  55,600  21,800  728,250  25,000  -  -  753,250  
Buildings - 233,000 7,000  23,100  263,100  25,000  -  -  288,100  
Reimbursements - 700,000 -  -  700,000  -  -  -  700,000  

 Totals $6,810,150 $2,423,295 $634,935 $795,820 $10,664,200 $437,500 $450,000 $0 $11,551,700

Total Cash Available 23,876,290$   

Ending Fund Balance 12,324,590$   

% of Total Budget 58.95% 20.98% 5.50% 6.89% 92.32% 3.79% 3.90% 0.00% 100.00%

GENERAL FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

1 58

Item #8.



General Fund

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
 2021

Actuals 

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

 2022
Adopted
Budget 

 2022
Estimated 

 2023
Proposed 

ADVALOREM TAXES
10.01.3110.00 PROPERTY TAXES - WELD 3,920,360         3,902,572         3,983,941         3,983,941         4,251,814         
10.01.3112.00 PROPERTY TAXES - LARIMER 5,715,505         4,241,878         4,281,495         5,694,300         4,778,720         

SUBTOTAL 9,635,865         8,144,450         8,265,436         9,678,241         9,030,534         

SALES TAX
10.01.3120.00 SALES TAX - STATE 10,253,446       5,810,914         6,685,380         9,600,000         9,000,000         
10.01.3122.00 USE TAX - BUILDING 1,311,163         1,635,136         750,000             2,000,000         750,000             

SUBTOTAL 11,564,610       7,446,050         7,435,380         11,600,000       9,750,000         

EXCISE TAX
10.01.3130.00 LODGING TAX 136,917             70,187               111,900             90,000               90,000               
10.01.3150.00 TOBACCO TAX 38,066               11,048               25,000               20,000               20,000               
10.01.3160.00 SEVERANCE TAX 104,279             632,921             75,000               75,000               75,000               

SUBTOTAL 279,263             714,156             211,900             185,000             185,000             

FRANCHISE TAX
10.01.3180.00 FRANCHISE TAX-CABLE 29,546               13,990               26,000               26,000               32,000               
10.01.3184.00 FRANCHISE TAX - ELECTRIC & GAS 492,303             295,635             475,000             420,000             420,000             

SUBTOTAL 521,849             309,625             501,000             446,000             452,000             

2 59

Item #8.



General Fund

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
 2021

Actuals 

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

 2022
Adopted
Budget 

 2022
Estimated 

 2023
Proposed 

LICENSES, PERMITS, & SERVICE CHARGES
10.01.3210.00 BUSINESS LICENSES 24,798               16,975               15,000               24,798               26,000               
10.01.3215.00 CONTRACTORS LICENSES 29,300               20,200               28,000               28,000               28,000               
10.01.3220.00 DOG LICENSE/FEES 797                     819                     1,500                 1,500                 1,500                 
10.01.3230.00 LIQUOR LICENSE 6,330                 4,079                 3,500                 3,800                 4,000                 
10.01.3510.00 ABATEMENT FEES 2,045                 1,950                 500                     2,100                 2,000                 
10.01.3520.00 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 12,361               2,613                 3,000                 3,000                 2,500                 
10.01.3530.00 BUILDING PERMITS 1,015,639         1,669,565         750,000             2,300,000         1,000,000         
10.01.3546.00 PLAN REVIEW FEE 7,359                 -                          -                          -                          -                          
10.01.3565.00 FACILITY RENTAL FEES 2,449                 3,525                 250                     3,500                 2,500                 
10.01.3570.00 FINGERPRINTING FEES 330                     330                     330                     
10.01.3750.00 POLICE FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT FEES 244,980             436,069             109,950             600,000             280,610             
10.01.3760.00 PUBLIC FACILITITES IMPACT FEES 597,834             999,962             238,350             1,300,000         609,660             

SUBTOTAL 1,943,891         3,156,087         1,150,050         4,267,028         1,957,100         

FINES, FORFEITURES, & PD FEES
10.01.3310.00 COURT REVENUES 244,876             141,739             145,000             183,500             160,000             
10.01.3320.00 COURT SURCHARGE 25,740               20,208               15,500               19,000               15,500               
10.01.3330.00 RESTITUTION 275                     

SUBTOTAL 270,616             162,222             160,500             202,500             175,500             

OTHER REVENUES
10.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 91,125               139,779             52,500               70,000               15,000               
10.01.3970.00 MISC REVENUE 106,226             306,993             15,000               309,300             10,000               
10.01.3985.00 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES 909,635             520,727             150,000             593,000             737,500             
10.01.3990.00 RENT INCOME 7,187                 4,200                 6,600                 6,600                 6,600                 

SUBTOTAL 1,114,173         971,699             224,100             978,900             769,100             

3 60

Item #8.



General Fund

GENERAL FUND REVENUES
 2021

Actuals 

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

 2022
Adopted
Budget 

 2022
Estimated 

 2023
Proposed 

REVENUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES
10.01.3410.00 GRANTS - FEDERAL -                          1,910,007         -                          1,910,007         -                          
10.01.3420.00 ROYALTIES 154,218             86,943               25,000               57,920               25,000               
10.01.3440.00 STATE GRANTS 10,440               26,898               87,500               87,190               10,000               

SUBTOTAL 164,657             2,023,848         112,500             2,055,117         35,000               

EVENTS & COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES
10.01.3953.00 DONATIONS/COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 1,197                 500                     500                     

SUBTOTAL 1,197                 -                          500                     500                     -                          

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 25,496,120       22,928,137       18,061,366       29,413,286       22,354,234       

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
10.01.3999.00 TO LIBRARY (1,143,334)        (758,528)           (1,140,000)        (1,140,000)        (1,243,246)        
10.01.3999.00 TO SEWER FUND -                          -                          -                          (50,000,000)      
10.01.3999.00 TO WATER FUND (811,362)           -                          (40,000,000)      -                          (30,000,000)      
10.01.3999.00 TO PARKS -                          -                          (1,112,000)        (1,112,000)        -                          
10.01.3999.00 TO REC CENTER -                          -                          -                          -                          (77,262)              
10.01.3999.00 TO STREETS (2,000,000)        -                          -                          -                          -                          
10.01.3999.00 TO TAX FUND (403,646)           (104,581)           (585,000)           (645,050)           (625,000)           

SUBTOTAL (4,358,342)        (863,109)           (42,837,000)      (2,897,050)        (81,945,508)      

TOTAL FUND REVENUES  W/TRANSERS 21,137,778       22,065,028       (24,775,634)      26,516,236       (59,591,273)      
1,885,807         

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD 83,467,563       

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 23,876,290       

4 61

Item #8.



General Fund - Legislative

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.10.4001.00 Salaries 40,220                      26,088                      25,000                      43,600                      45,780                      
10.10.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 3,087                        1,996                        2,000                        3,200                        3,550                        
10.10.4025.00 Workers Compensation 39                             207                           1,200                        1,200                        460                           

Total Personnel Services 43,347                      28,291                      28,200                      48,000                      49,790                      

Contractual Services
10.10.4100.00 Audit 8,500                        9,000                        18,000                      9,000                        18,000                      

10.10.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 11,130                      7,508                        20,300                      45,300                      40,000                      
10.10.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 8,771                        5,121                        19,000                      10,000                      19,000                      
10.10.4150.00 Professional Services 201,211                   56,296                      175,000                   125,000                   175,000                   
10.10.4180.00 Travel & Training 3,221                        3,732                        18,000                      10,000                      18,000                      

Total Contractual Services 232,833                   81,657                      250,300                   199,300                   270,000                   

Commodities
10.10.4310.00 Computers & Software 1,280                        1,313                        5,000                        3,000                        3,000                        
10.10.4385.00 Supplies - General 1,080                        481                           2,500                        2,000                        2,500                        
10.10.4400.00 Supplies - Office 1,050                        1,000                        500                           1,000                        

Total Commodities 2,360                        2,844                        8,500                        5,500                        6,500                        

Other Charges
10.10.4530.00 Election Expenses 34,814                      38,000                      35,000                      -                                 
10.10.4540.00 Insurance 92,427                      110,465                   126,000                   126,000                   124,650                   
10.10.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 44,816                      19,300                      50,000                      51,000                      65,500                      
10.10.4570.00 Miscellaneous 1,082,783                373,191                   386,500                   632,000                   290,000                   

Total Other Charges 1,220,027                537,770                   600,500                   844,000                   480,150                   

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.10.4830.00 Equipment 49,655                      115,197                   45,000                      129,000                   25,000                      
10.10.4840.00 Other Improvements -                                 -                                 -                                 1,509,000                -                                 

Total Capital 49,655                      115,197                   45,000                      1,638,000                25,000                      

Total Budget Request 1,548,221                765,759                   932,500                   2,734,800                831,440                   

5 62

Item #8.



General Fund - Town Manager Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.20.4001.00 Salaries 325,574                    296,004                    619,800                    619,800                    658,700                    
10.20.4002.00 Overtime -                                 -                                 500                            500                            500                            
10.20.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 23,500                      22,165                      48,800                      48,800                      50,550                      
10.20.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes 360                            -                                 6,550                         6,550                         7,000                         
10.20.4025.00 Workers Compensation 1,067                         4,931                         7,800                         7,800                         4,280                         
10.20.4030.00 Group Insurance 46,315                      42,620                      111,600                    111,600                    73,040                      
10.20.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 29,210                      27,125                      74,500                      74,500                      64,140                      
10.20.4040.00 Automobile Allowance 250                            -                                 6,000                         6,000                         6,000                         
10.20.4045.00 Cell Phone Allowance 713                            4,775                         600                            600                            900                            

Total Personnel Services 426,988                    397,620                    876,150                    876,150                    865,110                    

Contractual Services
10.20.4120.00 Employee Education 1,000                         3,000                         3,000                         0
10.20.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 26,375                      7,792                         60,700                      37,200                      45900
10.20.4140.00 Postage 53                              -                                 3,150                         1,500                         2650
10.20.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 28,835                      19,559                      46,100                      45,600                      64040
10.20.4150.00 Professional Services 174,565                    22,558                      252,000                    72,000                      120500
10.20.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 2,876                         1,801                         8,900                         8,000                         12320
10.20.4180.00 Travel & Training 8,151                         10,586                      52,075                      45,475                      44885

Total Contractual Services 240,855                    63,296                      425,925                    212,775                    290,295                    

Commodities
10.20.4310.00 Computers & Software 8,104                         12,057                      31,873                      31,800                      59,205                      
10.20.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 1,310                         967                            1,000                         1,000                         2,500                         
10.20.4385.00 Supplies - General 9,229                         651                            10,350                      8,500                         9,100                         
10.20.4400.00 Supplies - Office 3,484                         1,898                         8,300                         7,000                         4,900                         

Total Commodities 22,127                      15,573                      51,523                      48,300                      75,705                      

Other Charges
10.20.4540.00 Insurance 2,117                         3,419                         5,400                         5,400                         4,900                         
10.20.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 3,780                         3,693                         17,595                      17,595                      18,420                      
10.20.4570.00 Miscellaneous 7,970                         25,258                      148,000                    137,000                    115,500                    

Total Other Charges 13,867                      32,370                      170,995                    159,995                    138,820                    

6 63

Item #8.



General Fund - Town Manager Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.20.4840.00 Infrastructure -                                 -                                 120,000                    60,000                      55,000                      

Total Capital -                                 -                                 120,000                    60,000                      55,000                      
Total Budget Request 703,836                    508,859                    1,644,593                 1,357,220                 1,420,430                 

7 64

Item #8.



General Fund - Town Clerk Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.30.4001.00 Salaries 201,316                    173,808                    261,100                    256,000                    201,300                    
10.30.4002.00 Overtime -                                 -                                 500                           500                           500                           
10.30.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 14,946                      12,763                      20,200                      19,800                      15,500                      
10.30.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 2,600                        2,600                        1,800                        
10.30.4025.00 Workers Compensation 592                           2,431                        2,550                        2,450                        3,900                        
10.30.4030.00 Group Insurance 36,158                      36,488                      83,000                      83,000                      48,120                      
10.30.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 12,609                      15,615                      30,800                      29,500                      19,690                      

Total Personnel Services 265,620                    241,105                    400,750                    393,850                    290,810                    

Contractual Services
10.30.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 4,633                        7,838                        14,800                      14,800                      18,000                      
10.30.4140.00 Postage 1,317                        1,161                        2,400                        1,500                        2,000                        
10.30.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 401                           59                              1,000                        500                           1,500                        
10.30.4150.00 Professional Services 77,373                      48,811                      62,000                      63,000                      69,000                      
10.30.4160.00 Rents 457                           197                           2,500                        1,000                        1,000                        
10.30.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 3,581                        2,227                        6,500                        4,000                        4,960                        
10.30.4180.00 Travel & Training 1,050                        -                                 1,800                        2,000                        3,500                        

Total Contractual Services 88,812                      60,293                      91,000                      86,800                      99,960                      

Commodities
10.30.4310.00 Computers & Software 11,423                      5,336                        2,400                        5,500                        33,850                      
10.30.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 1,929                        270                           3,000                        500                           500                           
10.30.4400.00 Supplies - Office 2,456                        2,709                        3,500                        3,000                        3,000                        

Total Commodities 15,808                      8,315                        8,900                        9,000                        37,350                      

Other Charges
10.30.4540.00 Insurance 6,111                        3,758                        4,600                        4,600                        2,500                        
10.30.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 136                           137                           1,000                        1,000                        1,500                        
10.30.4570.00 Miscellaneous 2,918                        302                           3,500                        500                           500                           

Total Other Charges 9,165                        4,197                        9,100                        6,100                        4,500                        

Total Budget Request 379,404                   313,910                   509,750                   495,750                   432,620                   

8 65

Item #8.



General Fund - Finance Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.40.4001.00 Salaries 105,646                    70,451                      116,300                    116,300                    110,300                    
10.40.4002.00 Overtime 50                              500                            500                            
10.40.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 7,993                         5,179                         8,900                         8,900                         8,400                         
10.40.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 1,350                         1,350                         1,800                         
10.40.4025.00 Workers Compensation 369                            1,097                         2,560                         2,560                         2,560                         
10.40.4030.00 Group Insurance 13,300                      13,882                      18,600                      18,600                      18,900                      
10.40.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 8,726                         8,120                         13,600                      19,000                      11,100                      

Total Personnel Services 136,084                    98,729                      161,810                    166,710                    153,560                    

9 66

Item #8.



General Fund - Finance Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
10.40.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 24,287                      140,966                    191,850                    191,850                    228,000                    
10.40.4140.00 Postage 7                                 -                                 450                            450                            450                            
10.40.4145.00 Printing & Advertising -                                 -                                 3,000                         300                            3,000                         
10.40.4150.00 Professional Services 200                            200                            -                                 200                            -                                 
10.40.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 2,371                         1,480                         3,900                         3,900                         7,000                         
10.40.4180.00 Travel & Training 791                            512                            7,500                         6,000                         7,500                         

Total Contractual Services 27,657                      143,158                    206,700                    202,700                    245,950                    

Commodities
10.40.4310.00 Computers & Software 709                            30,842                      38,800                      38,800                      11,760                      
10.40.4400.00 Supplies - Office 4,415                         1,867                         3,200                         2,900                         3,500                         

Total Commodities 5,124                         32,709                      42,000                      41,700                      15,260                      

Other Charges
10.40.4540.00 Insurance 800                            1,292                         1,900                         1,100                         1,400                         
10.40.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 265                            150                            600                            600                            600                            
10.40.4570.00 Miscellaneous 127                            8,119                         4,500                         4,500                         4,500                         

Total Other Charges 1,192                         9,561                         7,000                         6,200                         6,500                         

Total Budget Request 170,056                    284,157                    417,510                    417,310                    421,270                    

10 67

Item #8.



General Fund - Planning Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.50.4001.00 Salaries 205,620                   141,956                   335,800                   270,000                   378,300                   
10.50.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 15,013                     10,267                     26,600                     21,500                     28,950                     
10.50.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                5,000                        5,000                        5,000                        
10.50.4025.00 Workers Compensation 3,051                        2,444                        5,000                        4,650                        6,730                        
10.50.4030.00 Group Insurance 60,200                     36,806                     124,100                   78,900                     87,200                     
10.50.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 14,212                     14,798                     41,300                     33,000                     41,650                     

Total Personnel Services 298,096                   206,271                   537,800                   413,050                   547,830                   

Contractual Services
10.50.4120.00 Employee Education -                                -                                -                                3,000                        
10.50.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 34,269                     50,758                     162,100                   162,100                   3,000                        
10.50.4140.00 Postage 301                           453                           600                           750                           800                           
10.50.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 1,617                        -                                600                           600                           1,000                        
10.50.4150.00 Professional Services 10,530                     199                           200                           -                                
10.50.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 2,371                        1,480                        6,000                        6,000                        7,200                        
10.50.4180.00 Travel & Training 1,045                        135                           8,000                        6,000                        9,200                        

Total Contractual Services 50,132                     53,025                     177,300                   175,650                   24,200                     

Commodities
10.50.4310.00 Computers & Software 13,178                     11,428                     20,380                     20,380                     20,580                     
10.50.4400.00 Supplies - Office 1,195                        820                           5,000                        4,000                        5,000                        

Total Commodities 14,373                     12,248                     25,380                     24,380                     25,580                     

Other Charges
10.50.4540.00 Insurance 1,823                        2,944                        3,600                        3,000                        2,050                        
10.50.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 618                           95                             4,548                        1,700                        2,500                        
10.50.4570.00 Miscellaneous 25                             3,153                        3,500                        3,500                        3,500                        

Total Other Charges 2,467                        6,192                        11,648                     8,200                        8,050                        

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.50.4830.00 Equipment 7,740                        7,750                        7,740                        

Total Capital -                                7,740                        7,750                        7,740                        -                                

Total Budget Request 365,068                   285,476                   759,878                   629,020                   605,660                   

11 68

Item #8.



General Fund - Planning Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
10.51.4137.00 Contractual - Restricted Bill Back 643,775                    442,347                    300,000                    500,000                    700,000                    

Total Contractual Services 643,775                    442,347                    300,000                    500,000                    700,000                    

Total Budget Request 643,775                    442,347                    300,000                    500,000                    700,000                    

12 69

Item #8.



General Fund - Building Inspections Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

 2022
Adopted
Budget 

 2022
Estimated 

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.60.4001.00 Salaries 55,305                      41,886                      63,500                      63,500                      65,800                      
10.60.4002.00 Overtime -                                 -                                 500                            500                            -                                 
10.60.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 4,290                         3,114                         4,900                         4,900                         5,050                         
10.60.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 650                            650                            650                            
10.60.4025.00 Workers Compensation 64                              42                              650                            650                            1,250                         
10.60.4030.00 Group Insurance 752                            368                            2,000                         2,000                         21,000                      
10.60.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 2,588                         3,568                         7,700                         9,500                         9,600                         

Total Personnel Services 62,999                      48,978                      79,900                      81,700                      103,350                    

Contractual Services
10.60.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 180,684                    110,839                    181,300                    181,300                    196,000                    
10.60.4140.00 Postage -                                 -                                 200                            -                                 -                                 
10.60.4145.00 Printing & Advertising -                                 -                                 700                            -                                 200                            
10.60.4150.00 Professional Services -                                 -                                 5,000                         -                                 -                                 
10.60.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 505                            320                            1,300                         1,300                         1,700                         
10.60.4180.00 Travel & Training -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 1,800                         

Total Contractual Services 181,189                    111,159                    188,500                    182,600                    199,700                    

Commodities
10.60.4310.00 Computers & Software 2,178                         2,287                         500                            2,800                         5,270                         
10.60.4400.00 Supplies - Office 339                            472                            700                            700                            700                            
10.60.4430.00 Supplies - Training -                                 -                                 500                            

Total Commodities 2,517                         2,759                         1,700                         3,500                         5,970                         

Other Charges
10.60.4540.00 Insurance 421                            680                            1,000                         1,000                         500                            
10.60.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 260                            170                            300                            300                            300                            
10.60.4570.00 Miscellaneous 23                              -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Other Charges 704                            850                            1,300                         1,300                         800                            

Total Budget Request 247,409                    163,746                    271,400                    269,100                    309,820                    

13 70

Item #8.



General Fund - Police Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.70.4001.00 Salaries 2,015,247                 1,585,258                 2,556,400                 2,556,400                 2,585,500                 
10.70.4002.00 Overtime 21,864                      47,453                      37,500                      65,500                      67,000                      
10.70.4003.00 Off-Duty Work 456                            -                                 30,000                      -                                 -                                 
10.70.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 152,275                    120,829                    204,500                    195,000                    198,500                    
10.70.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 21,300                      21,300                      24,500                      
10.70.4025.00 Workers Compensation 58,941                      51,018                      149,800                    149,800                    152,000                    
10.70.4030.00 Group Insurance 349,076                    274,593                    516,700                    479,000                    510,800                    
10.70.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 125,112                    166,797                    301,100                    301,100                    292,500                    

Total Personnel Services 2,722,972                 2,245,948                 3,817,300                 3,768,100                 3,830,800                 

New Personnel
10.70.4001.00 Salaries -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 212,800                    
10.70.4002.00 Overtime -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 6,000                         
10.70.4010.00 Payroll Taxes -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 16,300                      
10.70.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 4,000                         
10.70.4025.00 Workers Compensation -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 8,000                         
10.70.4030.00 Group Insurance -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 62,000                      
10.70.4035.00 Retirement Contribution -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 26,000                      

Total New Personnel -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 335,100                    

14 71

Item #8.



General Fund - Police Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
10.70.4120.00 Employee Education (410)                           3,000                         
10.70.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 631                            95                              -                                 
10.70.4130.00 Maintenance - Vehicles 45,989                      21,315                      25,000                      25,000                      27,000                      
10.70.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 121,956                    134,962                    212,000                    179,700                    191,640                    
10.70.4140.00 Postage 2,788                         1,269                         5,000                         4,000                         4,500                         
10.70.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 402                            422                            1,500                         1,300                         1,500                         
10.70.4150.00 Professional Services 24,977                      4,927                         35,100                      20,200                      28,500                      
10.70.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 40,355                      22,067                      56,600                      41,000                      45,000                      
10.70.4180.00 Travel & Training 11,451                      4,429                         33,100                      17,400                      42,000                      

Total Contractual Services 248,139                    189,486                    368,300                    288,600                    343,140                    

Commodities
10.70.4310.00 Computers & Software 18,983                      11,685                      18,840                      16,750                      111,170                    
10.70.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 53,106                      47,599                      60,000                      60,000                      72,000                      
10.70.4385.00 Supplies - General 110,677                    35,634                      116,440                    119,700                    174,300                    
10.70.4395.00 Supplies - Lab 4,329                         9,341                         10,500                      11,000                      6,000                         
10.70.4400.00 Supplies - Office 7,893                         7,281                         13,000                      12,000                      13,500                      
10.70.4460.00 Uniforms 14,209                      5,231                         17,000                      11,900                      29,000                      

Total Commodities 209,197                    116,771                    235,780                    231,350                    405,970                    

Other Charges
10.70.4520.00 Donations - Community Programs 4,107                         3,380                         4,500                         4,500                         4,500                         
10.70.4540.00 Insurance 90,675                      100,331                    111,200                    100,340                    106,100                    
10.70.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 370                            295                            1,500                         500                            1,500                         
10.70.4570.00 Miscellaneous -                                 9,042                         -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Other Charges 95,153                      113,048                    117,200                    105,340                    112,100                    

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.70.4830.00 Equipment 7,500                         
10.70.4860.00 Vehicles 101,680                    189,980                    190,000                    190,000                    300,000                    

Total Capital 101,680                    189,980                    190,000                    190,000                    307,500                    

15 72

Item #8.



General Fund - Police Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
10.70.4135.00 Other Contractual Services -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Contractual Services -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.70.4860.00 Vehicles -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 300,000                    
10.70.4890.00 Other Improvements -                                 -                                 150,000                    -                                 150,000                    

Total Capital -                                 -                                 150,000                    -                                 450,000                    

Total Budget Request 3,377,141                 2,855,233                 4,878,580                 4,583,390                 5,784,610                 

Impact

16 73

Item #8.



General Fund - Public Works Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
10.80.4001.00 Salaries 128,121                    214,629                    453,600                    453,600                    449,600                    
10.80.4002.00 Overtime -                                 356                            -                                 148                            500                            
10.80.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 9,876                         15,784                      35,700                      33,200                      34,700                      
10.80.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 4,600                         4,600                         4,600                         
10.80.4025.00 Workers Compensation 7,981                         4,562                         11,300                      10,400                      18,800                      
10.80.4030.00 Group Insurance 21,311                      36,283                      139,100                    135,000                    79,950                      
10.80.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 11,969                      16,106                      54,800                      52,500                      45,650                      

Total Personnel Services 179,258                    287,720                    699,100                    689,448                    633,800                    

Contractual Services
10.80.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 1,157                         936                            -                                 800                            -                                 
10.80.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 831                            -                                 1,500                         1,500                         3,000                         
10.80.4130.00 Maintenance - Vehicles 50                              -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
10.80.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 5,090                         1,739                         1,200                         1,500                         1,500                         
10.80.4140.00 Postage 28                              -                                 200                            200                            50                              
10.80.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 681                            597                            200                            375                            500                            
10.80.4160.00 Rents 564                            558                            2,500                         500                            1,000                         
10.80.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 7,258                         5,489                         9,300                         9,300                         6,000                         
10.80.4180.00 Travel & Training 824                            759                            750                            800                            5,000                         

Total Contractual Services 16,482                      10,078                      15,650                      14,975                      17,050                      

17 74

Item #8.



General Fund - Public Works Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Commodities
10.80.4310.00 Computers & Software 5,255                         21,462                      16,900                      16,900                      38,600                      
10.80.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 2,192                         1,818                         2,400                         2,400                         5,000                         
10.80.4385.00 Supplies - General 1,329                         7,965                         3,000                         3,000                         5,000                         
10.80.4390.00 Supplies - Janitorial -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
10.80.4400.00 Supplies - Office 1,276                         7,837                         9,250                         10,750                      1,000                         
10.80.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 1,230                         243                            3,000                         3,000                         5,000                         
10.80.4460.00 Uniforms -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 1,000                         

Total Commodities 11,282                      39,325                      34,550                      36,050                      55,600                      

Other Charges
10.80.4540.00 Insurance 1,297                         6,687                         11,100                      10,100                      15,800                      
10.80.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions -                                 -                                 800                            800                            3,000                         
10.80.4570.00 Miscellaneous 4,401                         2,850                         -                                 3,000                         

Total Other Charges 5,698                         9,537                         11,900                      10,900                      21,800                      

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.80.4830.00 Equipment -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 25,000                      

Total Capital -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 25,000                      

Total Budget Request 212,721                    346,660                    761,200                    751,373                    753,250                    

18 75

Item #8.



General Fund - Buildings Dept.

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
10.82.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 59,517                      10,528                      40,800                      38,000                      48,000                      
10.82.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 1,217                         9,210                         10,000                      10,000                      10,500                      
10.82.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructure 11,997                      7,377                         9,000                         9,000                         9,000                         
10.82.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 62,765                      36,273                      78,100                      78,100                      80,000                      
10.82.4150.00 Professional Services 495                            169                            3,250                         3,250                         4,000                         
10.82.4160.00 Rents 1,665                         -                                 1,500                         1,500                         1,500                         
10.82.4190.00 Utilities 52,143                      57,450                      75,000                      75,000                      80,000                      

Total Contractual Services 189,798                    121,007                    217,650                    214,850                    233,000                    

Commodities
10.82.4390.00 Supplies - Janitorial 678                            1,301                         3,000                         3,000                         4,000                         
10.82.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 5,927                         1,076                         3,000                         3,000                         3,000                         

Total Commodities 6,605                         2,377                         6,000                         6,000                         7,000                         

Other Charges
10.82.4540.00 Insurance 15,513                      20,526                      24,600                      24,600                      23,100                      

Total Other Charges 15,513                      20,526                      24,600                      24,600                      23,100                      

Capital - $5,000/item min.
10.82.4810.00 Buildings 32,807                      8,600                         45,000                      55,000                      25,000                      
10.82.4830.00 Equipment 5,975                         -                                 

Total Capital 38,782                      8,600                         45,000                      55,000                      25,000                      

Total Budget Request 250,698                    152,510                    293,250                    300,450                    288,100                    

19 76

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Conservation Trust 0 0 0 0 0 ---                 ---                 0

   Totals $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

Total Cash Available 118,251$        

Ending Fund Balance 118,251$        

% of Total Budget 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

2019 Actuals 0

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

20 77

Item #8.



Conservation Trust Fund

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

30.01.3450.00 LOTTERY FUNDS 91,832               55,839               81,100               81,100               82,000               
30.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 60                      140                    50                      50                      50                      

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 91,892               55,979               81,150               81,150               82,050               

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 36,201               

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 91,892               55,979               81,150               81,150               118,251            

21 78

Item #8.



Conservation Trust Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Capital - $5,000/item min.
30.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 79,593                      145,000                    145,000                    -                                 

Total Capital -                                 79,593                      145,000                    145,000                    -                                 

Total Budget Request -                                 79,593                      145,000                    145,000                    -                                 

22 79

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Impact Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Outlay Service Total

Parks Fund 469,040        409,100             88,790          16,300          983,230         205,000         2,700,000      -                    3,888,230

   Totals 469,040$      409,100$           88,790$        16,300$        983,230$       205,000$       2,700,000$    -$                  3,888,230$     

Total Cash Available 7,630,117$     

Ending Fund Balance 3,741,887$     

% of Total Budget 12.06% 10.52% 2.28% 0.42% 25.29% 5.27% 69.44% 0.00% 100.00%

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

23 80

Item #8.



Parks Open Space Fund

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

34.01.3225.00 FISHING LICENSES 905                     370                     500                     100                     500                     
34.01.3420.00 GRANTS 63,437               -                          205,000             -                          -                          
34.01.3470.00 LARIMER COUNTY OPEN SPACE 314,035             250,010             243,650             243,650             243,650             
34.01.3532.00 PARK FEES - BUILDING PERMITS 106,000             140,500             75,000               170,000             85,000               
34.01.3567.00 PARK RESERVATION FEES 950                     1,765                 400                     1,500                 400                     
34.01.3740.00 PARK & OS -  IMPACT FEES 253,128             616,993             179,100             700,000             456,980             
34.01.3940.00 CEMETERY LOT PURCHASE 52,173               56,840               17,000               27,300               17,000               
34.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 1,343                 15,049               2,000                 10,000               2,000                 
34.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 3,027                 3,281                 -                          3,281                 -                          

794,998             1,084,808         722,650             1,155,831         805,530             

34.01.3999.00 FROM WATER FUND 100,000             -                          20,000               20,000               20,000               
34.01.3999.00 FROM SEWER FUND 100,000             -                          20,000               20,000               20,000               
34.01.3999.00 FROM DRAINAGE 20,000               -                          10,000               10,000               10,000               
34.01.3999.00 FROM GENERAL FUND -                          -                          1,112,000         1,112,000         -                          

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 1,014,998         1,084,808         1,884,650         2,317,831         855,530             
60,000               

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 6,774,587         

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 7,630,117         

24 81

Item #8.



Parks Open Space Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
34.90.4001.00 Salaries 183,671                    111,920                    304,100                    287,000                    288,800                    
34.90.4002.00 Overtime 1,740                         4,055                         5,000                         5,000                         5,000                         
34.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 14,031                      8,608                         24,300                      21,300                      22,070                      
34.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 5,200                         5,200                         5,200                         
34.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 5,238                         5,684                         25,000                      25,000                      15,000                      
34.90.4030.00 Group Insurance 21,904                      21,210                      78,500                      68,700                      56,100                      
34.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 11,090                      11,171                      36,800                      36,800                      35,520                      

Total Personnel Services 237,674                    162,648                    478,900                    449,000                    427,690                    

New Personnel Services
34.90.4001.00 Salaries -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 20,500                      
34.90.4002.00 Overtime -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 1,000                         
34.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 1,600                         
34.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 1,500                         
34.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 2,500                         
34.90.4030.00 Group Insurance -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 11,750                      
34.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 2,500                         

Total Personnel Services -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 41,350                      

Contractual Services
34.90.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 1,275                         90                              8,000                         4,000                         8,000                         
34.90.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 6,837                         8,272                         8,000                         10,000                      60,000                      
34.90.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructure 51,655                      30,715                      98,000                      58,000                      45,000                      
34.90.4130.00 Maintenance - Fleet 807                            370                            1,500                         1,500                         15,000                      
34.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 29,437                      23,972                      49,400                      40,000                      49,500                      
34.90.4140.00 Postage -                                 -                                 100                            100                            -                                 
34.90.4150.00 Professional Services 18,035                      17,533                      145,000                    60,000                      65,000                      
34.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet -                                 794                            4,800                         2,000                         2,600                         
34.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 598                            1,000                         1,000                         4,000                         
34.90.4190.00 Utilities 35,569                      42,625                      154,000                    154,000                    160,000                    

Total Contractual Services 143,616                    124,969                    469,800                    330,600                    409,100                    

25 82

Item #8.



Parks Open Space Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Commodities
34.90.4300.00 Chemicals 30,876                      18,426                      17,000                      25,700                      27,000                      
34.90.4310.00 Computers & Software -                                 500                            4,200                         4,200                         14,040                      
34.90.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 12,065                      9,175                         11,000                      13,000                      15,000                      
34.90.4385.00 Supplies - General 1,435                         611                            2,500                         2,500                         3,000                         
34.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 7,829                         34,958                      23,000                      33,000                      25,000                      
34.90.4420.00 Supplies - Safety 145                            196                            1,500                         1,500                         1,500                         
34.90.4430.00 Supplies - Training 331                            -                                 1,000                         1,000                         1,000                         
34.90.4440.00 Supplies - Fleet 782                            30                              1,000                         1,000                         -                                 
34.90.4460.00 Uniforms 93                              2,448                         2,250                         2,250                         2,250                         

Total Commodities 53,556                      66,344                      63,450                      84,150                      88,790                      

Other Charges
34.90.4540.00 Insurance 1,901                         4,069                         6,700                         6,700                         4,300                         
34.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous 1,536                         -                                 10,000                      10,000                      12,000                      

Total Other Charges 3,437                         4,069                         16,700                      16,700                      16,300                      

Capital - $5,000/item min.
34.90.4810.00 Buildings 35,460                      
34.90.4830.00 Equipment 20,676                      20,000                      20,000                      80,000                      
34.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 455,628                    1,424,612                 2,672,000                 1,872,000                 80,000                      
34.90.4860.00 Vehicles -                                 48,713                      45,000                      48,713                      45,000                      

Total Capital 511,764                    1,473,325                 2,737,000                 1,940,713                 205,000                    
3,422,000                 

Capital - $5,000/item min.
34.90.4840.00 Infrastructure -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 2,700,000                 

Total Capital -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 2,700,000                 

Total Budget Request 950,047                    1,831,355                 3,765,850                 2,821,163                 3,888,230                 

Impact

26 83

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Impact Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Outlay Service Total

Streets Fund 724,990       2,775,100      207,000       25,900         3,732,990        7,848,000      -                      -                   11,580,990

   Totals 724,990$     2,775,100$    207,000$     25,900$       3,732,990$      7,848,000$    -$                    -$                 11,580,990$      

Total Cash Available 24,577,760$      

Ending Fund Balance 12,996,769$      

% of Total Budget 6.26% 23.96% 1.79% 0.22% 32.23% 67.77% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

STREET AND ALLEY FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

27 84

Item #8.



Street Alley Fund

STREET AND ALLEY FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

36.01.3120.00 SALES TAXES - GENERAL 1,698,681          962,433             1,114,600 1,583,333 1,500,000
36.01.3124.01 USE TAXES - BUILDINGS 328,147             387,598             150,000 500,000 187,500
36.01.3124.00 SALES & USE TAXES - VEHICLES 2,174,145          1,200,933          911,000             1,750,000          1,500,000
36.01.3140.00 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAXES 525,232             304,646             440,000             440,000             380,000
36.01.3176.00 HIGHWAY USERS TAXES 578,965             282,504             535,000             304,883             538,905
36.01.3420.00 GRANTS 66,667               66,667               566,667             666,667             1,000,000
36.01.3430.00 ROAD & BRIDGE - WELD 110,487             78,082               59,000               78,000               65,000
36.01.3435.00 ROAD & BRIDGE - LARIMER 47,750               45,081               82,000               50,000               50,000
36.01.3580.00 VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEES 64,602               86,161               40,800               95,000               65,000
36.01.3590.00 TRASH COLLECTION FEES 804,638             631,472             881,000             935,000             945,000
36.01.3790.00 TRANSPORTATION FACILITY DEVELOPMENT FEE - IMPACT 1,292,540          1,906,705          416,550             2,100,000          1,170,000
36.01.3792.00 TRAFFIC SIGNAL IMPACT FEE 5,429                 2,410                 4,000                 4,000                 4,000
36.01.3793.00 TRAFFIC SIGNAL - DEV SHARE 79,750               -                          0
36.01.3794.00 TRAFFIC INTERCHANGE RECOVERY 19,244               -                          12,452               0
36.01.3960.00 INTEREST 3,305                 36,944               2,000                 37,000               10,200
36.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 7,622                 140                     -                          120                     0
36.01.3985.00 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES 1,095                 -                          1,095                 0
36.01.3995.00 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENTS 1,486                 -                          -                          -                          0
36.01.3999.00 TRANSFER IN -                          -                          -                          1,450,000

SUBTOTAL 7,789,446          6,012,115          5,202,617          8,557,550          8,865,605          

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 7,789,446          6,012,115          5,202,617          8,557,550          8,865,605          

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 15,712,155       

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 7,789,446$       24,577,760       

28 85

Item #8.



Street Alley Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
36.90.4001.00 Salaries 250,805                   199,389                   406,100                     382,000                     404,550                     
36.90.4002.00 Overtime 3,125                        6,530                        8,000                         8,000                         8,000                         
36.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 18,928                     15,276                     31,900                       30,100                       30,700                       
36.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                5,800                         5,800                         5,900                         
36.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 11,460                     9,864                        35,700                       35,700                       35,700                       
36.90.4030.00 Group Insurance 31,245                     30,071                     137,000                     119,000                     115,000                     
36.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 15,499                     20,920                     50,100                       50,100                       39,900                       

Total Personnel Services 331,062                   282,050                   674,600                     630,700                     639,750                     

New Personnel
36.90.4001.00 Salaries -                                -                                -                                  -                                  47,200                       
36.90.4002.00 Overtime -                                -                                -                                  -                                  2,000                         
36.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes -                                -                                -                                  -                                  3,650                         
36.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                -                                  -                                  1,750                         
36.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation -                                -                                -                                  -                                  2,590                         
36.90.4030.00 Group Insurance -                                -                                -                                  -                                  22,000                       
36.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution -                                -                                -                                  -                                  6,050                         

Total New Personnel -                                -                                -                                  -                                  85,240                       

29 86

Item #8.



Street Alley Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
36.90.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 20,848                     6,970                        27,500                       27,500                       25,000                       
36.90.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructu 686,640                   67,431                     1,320,000                  813,000                     1,350,000                  
36.90.4130.00 Maintenance - Fleet 7,822                        5,981                        10,000                                               10,000                         10,000 
36.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 829,611                   499,911                   832,200                     880,000                     970,000                     
36.90.4140.00 Postage 50                             -                                1,000                         1,000                         1,000                         
36.90.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 50                             -                                4,000                         1,800                         3,000                         
36.90.4150.00 Professional Services 665                           118,647                   215,000                     325,000                     50,000                       
36.90.4160.00 Rents 2,173                        2,430                        5,500                         3,500                         5,500                         
36.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 3,057                        1,890                        3,600                         3,600                         3,600                         
36.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 2,543                        2,969                        5,000                         5,000                         7,000                         
36.90.4190.00 Utilities 143,383                   205,897                   300,000                     340,000                     350,000                     

Total Contractual Services 1,696,842                912,126                   2,723,800                  2,410,400                  2,775,100                  

Commodities
36.90.4300.00 Chemicals 28,693                     34,795                     55,000                       55,000                       60,000                       
36.90.4310.00 Computers & Software 2,613                        10,829                     18,500                       18,500                       12,100                       
36.90.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 34,799                     32,396                     30,000                       30,000                       35,000                       
36.90.4385.00 Supplies - General 4,007                        1,588                        10,000                       5,000                         10,000                       
36.90.4400.00 Supplies - Office 450                           -                                350                            350                            400                            
36.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 26,394                     15,584                     35,000                       25,000                       45,000                       
36.90.4420.00 Supplies - Safety 2,267                        4,967                        10,000                       10,000                       15,000                       
36.90.4430.00 Supplies - Training 11                             -                                250                            250                            500                            
36.90.4440.00 Supplies - Fleet 14,911                     8,100                        20,000                       20,000                       25,000                       
36.90.4460.00 Uniforms 711                           3,468                        2,000                         4,000                         4,000                         

Total Commodities 114,854                   111,727                   181,100                     168,100                     207,000                     

30 87

Item #8.



Street Alley Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Other Charges
36.90.4540.00 Insurance 10,020                     6,086                        17,400                       14,500                       19,900                       
36.90.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptio -                                422                           500                            500                            1,000                         
36.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous -                                90                             2,000                         5,000                         

Total Other Charges 10,020                     6,598                        19,900                       15,000                       25,900                       

Capital - $5,000/item min.
36.90.4830.00 Equipment 43,844                     -                                170,000                     
36.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 329,170                   1,367,980                2,650,000                  4,572,000                  7,365,000                  
36.90.4860.00 Vehicles -                                48,712                     119,000                     181,000                     313,000                     
36.90.4890.00 Other Improvements -                                -                                -                                  -                                  -                                  

Total Capital 373,014                   1,416,692                2,769,000                  4,753,000                  7,848,000                  

Total Budget Request 2,525,792                2,729,193                6,368,400                  7,977,200                  11,580,990               

31 88

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Capital Projects -                   11,500         -                   -                   11,500         5,800,000      -                   5,811,500

   Totals -$                 11,500$       -$                 -$                 11,500$       5,800,000$    -$                 5,811,500$     

Total Cash Available 10,302,173$   

Ending Fund Balance 4,490,673$     

% of Total Budget 0.00% 0.20% 0.00% 0.00% 0.20% 99.80% 0.00% 100.00%

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

32 89

Item #8.



Capital Projects Fund

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

38.01.3120.00 SALES TAX REVENUES -                          -                          -                          -                          
38.01.3122.01 USE TAX REVENUES - BUILDINGS 660,232                753,266             240,000             900,000             300,000             
38.01.3960.00 INTEREST 4,531                    58,304               4,500                  7,250                  2,200                  
38.01.3985.00 REIMBURSED EXPENSES -                             -                          -                          -                          
38.01.3995.00 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENTS 8,653                    -                          -                          -                          
38.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS TO TAX FUND (60,000)              (270,000)            (50,000)              

SUBTOTAL 673,415                811,570             184,500             637,250             252,200             

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 673,415                811,570             184,500             637,250             252,200             

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 10,049,973       

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 10,302,173       

33 90

Item #8.



Capital Projects Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
38.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 8,562                         5,398                         11,500                      8,270                         11,500                      

Total Contractual Services 8,562                         5,398                         11,500                      8,270                         11,500                      

Capital - $5,000/item min.
38.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 69,568                      863,709                    7,100,000                 5,103,250                 5,800,000                 

Total Capital 69,568                      863,709                    7,100,000                 5,103,250                 5,800,000                 

Total Budget Request 78,129                      869,107                    7,111,500                 5,111,520                 5,811,500                 

34 91

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Tax Allocation -                   -                   -                   675,000       675,000       -                     -                   675,000          

   Totals -$                 -$                 -$                 675,000$     675,000$     -$                   -$                 675,000$        

Total Cash Available 716,485$        

Ending Fund Balance 41,485$          

% of Total Budget 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

TAX ALLOCATION EXPENSE SUMMARY

35 92

Item #8.



Tax Allocation Fund

TAX ALLOCATION FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

TRANSFERS IN:
60.01.3120.00 TAX SHARING -                         645,000            895,000            675,000            
60.01.3960.00 INTEREST -                         -                         50                      50                      -                         
60.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS IN 557,943            104,580            

557,943            104,580            645,050            895,050            675,000            

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 557,943            104,580            645,050            895,050            675,000            

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 41,485               

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 716,485            

36 93

Item #8.



Tax Allocation Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Other Charges
60.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous 612,458                    104,580                    645,050                    895,000                    675,000                    

Total Other Charges 612,458                    104,580                    645,050                    895,000                    675,000                    

Transfers
60.90.4999.00 Transfer Out -                                 

Total Transfers Out -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Budget Request 612,458                    104,580                    645,050                    895,000                    675,000                    

37 94

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

WF Operations 696,700       1,183,750      1,599,100     1,228,650      4,708,200        33,561,280     -                   38,269,480      
WF C&D 204,650       157,000         295,000        1,850             658,500           2,506,000       3,164,500        

   Totals 696,700$     1,183,750$    1,599,100$   1,228,650$    5,366,700$      33,561,280$   -$                 41,433,980$    

Total Cash Available 62,835,043$    

Ending Fund Balance 21,401,063$    

% of Total Budget 1.68% 2.86% 3.86% 2.97% 12.95% 81.00% 0.00% 100.00%

WATER FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

38 95

Item #8.



Water Fund

WATER FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

70.01.3440.00 GRANTS -                           676,967             676,967                -                             
70.01.3810.00 SALES OF POTABLE WATER 4,280,753          3,275,167          3,600,000            4,300,000            4,300,000            
70.01.3815.00 SALES OF NONPOTABLE WATER 38,963                3,700                    41,000                  20,000                  
70.01.3820.00 WATER TAP FEE 1,601,574          1,890,945          1,006,050            2,150,000            1,357,605            
70.01.3825.00 RAW WATER DEVELOPMENT FEE 1,371,918          1,987,255          850,650                2,210,000            1,147,945            
70.01.3840.00 HYDRANT/BULK WATER 559,097             261,770             235,000                275,000                235,000                
70.01.3845.00 WATER LEASE 10,650                21,940                11,650                  26,000                  15,000                  
70.01.3850.00 WATER SHARE FEES 1,900                  2,400                    -                             15,000,000          
70.01.3852.00 WATER METER FEE 114,763             156,621             40,500                  157,000                86,500                  
70.01.3920.00 CAPITAL/DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 17,952,000       -                           -                             -                             -                             
70.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 6,682                  82,802                6,900                    93,000                  20,000                  
70.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 177,731             158,246             125,000                125,000                125,000                
70.01.3985.00 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES 40,079                5,063                  -                             4,900                    -                             
70.01.3995.00 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENTS 8,446                  -                           -                             -                             -                             
70.01.3999.01 TRANSFER IN -                           -                           40,000,000          -                             30,000,000          
70.01.3999.00 TRANSFER OUT -                           -                           -                             -                             (600,000)              

SUBTOTAL 26,125,593       8,555,739          45,881,850          10,058,867          51,707,050          

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 26,125,593       8,555,739          45,881,850          10,058,867          51,707,050          

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 11,127,993
LESS CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 0

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 62,835,043$       

39 96

Item #8.



Water Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Administrative Costs
Personnel Services

70.12.4001.00 Salaries 101,128                   65,187                     103,200                   103,200                   106,700                   
70.12.4002.00 Overtime 407                           419                           500                           500                           500                           
70.12.4005.00 Compensated Absences -                                -                                -                                -                                
70.12.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 7,133                        4,791                        7,950                        7,950                        8,150                        
70.12.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                1,100                        1,100                        1,100                        
70.12.4025.00 Workers Compensation 276                           714                           2,850                        2,850                        1,250                        
70.12.4030.00 Group Insurance 20,539                     14,510                     23,950                     23,950                     20,900                     
70.12.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 7,237                        6,940                        12,300                     15,500                     12,350                     

Total Personnel Services 136,720                   92,561                     151,850                   155,050                   150,950                   

Contractual Services
70.12.4110.00 Billing & Administrative 20,000                     -                                20,000                     20,000                     20,000                     
70.12.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 49,194                     51,445                     58,900                     58,900                     60,900                     
70.12.4140.00 Postage 22                             8                               1,000                        200                           750                           
70.12.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 16,926                     8,182                        15,500                     15,500                     15,600                     
70.12.4150.00 Professional Services -                                468                           2,000                        2,000                        2,000                        

Total Contractual Services 86,142                     60,103                     97,400                     96,600                     99,250                     

Other Charges
70.12.4570.00 Miscellaneous -                                179,400                   41,400                     -                                

Total Other Charges -                                -                                179,400                   41,400                     -                                

Administrative Costs Total 222,862                   152,664                   428,650                   293,050                   250,200                   

40 97

Item #8.



Water Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Operational Costs
Personnel Services

70.90.4001.00 Salaries 357,596                   278,276                   298,400                   395,000                   372,200                   
70.90.4002.00 Overtime 19,696                     16,825                     5,000                        18,000                     5,000                        
70.90.4005.00 Compensated Absences 4,678                        -                                2,500                        2,600                        4,500                        
70.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 27,741                     21,268                     24,200                     28,000                     29,100                     
70.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                6,800                        6,800                        6,900                        
70.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 11,114                     8,692                        22,700                     22,700                     16,700                     
70.90.4030.00 Group Insurance 83,505                     67,609                     107,000                   107,000                   73,850                     
70.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 17,669                     27,688                     36,300                     55,000                     37,500                     

Total Personnel Services 521,999                   420,358                   502,900                   635,100                   545,750                   

Contractual Services
70.90.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 97,039                     1,160                        25,000                     10,000                     5,000                        
70.90.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 81,958                     49,692                     130,000                   115,000                   150,000                   
70.90.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructure 124,974                   81,211                     245,000                   225,000                   25,000                     
70.90.4130.00 Maintenance - Vehicles 4,902                        1,098                        5,300                        4,000                        4,000                        
70.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 188,565                   187,332                   781,500                   450,000                   224,000                   
70.90.4140.00 Postage 3,500                        
70.90.4145.00 Printing and Advertising 2,000                        
70.90.4150.00 Professional Services 159,039                   141,630                   170,000                   170,000                   200,000                   
70.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 6,416                        8,584                        6,900                        13,000                     11,000                     
70.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 5,866                        1,223                        3,500                        3,500                        5,000                        
70.90.4190.00 Utilities 208,052                   150,107                   253,000                   230,000                   230,000                   
70.90.4195.00 Water Assessments 151,839                   159,256                   225,000                   200,000                   225,000                   

Total Contractual Services 1,028,650                781,293                   1,845,200                1,420,500                1,084,500                

41 98

Item #8.



Water Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Commodities
70.90.4300.00 Chemicals 392,676                   413,181                   1,196,000                1,000,000                1,500,000                
70.90.4310.00 Computers & Software 1,518                        3,340                        59,000                     59,000                     17,600                     
70.90.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 13,027                     5,947                        10,000                     10,000                     9,000                        
70.90.4340.00 Hydrants 9,676                        28,819                     10,000                     20,000                     -                                
70.90.4380.00 Supplies - Buildings 501                           
70.90.4385.00 Supplies - General 13,824                     4,150                        14,000                     10,000                     7,000                        
70.90.4390.00 Supplies - Janitorial -                                1,000                        1,000                        1,000                        
70.90.4395.00 Supplies - Lab 15,012                     19,149                     20,000                     25,000                     25,000                     
70.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 56,160                     21,781                     60,000                     50,000                     30,000                     
70.90.4420.00 Supplies - Safety 2,659                        1,303                        3,000                        3,000                        1,500                        
70.90.4430.00 Supplies - Training -                                17                             1,500                        500                           2,500                        
70.90.4440.00 Supplies - Fleet 1,675                        2,150                        1,500                        1,500                        2,000                        
70.90.4460.00 Uniforms 315                           3,088                        1,400                        3,500                        3,500                        
70.90.4480.00 Water Meters 110,257                   123,480                   100,000                   150,000                   -                                

Total Commodities 617,299                   626,405                   1,477,400                1,333,500                1,599,100                

Other Charges
70.90.4515.00 Depreciation 434,789                   362,324                   425,000                   425,000                   970,000                   
70.90.4540.00 Insurance 40,345                     55,013                     62,400                     55,100                     57,300                     
70.90.4560.00 Memberships& Subscriptions 35                             387                           750                           750                           1,350                        
70.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous 258,949                   48,768                     80,000                     80,000                     200,000                   

Total Other Charges 734,118                   466,492                   568,150                   560,850                   1,228,650                

Capital - $5,000/item min.
70.90.4830.00 Equipment -                                -                                831,280                   570,000                   261,280                   
70.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 1,051,416                10,302,255              19,640,000                            16,370,000               32,950,000 
70.90.4860.00 Vehicles -                                -                                89,000                     89,000                     -                                
70.90.4880.00 Water Shares -                                462                           350,000                   50,000                     350,000                   

Total Capital 1,051,416                10,302,717              20,910,280              17,079,000              33,561,280              

42 99

Item #8.



Water Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Water - C&D
Personnel Services

70-92-4001-00 SALARIES 133,700                   
70-92-4002-00 OVERTIME 3,000                        
70-92-4005-00 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,500                        
70-92-4010-00 PAYROLL TAXES 10,750                     
70-92-4020-00 UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES 3,500                        
70-92-4025-00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 3,700                        
70-92-4030-00 GROUP INSURANCE 35,700                     
70-92-4035-00 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 12,800                     

Total Personnel Services -                                -                                -                                -                                204,650                   

Contractual Services
70-92-4122-00 MAINTENANCE - BUILDINGS -                                
70-92-4125-00 MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT 40,000                     
70-92-4127-00 MAINTENANCE - INFRASTRUCTURE 100,000                   
70-92-4130-00 MAINTENANCE - VEHICLES 3,000                        
70-92-4135-00 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 14,000                     

Total Contractual Services -                                -                                -                                -                                157,000                   

43 100

Item #8.



Water Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Commodities
70-92-4170-00 TELEPHONE & INTERNET 9,500                        
70-92-4180-00 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500                        
70-92-4310-00 COMPUTERS AND SOFTWARE 21,000                     
70-92-4330-00 FUEL AND LUBRICANTS 5,000                        
70-92-4340-00 HYDRANTS 50,000                     
70-92-4385-00 SUPPLIES - GENERAL 7,000                        
70-92-4395-00 SUPPLIES - LAB 5,000                        
70-92-4410-00 SUPPLIES - OPERATIONAL 30,000                     
70-92-4420-00 SUPPLIES - SAFETY 6,500                        
70-92-4430-00 SUPPLIES - TRAINING 2,500                        
70-92-4440-00 SUPPLIES - VEHICLES 2,000                        
70-92-4460-00 UNIFORMS 2,000                        
70-92-4480-00 WATER METERS 150,000                   

Total Commodities -                                -                                -                                -                                295,000                   

70-92-4560-00 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,350                        
70-92-4570-00 MISCELLANEOUS 500                           

Total Other Charges -                                -                                -                                -                                1,850                        

Capital - $5,000/item min.
70-92-4830-00 CAPITAL - EQUIPMENT 6,000                        
70-92-4840-00 CAPITAL - INFRASTRUCTURE 2,500,000                
70-92-4860-00 CAPITAL - VEHICLES -                                

Total Capital -                                -                                -                                -                                2,506,000                

Total Budget Request 4,176,343                12,749,929              25,732,580              21,322,000              41,433,980              

44 101

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

SF Operations 508,750       950,900          271,860       1,256,350       2,987,860      57,315,000       2,764,000     63,066,860        
SF C&D 204,650       264,000          53,500         1,850              524,000         20,406,000       -                    20,930,000        

   Totals 508,750$     950,900$        271,860$     1,256,350$     3,511,860$    57,315,000$     2,764,000$   83,996,860$      

Total Cash Available 85,888,502$      

Ending Fund Balance 1,891,642$        

% of Total Budget 0.61% 1.13% 0.32% 1.50% 4.18% 68.23% 3.29% 100.00%

SEWER FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

45 102

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

SEWER FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

72.01.3410.00 GRANT -                          1,900,000         -                          -                       
72.01.3775.00 SEWER - REGIONAL IMPACT FEE 978,500             1,795,500         902,500             2,600,000         2,105,000      
72.01.3870.00 SEWER CHARGES 2,683,290         1,978,032         2,984,000         2,931,742         3,181,500      
72.01.3880.00 SEWER TAP FEES 1,202,250         2,290,823         1,494,240         2,550,000         1,113,560      
72.01.3960.00 INTEREST 9,718                 311,256             1,200                 420,000             100,000         
72.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 37,534               30,545               15,000               39,600               18,900            
72.01.3995.00 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENTS 5,639                 -                          -                          -                          -                       
72.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS IN -                          -                          -                          -                          50,000,000    
72.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS IN -                          -                          -                          -                          (600,000)        
72-01-3985-00 REFUND OF EXPENDITURES -                          260,000             -                          260,000             -                       
72.01.3980.00 PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF BONDS 5,023                 -                          -                          (1,910,007)        -                       

SUBTOTAL 4,921,954         6,666,156         7,296,940         6,891,335         55,918,960    

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 4,921,954         6,666,156         7,296,940         6,891,335         55,918,960    

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 29,969,542    

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 85,888,502    

46 103

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Administrative Costs
Personnel Services

72.12.4001.00 Salaries 100,443                    65,186                      103,200                     103,200                     106,700                     
72.12.4002.00 Overtime 383                           419                           500                             500                             500                             
72.12.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 7,084                        4,791                        7,950                          7,950                          8,150                          
72.12.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 1,100                          -                                  1,100                          
72.12.4025.00 Workers Compensation 275                           714                           2,850                          2,850                          1,250                          
72.12.4030.00 Group Insurance 20,002                      14,510                      23,950                       23,950                       20,900                       
72.12.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 7,178                        6,940                        12,300                       14,000                       12,350                       

Total Personnel Services 135,365                    92,560                      151,850                     152,450                     150,950                     

Contractual Services
72.12.4110.00 Billing & Administrative 20,000                      -                                 20,000                       20,000                       20,000                       
72.12.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 46,145                      28,762                      55,700                       55,700                       55,700                       
72.12.4140.00 Postage -                                 -                                 1,000                          100                             500                             
72.12.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 9,932                        6,832                        15,500                       15,500                       15,500                       

Total Contractual Services 76,077                      35,594                      92,200                       91,300                       91,700                       

Total Administrative Costs 211,442                    128,154                    244,050                     243,750                     242,650                     
Operational Costs
Personnel Services

72.90.4001.00 Salaries 241,939                    173,697                    190,000                     260,000                     231,900                     
72.90.4002.00 Overtime 9,830                        10,561                      3,000                          11,200                       5,000                          
72.90.4005.00 Compensated Absences -                                 1,500                          1,500                          4,500                          
72.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 18,641                      13,228                      15,500                       17,000                       18,200                       
72.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 5,200                          5,200                          5,200                          
72.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 5,703                        4,840                        21,200                       21,200                       21,200                       
72.90.4030.00 Group Insurance 54,018                      39,557                      73,600                       67,500                       48,250                       
72.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 12,401                      18,384                      23,200                       38,000                       23,550                       

Total Personnel Services 342,532                    260,267                    333,200                     421,600                     357,800                     

47 104

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
72.90.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 8,747                        4,633                        7,500                          7,500                          7,500                          
72.90.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 62,880                      37,412                      100,000                     85,000                       90,000                       
72.90.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructure 461,683                    52,811                      220,000                     150,000                     25,000                       
72.90.4130.00 Maintenance - Vehicles 1,457                        119                           1,500                          1,500                          3,000                          
72.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 181,004                    157,143                    656,500                     240,000                     379,000                     
72.90.4140.00 Postage 50                              -                                 150                             -                                  -                                  
72.90.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 50                              -                                 300                             -                                  500                             
72.90.4150.00 Professional Services 23,299                      14,907                      40,000                       45,000                       20,000                       
72.90.4160.00 Rents 1,378                        80                              5,000                          2,500                          5,000                          
72.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 13,676                      6,899                        4,100                          11,000                       9,700                          
72.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 5,968                        638                           1,500                          1,500                          4,500                          
72.90.4190.00 Utilities 263,233                    189,494                    247,500                     300,000                     315,000                     

Total Contractual Services 1,023,424                464,136                    1,284,050                  844,000                     859,200                     

Commodities
72.90.4300.00 Chemicals 160,269                    110,022                    225,000                     200,000                     200,000                     
72.90.4310.00 Computers & Software 2,009                        3,418                        5,000                          5,000                          18,610                       
72.90.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 18,613                      5,938                        13,000                       11,000                       9,000                          
72.90.4380.00 Supplies - Buildings 4,542                        11                              3,500                          1,000                          3,500                          
72.90.7385.00 Supplies - General 1,978                        2,514                        10,000                       10,000                       5,000                          
72.90.4390.00 Supplies - Janitorial 33                              51                              1,500                          750                             1,500                          
72.90.4395.00 Supplies - Lab 1,262                        2,853                        20,000                       15,000                       12,000                       
72.90.4400.00 Supplies - Office -                                 -                                 250                             -                                  250                             
72.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 4,463                        19,642                      15,000                       20,000                       15,000                       
72.90.4420.00 Supplies - Safety 1,254                        2,313                        4,000                          4,000                          1,500                          
72.90.4430.00 Supplies - Training -                                 -                                 1,500                          1,500                          2,500                          
72.90.4440.00 Supplies - Fleet 786                           1,944                        2,000                          1,500                          1,000                          
72.90.4460.00 Uniforms 559                           1,280                        1,400                          1,400                          2,000                          

Total Commodities 195,767                    149,986                    302,150                     271,150                     271,860                     

48 105

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Other Charges
72.90.4515.00 Depreciation 229,512                    191,264                    245,000                     290,000                     1,200,000                  
72.90.4540.00 Insurance 47,821                      54,576                      61,900                       54,576                       55,000                       
72.90.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions -                                 -                                 500                             500                             1,350                          
72.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous 11,525                      10,000                       5,000                          

Total Other Charges 277,334                    257,365                    317,400                     350,076                     1,256,350                  

Capital - $5,000/item min.
72.90.4810.00 Buildings -                                 20,000,000                11,000,000                57,300,000                
72.90.4830.00 Equipment 15,000                       
72.90.4840.00 Infrastructure 10,782,329              29,100,000                24,020,000                -                                  
72.90.4860.00 Vehicles -                                 -                                 89,000                       89,000                       -                                  

Total Capital -                                 10,782,329              49,189,000                35,109,000                57,315,000                

Debt Service
72.90.4900.00 Principal -                                 -                                 808,700                     
72.90.4950.00 Interest 651,050                    976,575                    1,953,150                  1,953,150                  1,955,300                  
72.90.4995.00 Cost of Issuance 547,628                    -                                 -                                  

Total Debt Service 1,198,678                976,575                    1,953,150                  1,953,150                  2,764,000                  

Sewer - C&D
Personnel Services

72-92-4001-00 SALARIES 133,700                     
72-92-4002-00 OVERTIME 3,000                          
72-92-4005-00 COMPENSATED ABSENCES 1,500                          
72-92-4010-00 PAYROLL TAXES 10,750                       
72-92-4020-00 UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES 3,500                          
72-92-4025-00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 3,700                          
72-92-4030-00 GROUP INSURANCE 35,700                       
72-92-4035-00 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 12,800                       

Total Personnel Services -                                 -                                 -                                  -                                  204,650                     

49 106

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
72-92-4122-00 MAINTENANCE - BUILDINGS
72-92-4125-00 MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT 5,000                          
72-92-4127-00 MAINTENANCE - INFRASTRUCTURE 100,000                     
72-92-4130-00 MAINTENANCE - VEHICLES 3,000                          
72-92-4135-00 OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 127,000                     
72-92-4140-00 POSTAGE 250                             
72-92-4145-00 PRINTING & ADVERTISING 500                             
72-92-4150-00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 20,000                       
72-92-4170-00 TELEPHONE & INTERNET 3,750                          
72-92-4180-00 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500                          

Total Contractual Services -                                 -                                 -                                  -                                  264,000                     

Commodities
72-92-4300-00 CHEMICALS 15,000                       
72-92-4310-00 COMPUTERS AND SOFTWARE 500                             
72-92-4330-00 FUEL & LUBRICANTS 5,000                          
72-92-4385-00 SUPPLIES - GENERAL 5,000                          
72-92-4410-00 SUPPLIES - OPERATIONAL 15,000                       
72-92-4420-00 SUPPLIES - SAFETY 6,500                          
72-92-4430-00 SUPPLIES - TRAINING 2,500                          
72-92-4440-00 SUPPLIES - VEHICLES 2,000                          
72-92-4460-00 UNIFORMS 2,000                          

Total Commodities -                                 -                                 -                                  -                                  53,500                       

Other Charges
72-92-4560-00 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,350                          
72-92-4570-00 MISCELLANEOUS 500                             

Total Other Charges -                                 -                                 -                                  -                                  1,850                          

50 107

Item #8.



Sewer Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Capital - $5,000/item min.
72-92-4830-00 EQUIPMENT 6,000                          
72-92-4840-00 INFRASTRUCTURE 20,400,000                

Total Capital -                                 -                                 -                                  -                                  20,406,000                

Total Budget Request 3,249,176                13,018,813              53,623,000                39,192,726                83,996,860                

51 108

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Drainage Fund 260,960       134,090       20,875         227,000       642,925       -                     -                   642,925             

   Totals 260,960$     134,090$     20,875$       227,000$     642,925$     -$                   -$                 642,925$           

Total Cash Available 4,134,098$        

Ending Fund Balance 3,491,173$        

% of Total Budget 40.59% 20.86% 3.25% 35.31% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

DRAINAGE FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

52 109

Item #8.



Drainage Fund

DRAINAGE FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

74.01.3720.00 DRAINAGE IMPACT FEE 420,490            571,865            110,000            590,000            220,000            
74.01.3860.00 DRAINAGE CHARGES 478,106            330,137            475,900            492,000            500,000            
74.01.3960.00 INTEREST 1,042                 10,844               1,000                 1,600                 1,000                 
74.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 3,557                 -                         -                         -                         -                         
74.01.3995.00 UNREALIZED GAIN ON INVESTMENTS 1,347                 -                         -                         -                         -                         
74.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS -                         -                         -                         (250,000)           

SUBTOTAL 904,543            912,846            586,900            1,083,600         471,000            

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 904,543            912,846            586,900            1,083,600         471,000            

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 3,663,098         

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 4,134,098         

53 110

Item #8.



Drainage Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Administrative Costs
Personnel Services

74.12.4001.00 Salaries 69,885                      47,094                      78,900                      78,900                      73,050                      
74.12.4002.00 Overtime 193                            237                            500                            500                            500                            
74.12.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 4,927                         3,463                         6,400                         6,400                         5,630                         
74.12.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 1,050                         1,050                         1,050                         
74.12.4025.00 Workers Compensation 204                            553                            2,875                         2,875                         870                            
74.12.4030.00 Group Insurance 13,060                      11,121                      17,900                      17,900                      14,020                      
74.12.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 5,144                         4,928                         9,400                         10,500                      7,790                         

Total Personnel Services 93,413                      67,396                      117,025                    118,125                    102,910                    

Contractual Services
74.12.4110.00 Billing & Administrative 20,000                      10,000                      10,000                      10,000                      
74.12.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 22,421                      16,961                      20,840                      20,840                      26,390                      
74.12.4140.00 Postage -                                 -                                 500                            200                            500                            
74.12.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 6,621                         4,422                         8,400                         8,400                         10,600                      

Total Contractual Services 49,042                      21,383                      39,740                      39,440                      47,490                      

Total Administrative Costs 142,455                    88,779                      156,765                    157,565                    150,400                    
Operational Costs

Personnel Services
74.90.4001.00 Salaries 89,903                      48,031                      116,300                    116,300                    93,600                      
74.90.4002.00 Overtime 1,050                         1,762                         5,000                         5,000                         4,000                         
74.12.4005.00 Compensated Absences 5,200                         5,200                         3,000                         
74.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 6,941                         3,740                         9,300                         9,300                         7,150                         
74.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                 -                                 3,200                         3,200                         3,200                         
74.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 3,465                         2,328                         14,350                      14,350                      8,250                         
74.90.4030.00 Group Insurance 8,757                         8,581                         41,300                      41,300                      28,400                      
74.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 5,877                         4,689                         14,200                      14,200                      10,450                      

Total Personnel Services 115,993                    69,131                      208,850                    208,850                    158,050                    

54 111

Item #8.



Drainage Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
74.90.4125.00 Maintenance - Equipment 1,385                         266                            2,500                         2,500                         2,500                         
74.90.4127.00 Maintenance - Infrastructure 168,356                    12,775                      35,000                      10,000                      55,000                      
74.90.4130.00 Maintenance - Vehicles -                                 -                                 1,000                         1,000                         1,000                         
74.90.4140.00 Postage 50                              -                                 50                              50                              -                                 
74.90.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 50                              -                                 300                            300                            -                                 
74.90.4150.00 Professional Services -                                 9,995                         80,000                      40,000                      25,000                      
74.90.4160.00 Rents -                                 -                                 1,000                         1,000                         1,000                         
74.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 809                            80                              1,200                         1,300                         100                            
74.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 1,747                         -                                 2,000                         2,000                         2,000                         
74.90.4190.00 Utilities

Total Contractual Services 172,397                    23,116                      123,050                    58,150                      86,600                      

Commodities
74.90.4310.00 Computers & Software -                                 1,500                         1,500                         1,500                         4,875                         
74.90.4330.00 Fuel & Lubricants 2,641                         5,938                         7,000                         7,000                         4,000                         
74.90.4385.00 Supplies - General -                                 -                                 1,000                         1,000                         1,000                         
74.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational -                                 -                                 3,000                         3,000                         3,000                         
74.90.4420.00 Supplies - Safety -                                 -                                 3,000                         3,000                         -                                 
74.90.4430.00 Supplies - Training -                                 -                                 500                            500                            2,500                         
74.90.4440.00 Supplies - Fleet 110                            -                                 500                            500                            5,000                         
74.90.4460.00 Uniforms 90                              900                            900                            900                            500                            

Total Commodities 2,842                         8,338                         17,400                      17,400                      20,875                      

Other Charges
74.90.4515.00 Depreciation 6,637                         5,532                         9,500                         9,500                         225,000                    
74.90.4540.00 Insurance 1,599                         2,583                         5,300                         2,600                         2,000                         
74.90.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 
74.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Other Charges 8,237                         8,115                         14,800                      12,100                      227,000                    

55 112

Item #8.



Drainage Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Capital - $5,000/item min.
74.90.4840.00 Infrastructure -                                 196,523                    400,000                    482,000                    -                                 
74.90.4860.00 Vehicles -                                 -                                 80,000                      -                                 -                                 

Total Capital -                                 196,523                    480,000                    482,000                    -                                 

Total Budget Request 441,924                    394,002                    1,000,865                 936,065                    642,925                    

56 113

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Cemetery Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     -                   -                      

   Totals -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                 -$                    

Total Cash Available 179,676$        

Ending Fund Balance 179,676$        

% of Total Budget 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

CEMETERY PERPETUAL EXPENSE SUMMARY

57 114

Item #8.



Cemetery Perpetual Fund

CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND REVENUES
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

80.01.3940.00 CEMETERY LOT PURCHASE 9,207                 10,031               5,000                 13,170               12,560               
80.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 55                      616                    60                      70                      60                      

SUBTOTAL 9,262                 10,647               5,060                 13,240               12,620               

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 9,262                 10,647               5,060                 13,240               12,620               

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 167,056            

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 179,676            

58 115

Item #8.



Cemetery Perpetual Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
80.90.4150.00 Professional Services -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Contractual Services -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Other Charges
80.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Other Charges -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Transfers
80.90.4999.00 Transfers Out -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Trasfers Out -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Capital - $5,000/item min.
80.90.4840.00 Infrastructure -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Capital -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Budget Request -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

59 116

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023 Pending

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Library Fund 677,000       777,000       355,000       12,000         1,821,000      -                     -                   1,821,000       

   Totals 677,000$     777,000$     355,000$     12,000$       1,821,000$    -$                   -$                 1,821,000$     

Total Cash Available 10,743,484$   

Ending Fund Balance 8,922,484$     

% of Total Budget 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

LIBRARY FUND EXPENSE SUMMARY

60 117

Item #8.



Library Fund

LIBRARY FUND
2021

Actual

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

92.01.3730.00 LIBRARY FACILITIES FEE 237,636            591,937 215,000 614,897 439,410
92.01.3953.00 DONATION 700                    -                         3,500                1,500                3,500                
92.01.3960.00 INTEREST INCOME 2,389                 16,278              5,000                51,564              75,000              
92.01.3970.00 MISCELLANEOUS 2,559                 404                    7,500                2,500                7,500                
92.01.3985.00 WELD LIBRARY DIST. 550,267            432,457            488,959            488,959            819,186            
92.01.3999.00 TRANSFERS IN - TOJ 1,233,063         829,230            1,140,000         1,140,000         1,243,246         

SUBTOTAL 2,026,614 1,870,306 1,859,959 2,299,420 2,587,842

TOTAL FUND REVENUES 2,026,614 1,870,306 1,859,959 2,299,420 2,587,842

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 8,155,642

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE 10,743,484$    

61 118

Item #8.



Library Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Personnel Services
92.90.4001.00 Salaries 321,141                    243,910                    533,000                    375,500                    677,000                    
92.90.4002.00 Overtime -                                104                           
92.90.4010.00 Payroll Taxes 24,847                      18,630                      
92.90.4020.00 Unemployment Taxes -                                -                                
92.90.4025.00 Workers Compensation 372                           247                           
92.90.4030.00 Group Insurance -                                -                                
92.90.4035.00 Retirement Contribution 96                             3,641                        

Total Personnel Services 346,456                    266,532                    533,000                    375,500                    677,000                    

Contractual Services
92.90.4122.00 Maintenance - Buildings 122,375                    102,504                    580,000                    236,500                    680,000                    
92.90.4145.00 Printing & Advertising 21,359                      9,934                        32,000                      21,500                      32,000                      
92.90.4150.00 Professional Services 148                           -                                10,000                      1,000                        10,000                      
92.90.4170.00 Telephone & Internet 5,866                        1,983                        10,000                      3,500                        10,000                      
92.90.4180.00 Travel & Training 737                           782                           5,000                        1,500                        5,000                        
92.90.4190.00 Utilities 31,670                      15,601                      40,000                      30,000                      40,000                      

Total Contractual Services 182,155                    130,804                    677,000                    294,000                    777,000                    

Commodities
92.90.4310.00 Computers & Software 5,983                        257                           5,000                        2,500                        5,000                        
92.90.4385.00 Supplies - General 4,590                        2,367                        70,000                      45,500                      75,000                      
92.90.4390.00 Supplies - Janitorial 855                           298                           3,000                        1,000                        3,000                        
92.90.4400.00 Supplies - Office -                                -                                12,000                      6,000                        12,000                      
92.90.4410.00 Supplies - Operational 62,570                      21,310                      160,000                    78,000                      260,000                    

Total Commodities 73,998                      24,232                      250,000                    133,000                    355,000                    

Other Charges
92.90.4540.00 Insurance -                                -                                5,000                        5,000                        5,000                        
92.90.4560.00 Memberships & Subscriptions 627                           437                           2,500                        500                           2,500                        
92.90.4570.00 Miscellaneous 18,394                      (60,661)                    4,500                        1,500                        4,500                        

Total Other Charges 19,021                      (60,224)                    12,000                      7,000                        12,000                      

Capital - $5,000/item min.
92.90.4810.00 Buildings 55,238                      28,983                      -                                -                                -                                

Total Capital 55,238                      28,983                      -                                -                                -                                

Total Budget Request 676,868                   390,326                   1,472,000                809,500                   1,821,000                

62 119

Item #8.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN
ANNUAL BUDGET
FY 2023

Total
Personnel Contract Other Operating Capital Debt
Services Services Commodity Charges Costs Outlay Service Total

Rec Center Fund -                      500,000       -                   -                   500,000       -                     -                   500,000            

   Totals -$                    500,000$     -$                 -$                 500,000$     -$                   -$                 500,000$          

Total Cash Available 500,000$          

Ending Fund Balance -$                      

% of Total Budget 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

RECREATION CENTER FUND SUMMARY

63 120

Item #8.



Recreation Center Fund

RECREATION CENTER FUND REVENUES
2021

Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

96.01.3999.00 TRANSFER IN -                         -                         -                         -                         77,262               
SUBTOTAL -                         -                         -                         -                         77,262               

TOTAL FUND REVENUES -                         -                         -                         -                         77,262               

UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE FORWARD (BEG. FUND BAL.) 422,738            

TOTAL ANTICIPATED FUNDS AVAILABLE -                         500,000            

64 121

Item #8.



Recreation Center Fund

Acct.
No. Account Title

2021
Actuals

 2022
Jan - Aug
Actuals 

2022
Adopted
Budget

2022
Estimated

2023
Proposed

Contractual Services
96.90.4135.00 Other Contractual Services 500,000                    250,000                    500,000                    500,000                    500,000                    

500,000                    250,000                    500,000                    500,000                    500,000                    

Capital - $5,000/item min.
96.90.4810.00 Buildings -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

-                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Total Budget Request 500,000                    250,000                    500,000                    500,000                    500,000                    

65 122

Item #8.



Town of Johnstown 
List of Bills - August 29, 2022 - September 23, 2022

Vendor Description Dept Amount
4990 Ronald Reagan LLC Police substation lease PD 1,519.75                 
Ace Hardware Supplies PW 1,077.72                 
Adamson Police Products Uniforms PD 89.99                       
All Copy Products, Inc Copier supplies PD 100.70                     
American West Land Surveying Co Cemetery plat PW 11,000.00               
Andale Construction Inc. Road maintenance PW 329,780.95             
A-One Chipseal Road maintenance PW 147,906.12             
Applied Concepts, Inc Radar repair PD 80.00                       
APWA Colorado Training PW 1,500.00                 
Arapahoe Rental Supplies PW 390.11                     
Automation Services LLC Equipment maintenance PW 630.00                     
Bell Gould Linder & Scott, P.C. Legal services ADM 300.00                     
BHA Design Incorporated Landscape design standards PW 2,720.00                 
Bludot Technologies Inc. CRM ADM 195.00                     
Bobcat of the Rockies Equipment maintenance PW 1,099.99                 
Brenner Builders LLC Road maintenance PW 3,500.00                 
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Co Inc. WTP expansion PW 128,192.65             
Card Services Travel/training/supplies ALL 10,261.74               
CenturyLink Phone/internet ALL 523.03                     
Charles Portz Refund fees ADM 700.00                     
Cintas Mat supplies/service ALL 881.23                     
CivicPlus Code updates ADM 300.00                     
CMC Tire Vehicle supplies PW 454.00                     
CMS Mechanical Services Building maintenance PW 14,381.00               
Colorado Analytical Labs Lab testing PW 1,889.00                 
Colorado Greenbelt Management Grounds maintenance PW 1,375.00                 
Community Center Refunds Refund of deposits ADM 140.00                     
Connell Resources, Inc. Parish Avenue pavement/North sewer expansion PW 1,039,258.05         
Consolidated Home Supply Ditch & Water legal PW 467.50                     
Core & Main Water meters PW 1,450.74                 
Coren Printing, Inc Supplies PD 875.00                     
Dana Kepner Co. Supplies PW 328.00                     
DBC Irrigation Supply Supplies PW 383.52                     
DCP Midstream Little Thompson Trail project PW 5,420.00                 
DeFalco Construction Co Old Town Project PW 501,756.25             
DeFalco Construction Company Hydrant meter deposit refund PW 1,500.00                 
Denali Water Solutions LLC Sludge removal PW 1,243.91                 
Derek Flannery Employee reimbursement - training PW 96.00                       
DES Pipeline Maintenance, LLC Maintenance PW 1,975.00                 
Dirty D's Accessories Supplies PD 180.00                     
DPC Industries Inc Chemicals PW 15,661.60               
Endress+Hauser Supplies PW 80.55                       
Envirotech Services, Inc Chemicals PW 5,695.58                 
Ergomed Employment screening ADM 200.00                     
FedEx Postage   PD 22.19                       
Firestone Complete Auto Care Vehicle maintenance PD 1,029.12                 
First Armored Services LLC Vehicle maintenance PW 1,877.36                 
First Class Security Systems Fire system monitoring PW 128.80                     
First National Bank Custodial services ADM 1,022.59                 
Frontier Business Products Supplies ADM 99.00                       
Frontier Fertilizer & Chemical Chemicals PW 194.45                     
Galls LLC Supplies PD 264.80                     

123

Item #9.



Vendor Description Dept Amount
Generator Source Generator PW 25,690.27               
Glenn A. Jones Library Library support ADM 94,816.12               
Grainger, Inc. Supplies PW 2,257.88                 
Ground Engineering Consultants, Inc. Low Point expansion/Old Town project PW 5,644.75                 
Hach Company Lab supplies PW 1,685.76                 
Hays Market Inc Supplies PW 99.90                       
Helton & Williamsen, P.C. Billback - Engineering services ADM 12,843.75               
Hill & Robbins, PC Water legal ADM 1,198.50                 
IMEG Corp Billback - Engineering services ADM 27,780.00               
Infosend, Inc. Newsletter & utility bills ADM 7,708.92                 
Insight North America, LLC Investment services ADM 3,010.65                 
J-2 Contracting Co. Reservoir repair PW 88,107.78               
John Deere Financial Supplies PW 2,186.91                 
JWO Engineering SH 60 project PW 61,437.72               
Kenz & Leslie Distributing Supplies PW/PD 2,172.40                 
Kim Meyer Employee reimbursement - supplies ADM 15.53                       
Kinsco, LLC Uniforms PD 349.54                     
L G Everist Inc Supplies PW 819.99                     
Larimer County Clerk of Courts Reimburse fees ADM 100.00                     
Law Office of Avi Rocklin LLC Billback - Legal services ADM 26,558.40               
Law Office of Avi Rocklin LLC Legal services ADM 4,725.90                 
Lawson Products Inc Supplies PW 3,406.31                 
LJA Engineering High Plains Blvd striping PW 2,190.64                 
Loveland Barricade LLC Supplies PW 1,428.75                 
Lowe's Supplies PW 299.29                     
Mares Auto Inc. Vehicle maintenance PW 465.00                     
Mastec Maintenance PW 700.00                     
McGeady Becher P.C. Billback - Legal ADM 10,476.00               
MGS Incorporated Trailer PW 15,055.00               
Milliken Johnstown Electric Equipment maintenance PW 530.89                     
McCoy, Mitzi Employee reimbursement - supplies ADM 121.98                     
Mountain States Pipe & Supply Water meters PW 26,842.53               
Napa Auto Parts, Inc Vehicle repair supplies PW/PD 3,957.24                 
Northern Water Water shares ADM 25,531.15               
Office Depot Business Credit Supplies ALL 1,144.13                 
Otak Design - LT Trail PW 2,703.50                 
Paul Hornbeck Reimbursement - travel ADM 741.72                     
Pitney Bowes Bank Inc Purchase Power Postage   PD 149.44                     
ProCode Inc. Inspection services ADM 15,750.00               
Ramey Environmental Compliance Inc. OCR services PW 21,774.00               
Redi Services, LLC Port o lets PW 960.00                     
Rhinehart Oil Co., Inc. Fuel  ALL 14,337.97               
RoadSafe Traffic Systems Supplies PW 1,420.00                 
Roberts Excavation Corporation Hydrant meter deposit refund PW 1,500.00                 
Sam's Club MC/SYNCB Supplies PW/ADM 188.56                     
Shine Bright Aesthetics Facade grant ADM 3,407.50                 
Survival Armor Supplies PD 1,914.12                 
Tait & Associates, Inc. Old Town/Charlotte Street design PW 5,807.73                 
TDS Telephones     ALL 1,101.03                 
TechMedia, LLC Supplies ADM 664.50                     
The Home Depot/GECF Supplies PW 2,776.56                 
TimberLAN IT services ALL 4,040.00                 
TL Ventures Properties LLC Developer deposit refund ADM 7,377.55                 
T-Mobile Cell phone PD 32.91                       

124

Item #9.



Vendor Description Dept Amount
Town of Mead Broadband ADM 850.75                     
TruGreen Chemlawn Chemicals PW 3,489.43                 
UC Health Medical Group Lab testing PD 971.33                     
United Power, Inc Utilities PW 773.55                     
USA Bluebook Supplies PW 2,699.24                 
Utility Notification Center of Colorado Locates PW 1,003.60                 
Utility Refunds Utility refunds PW 1,667.44                 
Vector Disease Control Mosquito spraying PW 3,524.74                 
Verizon Wireless Telephone ALL 4,273.61                 
Waste Connections of Colorado Inc. Trash services ALL 86,601.01               
Weld County Clerk & Recorder Recording deposit/fees ADM 600.00                     
Weld County Dept of Public Health Lab services PW 650.50                     
Western Midstream Temporary Construction Easement PW 8,000.00                 
Whispir Newsletter & phone out ADM 340.40                     
Whiteside's Uniforms PW 204.95                     
Wickham Tractor Co. Vehicle maintenance PW 10,274.20               
Windstream Telephone/internet ALL 1,491.37                 
Workwell Occupational Medicine Employment screening ADM 90.00                       
Xcel Energy Utilities ALL 82,169.70               
YMCA of Northern Colorado YMCA DOLA Grant ADM 12,500.00               
Yost Cleaning Monthly cleaning service PW 2,804.00                 

3,015,184.48         

125

Item #9.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

CC:  Town Staff 

  Local Media 

 

SUBJECT: Town Manager’s Report 

 

    

Upcoming Town Council Meetings & Work Sessions – If there are topics that the Council would like 

staff to schedule for discussion, please let me know. The following topics are recommended for Council 

discussion (all meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers unless otherwise indicated): 

 

 10/17/2022 – Regular Council Meeting 

 10/24/2022 –Work Session (6:00 p.m.) 

 11/07/2022 – Regular Council Meeting 

 11/22/2022 – Regular Council Meeting 

 

 

Administration, Finance, Planning, & Human Resources 

 Organizational Structure – As part of having our new Deputy Town Manager position on board 

and oriented we are restructuring the reporting functions within the organization. Accordingly, 

the Deputy Town Manager will oversee the operations of the internal services which will include: 

Communication, Finance, Human Resources, and Town Clerk. The Town Manager will oversee 

the operations of the external services which include: Economic Development, Planning, Police, 

Public Works, and Utilities. 

 ICMA Conference – The Town & Deputy Managers attended the ICMA Conference last week in 

Columbus, OH. This provided great learning, professional development, and networking 

opportunities both within the profession and for the organization. 

 Strategic Planning – Staff continues to move forward on the Town’s Strategic Plan. A short 

overview of that progress will be presented to Council for feedback in an upcoming meeting. 

 Liquor Licensing – NorthStar Liquor has applied for a Tasting Permit; Mod-Pizza and 7-Eleven 

Store #34316A renewal applications have been submitted to the State for final approval.  

126

Item #10.



 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 Downtown Johnstown Branding & Wayfinding Project Update – Staff continues to attend Town 

events to gather feedback from the community and encourage residents/visitors to take the 

community survey which closes end of September. Staff plans to present a comprehensive 

overview of the community feedback received to Council in October and discuss the next steps 

which will lead in brand design for the downtown corridor.  

 Business of the Month – Trek Bicycles was awarded Business of the Month for September. They 

are located within the 2534 Shopping Center.  

 Event Parklet Program – The event parklets that the Town designed and ordered via the CDOT 

Main Street Revitalization Grant program were used for the first time during the Fall Fest Event 

hosted by the JDDA. The parklets were setup and taken down the same day by the Public Works 

team. The parklets will continue to be available for any public event held within the downtown 

corridor when streets are closed per the direction of Town Council.  

 Community Engagement – The Town’s Touch a Truck event on September 17 was a hit. In 

addition to Public Works, Communications, and Police, community partners Front Range Fire 

Rescue was there as well as Waste Connections and Weld RE5J Transportation. There was a 

significant attendance of the event and parents and kids of all ages enjoyed touching and sitting in 

all of the trucks and meeting the personnel that drive the trucks throughout the neighborhood. In 

addition to the Touch a Truck, the JDDA’s Fall Fest was on September 18 and was well attended. 

The Town table also had a steady flow of residents and visitors to ask questions and engage. The 

Town was asked to also participate in the Thompson River Ranch Fall Festival happening on 

October 1. Community engagement events are important for the community because they 

encourage a steady and candid flow of information between Town staff and residents. 

 
 Conference Panelist, Communications – Jamie Barker, Communications Manager was asked to, 

and recently was a, speaker on a panel for the 2022 SIPA User Conference about websites and 

community engagement. The conference was well attended by state and local governments and 

provided the Communications Team an opportunity to learn from others related to digital 

engagement as well as learn a bit more about ADA and website accessibility opportunities.  

 Land Use Neighborhood Meetings – A neighborhood meeting was hosted for the proposed 

Revere North Filing No 1 subdivision, north of Veterans Pkwy (CR 50/14) and east of High 

127

Item #10.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

Plains Blvd. Several property owners appeared and discussed the development with Forestar, the 

Applicant. Planning Staff is working to schedule a meeting in mid-to-late October for the 

property directly south of Veterans Pkwy, to be known as the High Plains Estates PUD, seeking 

ODP approvals. 

 Ledge Rock Center (LRC) – The LRC team continues to work diligently with Town Staff to 

review plans and required agreements for the master (Filing No 2) public improvements, utility 

extensions, proposed multifamily site, and proposed single family subdivision areas. Several 

permits have been approved for issuance to allow early construction on three commercial 

structures, as well as sanitary sewer construction in certain areas. 

 Conference – Kim Meyer, Planning & Development Director attended the Colorado Chapter of 

the American Planning Association conference this past week. 

 2023 Budget – Work is continuing on the 2023 Budget. The first public hearing is planned for 

November 7, 2022. 

 2022 Certification of Value – Both Weld and Larimer Counties have issued preliminary 

Certification of Valuation reports for 2022.  For Weld County, the preliminary valuation is 

$177,364,530, an increase of $11,188,900.  For Larimer County, the preliminary valuation is 

$199,376,572, an increase of $20,977,118.  The table below provides the preliminary data for 

both counties combined: 

  

 
 

Assessed values are calculated by multiplying the actual value of the property by the assessment 

rate.  To calculate the projected property tax revenues, the assessed value is multiplied by the mill 

levy, which is 22.147 mills.  Based on the existing mill levy, projected property tax revenues for 

2023 are approximately $4.2 million for Weld County and $4.7 million for Larimer County. 

 

House Bill (HB) 21-1312 for exemption for personal property accounts will impact the Town 

with a loss of assessed valuation of $363,932.  Per HB 21-1312, the associated revenues from the 

valuation totaling $8,715 are to be reimbursed by the state. 

 

Police Department 

Assessed Values 2021 2022

Growth in

2022

% Growth

in 2022

% of Total 

Tax

Pd. By each

Vacant Land 10,027,573 11,855,124 1,827,551 18.23% 3.15%

Residential 161,826,803 162,639,543 812,740 0.50% 43.17%

Commercial 118,212,023 122,474,158 4,262,135 3.61% 32.51%

Industrial 24,596,696 25,169,645 572,949 2.33% 6.68%

Agricultural 1,154,054 1,298,627 144,573 12.53% 0.34%

Oil & Gas 20,990,116 43,508,666 22,518,550 107.28% 11.55%

State Assessed 7,767,819 9,795,339 2,027,520 26.10% 2.60%

Exempt 15,897,974 18,091,464 2,193,490 13.80% 0.00%

Total 360,473,058 394,832,566 34,359,508 9.53% 100.00%

Total minus Exempt 344,575,084 376,741,102 32,166,018 9.33% 100.00%

128

Item #10.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

Training 

 

 Driver Training – All sworn officers completed their annual POST required driving training at 

the Northern Colorado Law Enforcement Training Center. Officers received training on the 

POST driving course and did high speed lane changes, as well as all emergency response internal 

policy updates.  

 Field Training Officer – Officer Olds attended Field Training Officer School. Officer Olds will 

be added to our cadre of Field Training Officers that will help train new recruits.  

 Crime Analyst Training – Evidence Technician Christy Adair completed criminal analyst 

training. She will be utilized to monitor and analyze crime trend data for release to shift 

supervisors for deployment decisions. She will also be able to assist the Detective Division with 

analysis of electronic data, open-source intel, and target identification. 

 Legal Updates Training- The entire department received legal updates and case law training from 

the Larimer County District Attorney’s Office. 

 

Public Works and Utilities 

 Public Works Inspections (9/12/22 through 9/19/22): 

o Staff inspected approximately 6,371 feet of new water line, 5,586 feet of new sewer line, 

124 new water meter pits, and over 5 miles of new roads.  

 Public Works Streets Operations (9/12/22 through 9/19/22): 

o Cleaned over 600 feet of storm drains in Rolling Hills and Carlson Farms 

o Mowed over 130 acres of parks, greenbelts, and Right of Way. 

o Graded 10 miles of dirt roads (CR 46, 44, 42, 20C, 3). 

o Filled over 900 lbs of cold patch potholes. 

o Prepared for 8 funerals. 

o Repaired/replaced 8 roadway signs. 

o Completed 27 miscellaneous work orders. 

 Public Works Fleet (9/12 through 9/16): 

o Completed vehicle emission testing for the month of September. 

o Completed 6 service calls (4 dead batteries, two flat tires). 

o Completed 4 regular services (oil changes). 

o Completed 7 miscellaneous on-demand repairs. 

 Treatment 

o September Water Treatment Plant flows  

 High: 5.198 MGD  

 Low: 2.949 MGD 

 Average: 4.249 MGD 

o Lonetree lake levels are low and seeing increased Geosmin/MIB 

o Low Point SBR basins are struggling to treat wastewater. Operators are evaluating 

solutions to increase the air in the basins. 

 Utilities Sewer Collection & Water Distribution 

o Locates: 369 curb stops & 20,500 ft of water & sewer mains. 

o Meters: Installed 14 & troubleshooting zero use meter reads 

o Painted fire hydrant meters bright yellow for quick identification. 

o Monthly shut offs: 26 

 Utilities GIS assets physically mapped 

o GPS points collected (water valves, manholes, etc.): 1,937 

o Miles of water lines added to GIS: 22.2 

129

Item #10.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

o Miles of wastewater lines added to GIS: 7.8 

o GPS focus on Pioneer Ridge assets shown below 

 
 Raw Water Transmission – The project has been awarded to Civil Resources.  Town Staff is 

working with Civil Resources to gather information and finalize the contract. 

 South Water Tank – Contractor has finished painting the outside of the tank, including the logo, 

and continue to coat the inside of the tank. Tank crews are beginning to mobilize equipment to 

raise the tank in early October. 

 South Water Tank Distribution Pipeline – Project pipe crews are focused on completing the 

sections of waterline between WCR40 and WCR42 on the west side of WCR17 including the 

installation of a PRV vault. Once complete, the crews will be moving back to WCR13 to install 

mainline pipe. 

 Water Treatment Plant Expansion – The design engineer is currently working on preparing a 40% 

design package for the membrane/GAC system. Town Staff is continuing to work with the design 

engineer and the owner’s representative as the design progresses. 

 Central Interceptor Phase 1 – The contractor is wrapping up some small items while collection 

and distribution staff is working with them to optimize the performance of the lift station. 

 Central Interceptor Phase 2 – Contractor is installing sewer main along WCR46 between CR 15 

and CR 13. The bore crew has completed the bore under CR13 and will be mobilizing to 

complete the bore under the railroad tracks which is necessary to abandon the Clearview Lift 

Station. 

130

Item #10.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 North Interceptor –The contractor has begun preparing the site for the new lift station and 

providing project submittals to the Town and the design engineer for review to be able to procure 

equipment/materials.  The Project Team is working with Weld County to obtain all necessary 

permits for the new lift station. 

 Low Point Sewer Expansion – Masonry work continues for the new MBR building and will 

continue throughout the site in the coming months.  The contractor is continuing to install process 

piping and backfilling operations around the new buildings.  Equipment will start to be installed 

in early October in the MBR building. 

 Central Plant Design – The Design Engineer is working with CDPHE on the Site Location and 

Chemical Modification approvals.  Town Staff continues to review the design and provide 

direction to the Design Engineer.  In addition, Town Staff has published an RFP to select a 

CMAR firm to start reviewing the design plans and prepare a GMP.  Town Staff anticipates 

awarding the CMAR Design Services in October. 

 Old Town Drainage – Old Town project is complete other than a few final punch list items.   

 Charlotte Street Improvements – The Notice to Proceed was issued to the Contractor and the 

project kick-off is scheduled for September 29.   

 County Road 17/Parish Ave Mill and Overlay – The project moving forward with great progress. 

The Town center phase of the project is complete. Crews will be installing pavement from 40-46 

½ over the next two weeks and then will focus on the section from 46 ½ to Johnstown Center 

Drive.   

 Traffic Signal Design for Carlson Blvd and State Highway 60 – Design for the traffic signal is at 

90% design level and being reviewed by CDOT for final comments. Town Staff met with CDOT 

Local Agency personnel to discuss the project and an IGA from CDOT is forthcoming for 

Council’s consideration. The IGA is required as part of the MMOF funding. Once the IGA is 

approved, the Town will be able to purchase the traffic signal poles that have a 4–6-month lead 

time.  

 State Highway Feasibility Study – The Town and consultant met to go over preliminary design 

options for SH 60 from 1-25 to County Road 19. The design options will be presented to the 

Council for feedback on October 24 during a work session.  

 Little Thompson River Trail- Design for the trail is 95% complete and final approval from CDOT 

is eminent. Town staff and the design firm are currently working on the Request for Proposal 

documents and working on a release date for the proposal, anticipated in November.   

 Chip seal – Chip seal for portions of County Road 13 and County Road 15 are complete and 

signing and striping have been installed.  

131

Item #10.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Amend Water Treatment Plant Design Agreement with Burns & 

McDonell 

 

ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Approval of Addendums 1, 2 and 3 to the Water 

Treatment Plant Design Agreement with Burns & McDonell 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  1. Addendum 1 

 2. Addendum 2 

 3. Addendum 3 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Ellen Hilbig, Utilities Director 

 

    

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

  

Enclosed for your review and consideration is a request to approve design Addendums 1, 2, and 3 

to the project scope for the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) design that was awarded to the 

engineering consultant, Burns & McDonnell, during the September 8, 2021 Council Meeting. The 

additional design services to the WTP project scope result in a total additional cost of $1,145,495 

to the project.  

 

Addendum 1 totals $407,937 and consists of two scope change items; adding additional property 

to the site design and design of an on-site facility to process solids generated during treatment. The 

design team determined in order to provide room for future plant expansions and to maintain plant 

operations during construction it was necessary for the Town to obtain and design for an additional 

6.5 acres of property. After discussions with the Town’s engineering consultant for the Central 

Wastewater Treatment Plant project it was determined the volume and density of the solids 

generated by the water treatment processes were not accounted for in the design loadings of the 

new wastewater plant. This required the scope of the water treatment plant design to be expanded 

to incorporate a solids handling solution. 

 

Addendum 2 consists of unscoped cost estimating work performed by Burns & McDonnell’s 

construction team on the WTP design in order to provide a detailed cost basis for the design and 

132

Item #11.



 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

resulted in an addition of $119,217 to the project. The work consisted of developing a project cost 

model and providing construction level cost information for the three design options presented to 

Council at the August 29 work session. This information was also used to develop the Town’s 

budget for the construction of the Water Treatment Plant.  

 

Addendum 3 represents the scope change required to shift from the original design of Ozone- 

Biologically Activate Filtration (BAF) to Membranes and Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) 

resulting in a total additional cost of $618,791. The information presented at the August 29  work 

session identified that based on the water quality data collected, that the Town’s reported levels of 

the taste and odor compounds Geosmin/MIB exceeded the treatment level supported by Ozone 

BAF requiring a transition in treatment to a Membrane GAC system. This change was made in 

order to guarantee taste and odor treatment and remove the potential for a taste and odor incidents 

to Town residents. The new design approach impacts schedule resulting in an extension of the 

project design completion to July of 2023. The Town and Burns & McDonnell are working 

together to streamline the schedule and incorporate cost savings where possible. 

 

The 3 separate addendums resulted in a total additional cost of $1,145,945 to the Water Treatment 

Plant design. The project will also have approximately $350,000 of unused additional service 

request funds that were budgeted for in the Original Contract. These funds were allocated for pilot 

testing of various treatment processes to ensure the optimal WTP. Staff is requesting these funds 

remain available, but allocated for contingency* with authorization of use by the Town Manager.  

 

Total Design Expenses: 

1. Original Contract $2,890,722.00 (including pilot testing) 

2. Origianl Contract Credit   ($350,000.00)* 

3. Addendum 1    $407,937.00 

4. Addendum 2    $119,217.00 

5. Addendum 3    $618,791.00 

Subtotal $3,686,667.00 

Contingency      $350,000.00* 

Total       $4,036,667.00  

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

Addenda issued per approved Contract documents 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE:  

 

The total project expenses to date are $1,737,963 leaving a balance of $1,037,018 in the 2022 fiscal 

year for design. Sufficient funds are budgeted in 2022 to cover the added design costs from the 

133

Item #11.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

addendum. The FY 2023 preliminary budget already presented to Council will need to be updated 

to account for the remaining funds necessary to complete design services for the project. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve addendums 1, 2 & 3 to the Water Treatment Plant 

design agreement with Burns & McDonnell for a total cost not to exceed $1,145,945 and 

authorize the Town Manager to approve the use of the $350,000 as needed for contingency 

funds. 

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

For Approval: I move to approve addendums 1, 2 & 3 to the Water Treatment Plant design 

agreement with Burns & McDonnell for a total cost not to exceed $1,145,945 and authorize the 

Town Manager to approve the use of the $350,000 as needed for contingency funds. 

 

For Denial: I move to deny the design addendum 1, 2 & 3 and have Staff reevaluate the design 

delivery method for the project. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

134

Item #11.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 7 pages, referred 

to in and part of the Agreement between Owner 

and Engineer for Professional Services dated 

August 17, 2021.  

 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 

Amendment No. 01 

 

The Effective Date of this Amendment is: September 28, 2022. 

 

Background Data  

  

 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement: August 17, 2021 

 

 Owner:   Town of Johnstown, Colorado 

 

 Engineer:  Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. 

 

 Project:  Johnstown Water Treatment Plant Design 

   

Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 

 
____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

_X__ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: 

 

Scope of Services  

 

Engineer shall provide the following services as summarized below and described in detail following:  

1. Design of WTP expansion on the adjacent southern property 

a. Expand scope of topographic survey 

b. Expand scope of geotechnical investigation 

c. Expand scope of utility test holes 

d. Improve eastern access road from County Road 13 to the existing WTP property 

e. Site improvements to the southern property, including grading, drainage, stormwater 

management and access to Ballantine Boulevard.  

2. Design of Residuals Building to provide storage of pretreatment solids and dewatering in 

lieu of solids discharge to the sanitary sewer 

a. Float pumps in the existing DAF Building 

135

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 2 

b. Sludge storage tanks with mixing 

c. Dewatering feed pumps 

d. Polymer system 

e. Dewatering equipment 

f. Solids conveyor 

TASK SERIES 1100 – SOUTHERN PROPERTY 

 

Task 1101 – Topographic Survey 

Conduct topographic survey requirements, as required by Engineer, to facilitate the detailed design of the 

expanded WTP on the existing WTP property and southern property (approximately 17.7 acres). Includes 

land survey plat, private utility located and title binder for one parcel.  

 

Task 1102 - Geotechnical Investigations 

Conduct geotechnical investigation of the existing WTP and southern properties, based on seventeen (17) 

boreholes, to develop foundation and pavement design recommendations.  

 

Task 1103 - Utility Locates & Test Holes 

Engineer shall sub-contract for utility locates and test holes after site layout confirmed in preliminary design. 

Prepare utility report compatible with ASCE Class B. Allowance for up to thirty (30) test holes.    

 

Task 1104 – Access Road to County Road 13 

Engineer shall prepare detailed design for a new access road from the existing WTP to County Road 13 to 

facilitate temporary construction access and permanent access to the existing WTP, minimize impact to the 

existing cemetery and improve durability. The scope includes eight additional civil drawings (initial, interim, 

and final erosion and sediment control, enlarged site plan, control point plan and table, sections and profiles, 

stormwater plan and landscaping), expansion of the stormwater management plan, and permitting 

coordination with Weld County.  

 

Task 1105 – Grading and Drainage 

Engineer shall prepare detailed design for the expanded WTP on the existing and southern properties. 

Includes site grading, drainage, stormwater improvements, yard piping and site access roads on southern 

property. The scope includes twelve additional civil drawings (initial, interim, and final erosion and sediment 

control, enlarged site plan, control point plan and table, sections and profiles, grading plans, yard piping 

plans, roadway sections and profiles, stormwater plan and landscaping), expansion of the stormwater 

management plan, and permitting coordination for the new access road to Ballantine Boulevard.   

 

TASK SERIES 1200 – RESIDUALS BUILDING  

 

Task 1201 – Project, Risk and Resource Management, Schedule, and Budget Controls 

Engineer shall provide project management services for the Residuals Building design phase includes all 

project coordination between the Owner and the team members. The Engineer will monitor project status, 

monitor project schedule, monitor project deliverables, and coordinate resources including sub-Engineers. 

The Engineer will prepare a risk register and a decision log at project initiation and maintain throughout the 

course of the design phase. The Engineer will utilize our internal accounting systems to track budget and 

manage project scope.  

 

  

136

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 3 

Task 1202 - Prepare Conceptual Design 

Engineer shall determine flow and loading for waste flows from the improved pretreatment process. 

Engineer shall prepare preliminary sizing of float pumping, sludge storage tanks, dewatering feed pumps, 

polymer system and dewatering presses. Engineer shall evaluate annual operating costs for up to three 

options (wet hauling, contract hauling and on-site dewatering) to assist the Town with the selection of the 

preferred alternative. On-site dewatering was selected during the concept design. Engineer shall prepare 

conceptual design (15% complete) of the Residual Building and appurtenances.  

 

Engineer shall advance the Residuals Building conceptual design, based on Owner feedback during Design 

Workshop(s). Conceptual design includes design drawings, specifications, and updates to the Basis of Design 

Report (BODR)  to show the selected treatment train layout, structure sizing, utilities, proposed structures, 

and initial process & instrumentation diagrams. Conceptual design package to represent 15% complete 

design. Engineer to develop opinion of probable construction and annual operating costs, construction 

schedule and phases.  

 

Based on the 15% design documents, Engineer shall prepare an AACE Class 4 engineer’s opinion of probable 

cost for the Residuals Building. This cost opinion will be submitted along with the design documents for 

review and comment by the Owner. The cost opinion will be based on recent bid tabulation information, 

historical cost data, and discussions with local suppliers and contractors. Assumptions will be included for 

reference. 

 

Conceptual design documents to be submitted in PDF format.  

 

Task 1203 – Sampling and Analysis  

Engineer shall collect and ship samples of pretreatment float to up to four dewatering vendors. Samples will 

be collected during the DAF performance test using the proposed expanded WTP chemistry (ferric sulfate 

as the primary coagulant). Vendors to assess the performance of their proposed dewatering system(s). 

Engineer shall collect and transfer float samples to an analytical laboratory. Engineer shall assess laboratory 

results, summarize vendor-supplied results, and propose design criteria for the Residuals Building at Design 

Workshop(s).  

 

Task 1204 - Develop Preliminary Design 

Engineer shall develop a set of schematic (30%) plans for the scope listed above. The 30% plans will consist 

of civil, architectural, structural, process, mechanical, electrical, and pipeline drawings necessary to convey 

the intended scope of improvements. Engineer will provide a PDF of the 30% plans (11”x17”). The plans will 

be prepared in accordance with Engineer’s and/or sub-consultant’s drafting standards.  

This task includes the development of draft specifications for the Residuals Building. The Engineer shall 

finalize the process flow diagram for the overall WTP, including the Residuals Building. The process flow 

diagram shall indicate the overall process flow but shall not include most valves or the number of equipment 

items. The Engineer will finalize the unit process sizing and include the information in a process design sheet 

in the 30% drawings. 

 

The Engineer will finalize the hydraulics for the Residuals Building, including float water, potable water, raw 

water (spray down), decant, drain, overflow, pressate return and waste. The Engineer will coordinate with 

the Owner to finalize the hydraulics and coordinate tie-ins to the existing DAF Building.  

 

  

137

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 4 

Task 1205 - Prepare Procurement Request for Proposals Packages 

Engineer shall prepare issued for bid documents for the above Residuals equipment packages. Engineer shall 

provide front-end procurement documents in their preferred format and facilitate the solicitation and 

receipt of proposals, based on an assumed Design-Build approach.  

 

Engineer shall develop procurement packages for dewatering vendors to evaluate and select the preferred 

dewatering technology. Engineer shall use the available data, collected during the pretreatment pilot, to 

develop minimum performance criteria for dewatering selection (design flows and loads, percent dry solids, 

polymer usage, pressate flows). Engineer shall develop minimum qualifications for vendor acceptance. The 

dewatering equipment will be packaged as float pumps, mixers, and dewatering equipment (dewatering 

feed pumps, polymer system, dewatering presses, and solids conveyor).  

 

Task 1206 - Procurement Period Support 

Engineer shall support the Owner by responding in writing to questions received from equipment vendors.  

 

Task 1207 - Evaluation & Negotiation of Procurement Packages 

Engineer shall assist the Owner with evaluation of the received equipment package bids. Engineer shall 

facilitate a selection of the preferred equipment supplier, based on monetary and non-monetary criteria. 

This scope of work assumes a Design-Build approach, with the Design-Builder assuming responsibility for 

procurement of the equipment packages after selection by the Owner and Engineer.  

 

Task 1208 - Submittal Review 

Engineer shall review compliance submittals from equipment suppliers. Includes initial submittal review, 

coordination meetings and resubmittal review.  

 

Task 1209 - Prepare 60% Design 

Engineer shall provide drawings at the 60% design level for the Residuals Building and its associated facilities. 

The 60% drawings shall include drawings included in the 30% design package, brought to 60%, and additional 

detail drawings that are needed for final design. The plans will be prepared in accordance with Engineer’s 

and/or subconsultant’s drafting standards. The Engineer will develop a set of 60% specifications, consisting 

of draft specifications from all required engineering disciplines. Engineer will provide a PDF of the 60% plans 

(11”x17”) and specifications. 

 

Task 1210 - Prepare 90% Design  

Engineer shall provide plans at the 90% design level for the Residuals Building and its associated facilities. 

The 90% drawings shall include 60% drawings, brought to 90%, and additional detail drawings that are 

needed for final design. Input from the Owner, reviewing agencies or Design-Builder at Design Workshops 

or other meetings will be incorporated into the 90% design were appropriate.  Engineer will provide a PDF 

of the 90% plans (11”x17”). The plans will be prepared in accordance with Engineer’s and/or subconsultant’s 

drafting standards. Engineer shall develop a set of 90% specifications, consisting of specifications from 

required engineering disciplines. Engineer will provide a PDF of the 90% specifications.  

 

Task 1211 – Permitting Support  

Engineer shall coordinate with authorities having jurisdiction, including response to comments on the initial 

submittals, submit updated documentation for final issue of permits.  

 

  

138

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 5 

Task 1212 - Prepare Construction Documents  

Engineer will incorporate any comments from the 90% design documents from the Owner and reviewing 

authorities into the Issued for Construction documents. The issued for construction documents shall be 

signed and sealed by a professional engineer in the state of Colorado.  

 

 

Agreement Summary (Basic Services): 

 

Original agreement amount: $2,059,442 

Net change for prior amendments $0 

This amendment amount: $407,937 

Adjusted Agreement amount: $2,467,379 

  

Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable) 60 days 

  

 

  

139

Item #11.



The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C.

Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this, or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.

OWNER: ENGINEE

^ G/vvv

By: By:
Print
name:

Print
name:

Title: Title:

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 6

140

Item #11.



Town of Johnstown

Water Treatment Plant Expansion from 5 to 12.5 mgd

Amendment 01 - Work Breakdown Structure and Fee Schedule

Project Manager Quality Control Lead Process Process Structural Architectural Civil Mechanical

Electrical, 

Instrumentation & 

Controls

Construction
CAD / Designer Fire Protection

Pugh Schaefer Lundgren
Kurtz

Wetz
Kienholz

Dalglish

Lang

Brothers

Tessitore
Olsen

Patwari

Baker

Kuntz

Waddell
Aryan

Ginsburg

DeGroff

Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Direct Cost

TASK SERIES 1100 - Southern Property

1101 - Additional Topographic Survey 0 $0 $0 -$                   

1102 - Additional Geotechnical Investigation 4 8 12 $3,156 $130 $20,944 24,230$             

1103 - Additional Utility Test Holes 4 8 12 $2,298 $90 $10,579 12,967$             

1104 - Access Road to County Road 13 8 80 88 $16,168 $650 16,818$             

1105 - Grading and Drainage 4 300 304 $53,740 $2,150 55,890$             

Sub-Total Series 1100 20 0 0 8 8 0 380 0 0 0 0 0 416 $75,362 $3,020 $31,523 $109,905

TASK SERIES 1200 - Residuals Building 

1201 - Project, Risk and Resource Management, Schedule and Budget Controls 40 20 60 $13,920 $560 14,480$             

1202 - Prepare Conceptual Design (15%) 20 2 8 80 32 20 8 40 210 $40,561 $1,620 42,181$             

1203 - Sampling and Analysis 4 20 24 $3,760 $150 $3,000 6,910$               

1204 - Develop Preliminary Design (30%) 20 2 10 80 24 24 21 16 40 237 $46,613 $1,860 48,473$             

1205 - Prepare Procurement Request for Proposal Package 2 10 5 17 $3,365 $130 3,495$               

1206 - Procurement Period Support 2 4 10 16 $2,742 $110 2,852$               

1207 - Evaluation & Negotiation of Procurement Package 4 2 6 8 5 25 $5,211 $210 5,421$               

1208 - Submittal Review 4 30 4 5 8 51 $9,625 $390 10,015$             

1209 - Prepare 60% Design 20 2 16 120 32 20 4 21 24 5 40 20 324 $63,371 $2,530 65,901$             

1210 - Prepare 90% Design 16 2 12 120 40 40 4 25 30 5 60 20 374 $73,673 $2,950 76,623$             

1211 - Permitting Support 8 8 $2,120 $80 2,200$               

1212 - Prepare Construction Documents 4 2 4 24 8 8 2 8 16 20 96 $18,732 $750 19,482$             

Sub-Total Series 1200 140 10 80 500 140 112 10 80 110 20 200 40 1,442 $283,691 $11,340 $3,000 $298,031

Project Subtotals 160 10 80 508 148 112 390 80 110 20 200 40 1,858 $359,054 $14,360 $34,523 $407,937

Project Total $407,937

Notes:

Activity

BMcD

Total Labor
Expenses

Sub- 

Consultants Total Cost

Prepared by BMcD 9/28/2022 Page 1

141

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 4 pages, referred 

to in and part of the Agreement between Owner 

and Engineer for Professional Services dated 

August 17, 2021.  

 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 

Amendment No. 02 

 

The Effective Date of this Amendment is: September 28, 2022. 

 

Background Data  

  

 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement: August 17, 2021 

 

 Owner:   Town of Johnstown, Colorado 

 

 Engineer:  Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. 

 

 Project: Johnstown Water Treatment Plant Design 

   

Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 

 
____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

_X__ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: 
 

Scope of Services  

 

Task 306 – Preliminary Design Preconstruction Activities: 

Design-Builder will prepare an opinion of probable project costs.  Accuracy of this opinion of probable cost 

shall conform to AACE’s Recommended Practice 17R-97, Class 3. Design-Builder will prepare an estimated 

project schedule including design and preconstruction activities/sequencing. Design-Builder will provide 

Owner with a listing of planned equipment and material packages and construction installation packages 

that are planned to be utilized for competitive bidding. Design-Builder will provide Owner with a listing of 

potential suppliers and subcontractors.  

 

  

142

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 2 

Tasks include:  

• Prepare initial subcontracting plan identifying the construction bid packages and their associated 

scopes of work. 

• Begin the process of identifying potential bidders for construction bid packages. 

• Prepare initial procurement plan identifying the equipment and material bid packages and their 

associated scopes of work. 

• Begin the process of identifying potential bidders for each of the equipment and material bid 

packages. 

• Perform constructability and commercial reviews of equipment bid package technical 

specifications. 

• Begin preparation of Division 01 specifications for bid packages. 

•  Prepare a project schedule for the engineering and preconstruction activities including design 

deliverables, known permitting activities, subcontractor bidding, equipment, and material bidding. 

• Preparation of an opinion of probable construction costs based on the 15% design deliverables. 

• Constructability reviews of the 15% design deliverables. 

• Present 15% opinion of probable construction costs. Provided credit for engineer’s 15% opinion of 

probable construction cost (Task 212).  

• Preparation of an opinion of probable construction costs based on the 30% design deliverables.  

Reduced effort per Owner request.   

• Constructability reviews of the 30% design deliverables. 

• Attend 30% design review meetings. 

• Present 30% opinion of probable construction costs. 

 

 

 

 

Agreement Summary (Basic Services): 

 

Original agreement amount: $2,059,442 

Net change for prior amendments $   407,937 

This amendment amount: $   119,217 

Adjusted Agreement amount: $2,586,596 

  

Change in time for services (days or date, as 

applicable) 
25 days 

  

 
  

143

Item #11.



The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C.

Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this, or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.

OWNER: ENGINEER:

By:
Print
name:

By:
Print
name:

Title: Title:

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 3

144

Item #11.



Town of Johnstown, CO

WTP Expansion Project

Amendment 2 - Work Breakdown Structure and Fee Schedule Rev 1

Construction  

Manager

Construction 

Coordinator

Project 

Controls
Procurement Estimating

Kuntz Pearce/Chavira Hess
Johnson

Steward
Wadell

Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Direct Cost

TASK SERIES 100 - 0% - 15%

Prepare 15% Estimate 80 80 $21,200 $796 21,996$              

Credit for Engineer's 15% Opinion of Probable Cost (Task 212)1 -16 -24 -16 -56 -$11,216 ($557) (11,773)$            

Sub-Total Series 100 -16 -24 -16 0 80 24 $9,984 $239 $0 $10,223

TASK SERIES 200 - 15% - 30%

Prepare 30% Estimate (Reduced Effort) 24 290 314 $83,138 $3,124 86,262$              

Constructability Reviews 8 8 $2,096 $80 2,176$                

Construction Planning & Scheduling 40 40 80 $19,760 $796 20,556$              

Sub-Total Series 200 72 0 40 0 290 402 $104,994 $4,000 $0 $108,994

Project Subtotals 56 -24 24 0 370 426 $114,978 $4,239 $0 $119,217

Project Total $119,217

Notes:

1. Assumes similar hourly rates to engineering design team

Activity

BMcD

Total Labor
Expenses

Total Cost

Sub- 

Consultants

Prepared by BMcD 9/28/2022 Page 1
145

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 1 

This is EXHIBIT K, consisting of 14 pages, referred 

to in and part of the Agreement between Owner 

and Engineer for Professional Services dated 

August 17, 2021.  

 

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT 

Amendment No. 03 

 

The Effective Date of this Amendment is: September 29, 2022. 

 

Background Data  

  

 Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement: August 17, 2021 

 

 Owner:   Town of Johnstown, Colorado 

 

 Engineer:  Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. 

 

 Project: Johnstown Water Treatment Plant Design 

   

Nature of Amendment: [Check those that are applicable and delete those that are inapplicable.] 

 
____ Additional Services to be performed by Engineer 

_X__ Modifications to services of Engineer 

____ Modifications to responsibilities of Owner 

____ Modifications of payment to Engineer 

____ Modifications to time(s) for rendering services 

____ Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

Description of Modifications: 
 

Scope of Services  

 

Engineer shall provide the following services as summarized below and described in detail following:  

 

1. Revise the existing 30% complete design package from a treatment train of ozone and 

biologically active filtration (O3/BAF) to a treatment train of membrane filtration and 

granular activated carbon contactors (MF/GAC), per the attached Exhibits.   

a. Modify the Blending Vault 

b. Modify the Pretreatment Building improvements and include a sodium permanganate 

system 

c. Revise the entire Treatment Building from O3/BAF to MF/GAC 

d. Modification of the proposed electrical distribution system 

146

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 2 

2. Update procurement documents 

3. Conduct a series of MF/GAC Design Workshops to evaluate, collaborate and make 

determinations on the project scope. 

4. Revise the work product prepared to date on MF/GAC and decisions made during the 

MF/GAC Design Workshops. No formal design submittal until the 60% milestone.  

5. Site investigations 

6. Provide credit for Task Series 600 – CMAR Selection & Collaboration tasks, as performed by 

the Owner.  

TASK SERIES 1300 – 40% DESIGN AS MF/GAC 

 

Task 1301 – Project, Risk and Resource Management, Schedule, and Budget Controls 

Engineer shall provide project management services for the revised preliminary design package includes 

project coordination between the Owner and the team members. The Engineer will monitor project status, 

monitor project schedule, monitor project deliverables, and coordinate resources including sub-Engineers. 

The Engineer will maintain the action, decision, potential change, and risk register throughout the course of 

the design phase. The Engineer will utilize our internal accounting systems to track budget and manage 

project scope.  

 

Task 1304 - Develop Preliminary MF/GAC Design  

Engineer shall develop the preliminary designs for the scope listed above.  The preliminary MF/GAC design 

will consist of civil, architectural, structural, process, mechanical, electrical, and pipeline details to convey 

the intended scope of improvements. Engineer will provide interim, progress prints in PDF format of the 

preliminary MF/GAC design in accordance with Engineer’s and/or sub-consultant’s drafting standards. No 

formal drawing set will be produced for the preliminary MF/GAC design.  

 

Updated drawings or exhibits include:  

a. Revised civil site plans  

i. Access roads 

ii. Grading and drainage 

iii. Yard piping 

b. Updated structural drawings 

iv. Create new Treatment Building models 

v. Plans and sections 

vi. Details 

c. Update architectural drawings 

vii. Create new Treatment Building models 

viii. Code review and egress plans 

ix. Elevations 

x. Plans and sections 

xi. Details  

xii. Isometric Views 

d. Updated plumbing, heating, and ventilation drawings 

xiii. Create new Treatment Building models 

e. Update process drawings 

xiv. Design criteria 

xv. Hydraulic profile 

147

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 3 

xvi. Equipment, pipe, and valve schedules 

xvii. Modify the existing Blending Vault model 

xviii. Create new Treatment Building models 

xix. Modify the existing Residuals Building as a single story 

f. Update electrical drawings  

xx. One-line diagrams 

xxi. Load calculations 

xxii. Demolition drawings 

xxiii.  Network architecture 

xxiv. Process & instrumentation diagrams 

This task includes updating the draft specifications, where affected by MF/GAC.  The Engineer shall finalize 

the process flow diagram for the overall WTP as MF/GAC. The process flow diagram shall indicate the overall 

process flow but shall not include most valves or the number of equipment items. The Engineer will finalize 

the unit process sizing and include the information in a process design sheet, suitable for inclusion in the 

60% complete design package. 

  

Task 1305 – MF/GAC Design Workshops  

Engineer shall schedule, prepare meeting materials, and host a series of MF/GAC Design Workshops at the 

Owner’s offices. The MF/GAC Design Workshops will be used to present design concepts, receive Owner 

input, collaborate, and make design decisions on new or modified scope items. Engineer shall provide 

summary notes after each workshop and update the Decision Log and Cost Trending tool. 

 

Eight (8) MF/GAC Design Workshops are assumed to resolve conceptual design for the following areas where 

the scope is not fully defined:   

 

1. MF selection criteria and MF/GAC equipment layout  

2. Site civil and potential early work package 

3. Electrical distribution and backup power supply 

4. Blending vault, distribution, and storage pump stations  

5. Building and architectural considerations 

6. Residuals building 

7. Administration and/or maintenance spaces, disinfection contact basin 

8. Pretreatment building modifications 

 

Task 1306 – Update Basis of Design Report  & Opinion of Probable Cost:  

Engineer shall update the Basis of Design Report (BODR) with decisions made during the preliminary 

MF/GAC design phase. Engineer shall update the existing Option C Opinion of Probable Cost (OPC) of August 

2022 based on the preliminary MF/GAC design. OPC shall comply with AACE Class 4 definition.  

 

Engineer shall prepare a Cost Trending tool, based on design decisions made at the MF/GAC Design 

Workshops and recorded in the existing Action/Decision/PCO log.  Engineer shall assign Rough Order of 

Magnitude costs for design decisions and trend costs against the existing conceptual estimate for Option C 

– MF/GAC, as prepared in August 2022.  

 

148

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 4 

This cost opinion will be submitted along with the BODR for review and comment by the Owner.  The cost 

opinion will be based on recent bid tabulation information, historical cost data, and discussions with local 

suppliers and contractors.  Assumptions will be included for reference. 

 

Detailed and Final Design 

 

The following tasks series will be performed by Engineer for the MF/GAC treatment train as defined in the 

existing Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services dated August 17, 2021.  

 

• Task Series 400 – Detailed Design (60%)  

o Task 401 - Prepare 60% Design 

o Task 403 - Review Meeting 2 - 60% Design 

o Task 404 - Initial Permitting Support 

• Task Series 500 – Final Design (90%)  

o Task 501 - Prepare 90% Design 

o Task 502 - Review Meeting 3 - 90% Design 

o Task 503 - Final Permitting Support 

o Task 504 - Prepare Construction Documents 

o Task 505 - Review Meeting 4 – Construction Documents 
 

Task Series 400 – Detailed Design (60%) will not start until the selection of the preferred MF and GAC 

suppliers, based on the proposal submittals including sufficient technical information to act as the basis of 

design. Technical information shall include overall process description, equipment lists, general 

arrangements, estimated equipment weights, equipment cut sheets, chemical and power consumption, 

process, and control narratives.   

 

No early work packages are assumed except the complete 60% and 90% design submittals. Engineer shall 

work with the Owner and CMAR to evaluate the cost and schedule benefit of potential early work packages.   

 

TASK SERIES 1400 – MF/GAC PROCUREMENT  

 

Task 1401 - Prepare Procurement Request for Proposals Packages 

Engineer shall prepare technical documents for the Town to administer the early selection and procurement 

of the MF and GAC systems (FIL-01 Membrane Filtration, GAC-01 Granular Activated Carbon System).  

Technical documents include specifications and general arrangement drawings. Engineer shall develop 

procurement packages for MF/GAC vendors to evaluate and select the preferred technology. Engineer shall 

use the available data to develop performance criteria for selection. Engineer shall develop qualifications for 

vendor acceptance. Town shall provide front-end procurement documents and facilitate the solicitation and 

receipt of proposals. 

 

The following procurement packages were developed for O3/BAF.  Their associated technical specifications 

will be updated for MF/GAC with the 60% design.   

 

i. CHM-01 Chemical feed systems 

ii. ELE-01 Electrical gear, power panels, VFDs, MCCs 

iii. ELE-02 Control panels 

iv. GEN-01 Generators 

v. MOV-01 Motor operated valves 

149

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 5 

vi. PMP-01 Vertical and inline centrifugal pumps 

vii. PMP-02 Progressive cavity pumps 

viii. PMP-03 Centrifugal pumps 

ix. PMP-04 Sample and miscellaneous pumps 

x. TNK-01 Tanks 

Task 1402 - Procurement Period Support 

Engineer shall support the Owner by responding in writing to questions received from equipment vendors.  

 

Task 1403 - Evaluation & Negotiation of Procurement Packages 

Engineer shall assist the Owner with evaluation of the received equipment package bids. Engineer shall 

facilitate a selection of the preferred equipment supplier, based on monetary and non-monetary criteria. 

This scope of work assumes a Design-Build approach, with the Design-Builder assuming responsibility for 

procurement of the equipment packages after selection by the Owner and Engineer.  

 

Task 1404 - Submittal Review 

Engineer shall review compliance submittals from equipment suppliers. Includes initial submittal review, 

coordination meetings and resubmittal review.  

 

TASK SERIES 1500 – REDEFINE PROJECT SCOPE (May to September 2022) 

 

Task 1501 – Project Meetings & Coordination  

Engineer shall organize project meetings and coordinate with the project team from the 30% design 

milestone to the redefinition of the project as MF/GAC. Task includes providing project background, 

summarizing the basis of design, revisiting design decisions resolved at previous workshops and hosting 

coordination meetings with the Owner and Owner’s Representative. Meetings include Workshops 15 and 

16, Owner’s Representative meetings on August 4 and 8. Engineer will provide meeting minutes with a 

decision log and list of action items. Meeting minutes will be distributed via email.  Decision log and risk 

register will be updated.   

 

Task 1502 – Alternatives Analysis 

Engineer shall prepare two alternative treatment train options to the 30% preliminary design, including 

process train layouts, initial sizing calculations, construction phasing constraints, integration points with the 

existing WTP and potential impacts to the existing WTP operations.  Engineer shall develop opinions of 

probable construction costs for three options.  Engineer shall develop assumptions for 20-year net present 

value comparison.  Engineer shall prepare equipment design criteria and coordinate with equipment 

suppliers for budgetary quotes.  Engineer shall present options to Owner and Owner’s Representative at a 

workshop.  Engineer shall develop a framework for non-monetary evaluation of three Options.  Engineer 

shall present the 20-year net present value at a design meeting.  Engineer shall coordinate a selection 

workshop at the Owner’s office.  Engineer shall prepare meeting materials and attend a working session 

with the Town Council to present the alternatives analysis.   

 

Task 1503 – Scope Options & Cost Models  

Engineer shall develop a list of potential scope changes and value engineering concepts in an 

effort to manage project estimated construction costs.  Engineer shall develop a scope for each 

potential change, including sketches and design criteria, where applicable.  Engineer shall 

evaluate the feasibility of potential scope items to consider the impact on future and existing 

WTP operations and project goals.  Engineer shall use the 30% opinion of probable costs model 

to establish the estimate cost impact of each potential scope change.  Engineer shall 

150

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 6 

collaborate with Owner and Owner’s representative at design workshops to evaluate the merit 

of including potential scope change items in a redefined project scope. 
 

TASK SERIES 600 – CMAR Selection & Collaboration   

 

The following tasks shall be performed by the Owner instead of the Engineer.  The following tasks shall be 

deleted from the Engineer’s scope in the original agreement. Cost credit for the tasks no longer performed 

by the Engineer are included in this amendment.   

 

603 – Prepare Request for Qualifications (RFQ) Documents 

 

604 - Review Meeting 5 - CMAR RFQ Documents 

 

605 - Evaluation of Received Qualification Packages & Development of Short List 

 

606 - Preparation of Request for Proposals (RFP) 

 

607 - Review Meeting 6 - CMAR RFP Documents 

 

608 - RFP Period Support 

 

609 - Evaluation of CMAR Proposals & Contractor Negotiation 

  

151

Item #11.



Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement. 

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services. 

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

                                                                         and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.                                                    Page 7 

Agreement Summary (Basic Services): 

 

Original agreement amount: $2,059,442 

Net change for prior amendments $   527,154 

This amendment amount: $   618,791 

Adjusted Agreement amount: $3,205,387 

  

Change in time for services (days or date, as 

applicable) 
254 days 

  
  

152

Item #11.



The foregoing Agreement Summary is for reference only and does not alter the terms of the Agreement, 
including those set forth in Exhibit C.

Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this 
Amendment. All provisions of the Agreement not modified by this, or previous Amendments remain in 
effect.

OWNER: ENGINEER:

By:
Print
name:

By:
Print
name:

Title: Title:

Date Signed: Date Signed:

Exhibit K - Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.
EJCDC® E-500, Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright © 2014 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies, 
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 8

153

Item #11.



154

Item #11.



155

Item #11.



156

Item #11.



157

Item #11.



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Pre-Award 155 days Fri 2/5/21 Thu 9/9/21

4 Notice to proceed 0 days Thu 9/9/21 Thu 9/9/21

5 Design Phase - Basic Services 675 days Mon 2/1/21 Fri 9/22/23

6 Design Phase - Water Treatment Plant 675 days Mon 2/1/21 Fri 9/22/23

7 Task Series 100 - Project Initiation & Coordination 290 days Fri 9/10/21 Mon 10/31/22

10 Task Series 200 - Review Existing Data & Basis of Design 123 days Thu 9/23/21 Fri 3/18/22

35 Task Series 300 - Preliminary Design 46 days Fri 3/11/22 Fri 5/13/22

42 Task Series 400 - Detailed Design 271 days Fri 5/6/22 Mon 6/5/23

43 Task Series 1500 - Redefine Project Scope 115 days Fri 5/6/22 Tue 10/18/22

44 1304 - Preliminary MF/GAC Design Development 30 days Mon 12/12/22 Mon 1/30/23

45 1305 - MF/GAC Design Workshops (8) 51 days Tue 10/18/22 Fri 1/6/23

54 1306 - Update BODR & OPC 30 days Mon 12/12/22 Mon 1/30/23

55 401 - 60% Design Development 60 days Tue 1/31/23 Mon 4/24/23

56 402 - Utility Locates & Test Holes 10 days Mon 6/27/22 Mon 7/11/22

57 Town Review 10 days Tue 4/25/23 Mon 5/8/23

58 403 - Review Meeting 2 - 60% Design 1 day Tue 5/9/23 Tue 5/9/23

59 404 - Initial Permitting Support 30 days Tue 4/25/23 Mon 6/5/23

60 Task Series 500 - Final Design 98 days Wed 5/10/23 Fri 9/22/23

61 501 - 90% Design Development 60 days Wed 5/10/23 Tue 8/1/23

62 Town Review 6 days Wed 8/2/23 Wed 8/9/23

63 502 - Review Meeting 3 - 90% Design 1 day Thu 8/10/23 Thu 8/10/23

64 503 - Final Permitting Support 30 days Wed 8/2/23 Tue 9/12/23

65 504 - Prepare Construction Documents 20 days Fri 8/11/23 Thu 9/7/23

66 Town Review 10 days Fri 9/8/23 Thu 9/21/23

67 505 - Review Meeting 4 - Construction Documents 1 day Fri 9/22/23 Fri 9/22/23

68 100% Design Complete (was Oct 18, 2022) 0 days Fri 9/22/23 Fri 9/22/23

69 Task Series 600 - CMAR Delivery 494 days Wed 10/6/21 Mon 9/18/23

70 601 - Project Delivery Workshop 1 day Wed 10/6/21 Wed 10/6/21

71 602 - Design-Build Contractor Session 1 day Tue 11/2/21 Tue 11/2/21

72 Design-Build Negotiation 130 days Wed 11/3/21 Mon 5/9/22

73 Select CMAR Delivery 0 days Tue 10/18/22 Tue 10/18/22

74 603 - Prepare RFP Documents for Shortlist 20 days Wed 10/19/22 Tue 11/15/22

75 Town Review 10 days Wed 11/16/22 Thu 12/1/22

76 604 - Review Meeting 5 - RFP Documents 1 day Fri 12/2/22 Fri 12/2/22

77 RFP Period 20 days Mon 12/5/22 Mon 1/9/23

78 608 - RFP Period Support 20 days Mon 12/5/22 Mon 1/9/23

79 609 - Evaluation of RFP 20 days Tue 1/10/23 Mon 2/6/23

80 610 - Review CMAR-Prepared Documents 160 days Tue 2/7/23 Mon 9/18/23

81 Task Series 700 - Equipment Procurement 616 days Mon 2/1/21 Mon 7/3/23

82 701 - Prepare Documents for Procurement 15 days Fri 5/6/22 Thu 5/26/22

83 702 - Prepare Procurement Requests 5 days Fri 5/20/22 Thu 5/26/22

84 Town Review 5 days Fri 5/27/22 Fri 6/3/22

85 703 - Review Meeting 7 - Procurement Documents 0 days Fri 6/3/22 Fri 6/3/22

86 1401 - Prepare Procurement Documents 20 days Wed 10/19/22 Tue 11/15/22

87 Town Review 10 days Wed 11/16/22 Thu 12/1/22

88 703B - Review Meeting - Procurement Documents 1 day Fri 12/2/22 Fri 12/2/22

89 703C - Finalize Procurement Documents 5 days Mon 12/5/22 Fri 12/9/22

90 704 - Procurement Period Support 20 days Mon 12/12/22 Mon 1/16/23

91 705/1403 - Evaluation & Selection of Procurement Packages 10 days Tue 1/17/23 Mon 1/30/23

92 Town to Negotiate Procurement Packages 20 days Tue 1/31/23 Mon 2/27/23

93 Vendor Submittal Preparation 40 days Tue 2/28/23 Mon 4/24/23

94 706/1404 - Submittal Review 50 days Tue 4/25/23 Mon 7/3/23

95 707 - Coordination with CMAR Contractor 125 days Mon 2/1/21 Fri 7/23/21

96 Design Phase - Additional Services 212 days Mon 11/8/21 Thu 9/8/22

118 Construction Phase (Estimated) 830 days Wed 10/19/22 Fri 1/2/26

Task Series 300 - Preliminary Design

Task Series 400 - Detailed Design

Task Series 1500 - Redefine Project Scope 10/18

1304 - Preliminary MF/GAC Design Development 1/30

1306 - Update BODR & OPC 1/30

401 - 60% Design Development 4/24

402 - Utility Locates & Test Holes 7/11

Town Review 5/8

403 - Review Meeting 2 - 60% Design 5/9

404 - Initial Permitting Support 6/5

Task Series 500 - Final Design

501 - 90% Design Development 8/1

Town Review 8/9

502 - Review Meeting 3 - 90% Design 8/10

503 - Final Permitting Support 9/12

504 - Prepare Construction Documents 9/7

Town Review 9/21

505 - Review Meeting 4 - Construction Documents 9/22

100% Design Complete (was Oct 18, 2022) 9/22

5/9

Select CMAR Delivery 10/18

603 - Prepare RFP Documents for Shortlist 11/15

Town Review 12/1

604 - Review Meeting 5 - RFP Documents 12/2

RFP Period 1/9

608 - RFP Period Support 1/9

609 - Evaluation of RFP 2/6

610 - Review CMAR-Prepared Documents 9/18

701 - Prepare Documents for Procurement 5/26

702 - Prepare Procurement Requests 5/26

Town Review 6/3

6/3

1401 - Prepare Procurement Documents 11/15

Town Review 12/1

703B - Review Meeting - Procurement Documents 12/2

703C - Finalize Procurement Documents 12/9

704 - Procurement Period Support 1/16

705/1403 - Evaluation & Selection of Procurement Packages 1/30

Town to Negotiate Procurement Packages 2/27

Vendor Submittal Preparation 4/24

706/1404 - Submittal Review 7/3

27 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 4 11 18 25 1 8 15 22 29 5 12 19 26 5 12 19 26 2 9 16 23 30 7 14 21 28 4 11 18 25 2 9 16 23 30 6 13 20 27 3 10 17 24 1 8 15

Mar '22 Apr '22 May '22 Jun '22 Jul '22 Aug '22 Sep '22 Oct '22 Nov '22 Dec '22 Jan '23 Feb '23 Mar '23 Apr '23 May '23 Jun '23 Jul '23 Aug '23 Sep '23 Oct '23

2022 2023

Town of Johnstown, CO

Water Treatment Plant Expansion

Schedule_Johnstown WTP_r6_Amend 3 MF GAC 

Tue 9/27/22 
158

Item #11.

bdpugh
PolyLine



Town of Johnstown

Water Treatment Plant Expansion from 5 to 12.5 mgd

Amendment 03 - Work Breakdown Structure and Fee Schedule Rev 2

Project Manager Quality Control Lead Process Process Structural Architectural Civil Mechanical

Electrical, 

Instrumentation & 

Controls

Construction

Pugh Schaefer Lundgren Wetz Kienholz
Dalglish

Lang

Brothers

Tessitore
Olsen

Patwari

Baker

Kuntz

Waddell

Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Hours Cost Direct Cost

TASK SERIES 1300 - Preliminary MF/GAC Design

1301 - Project, Risk and Resource Management, Schedule and Budget Controls 40 40 $10,600 $420 11,020$             

1304 - Develop Preliminary MF/GAC Design 80 12 320 400 250 225 98 100 240 40 1,765 $359,807 $14,390 374,197$           

1305 - MF/GAC Design Workshops
1 32 32 8 8 4 16 100 $21,554 $860 22,414$             

1306 - Update BODR & OPC 20 4 32 48 8 8 24 12 20 16 192 $38,880 $1,560 40,440$             

Sub-Total Series 1300 172 16 384 448 266 241 126 112 276 56 2,097 $430,840 $17,230 $0 $448,070

TASK SERIES 1400 - MF/GAC Procurement

1401 - Prepare Procurement Request for Proposals 32 4 40 120 40 236 $44,116 $1,760 45,876$             

1402 - Procurement Period Support 4 8 4 8 24 $4,655 $190 4,845$               

1403 - Evaluation & Negotiation of Procurement Packages
2 4 4 8 8 4 28 $5,684 $230 5,914$               

1404 - Submittal Review
3 8 24 40 8 4 20 104 $19,864 $790 20,654$             

Sub-Total Series 1400 48 4 76 172 8 0 0 4 76 4 392 $74,320 $2,970 $0 $77,290

TASK SERIES 1500 - Redefining Scope (May to September, 2022)

1501 - Project Meetings & Coordination 34 62 96 $19,302 $770 20,072$             

1502 - Alternative Analysis 27.5 41.5 69 $14,177 $570 14,747$             

1503 - Scope Options & Cost Models 79.5 128.5 32.5 25.5 24.5 79 68.5 438 $91,152 $3,650 94,802$             

Sub-Total Series 1500 141 0 232 32.5 0 25.5 24.5 0 79 68.5 603 $124,631 $4,990 $0 $129,621

TASK SERIES 600 - CMAR Selection (Credit for Owner-Performed Tasks)

603 - Preparation of Request for Qualifications Documents (7,820)$              

604 - Review Meeting 5 - CMAR RFQ Documents (2,876)$              

605 - Evaluation of Received Qualification Packages & Development of Short List (4,448)$              

606 - Preparation of Request for Proposals (8,778)$              

607 - Review Meeting 6 - CMAR RFP Documents (2,876)$              

608 - RFP Period Support (4,136)$              

609 - Review of Cost Estimates, Schedules, Value Engineering & Constructability Issues (5,256)$              

Sub-Total Series 600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 -$36,190

Project Subtotals 361 20 692 652.5 274 266.5 150.5 116 431 128.5 3,092 $629,791 $25,190 $0 $618,791

Project Total $618,791

Notes:

1. Assumes 8 MF/GAC Workshops

2. In addition to efforts carried in original scope for Ozone/BAF (Task 705)

3. In addition to efforts carried in original scope for Ozone/BAF (Task 706)

Activity

BMcD

Total Labor
Expenses

Sub- 

Consultants Total Cost

Prepared by BMcD 9/29/2022 Page 1

159

Item #11.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2022-42: Resolution Terminating A Local Disaster 

Emergency 

 

ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Approval to Terminate the Local Disaster Emergency 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  1. Resolution 2022-42 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

    

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

On March 16, 2020, the Town Council approved Resolution 2020-07. This resolution declared a 

Local Disaster Emergency associated with the COVID-19 virus. During this time, the Town had 

the ability to operate in a more flexible position due to the impacts of the virus. This declaration 

was appropriate given the impacts on the community and the local government operations from 

COVID during the past two years.  

 

Today, the impacts of COVID on a daily basis are substantially lower than what they were in the 

past. The numbers associated with COVID have diminished to a where roughly 5% of all tests 

are positives and the health impacts are noticeably less than what they were at the onset of the 

virus. The resolution presented before you tonight will officially terminate the Local Disaster 

Emergency implemented by COVID.  

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The Town Attorney drafted the Resolution.  

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE:  

 

NA 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-42 as presented. 

160

Item #12.



 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.5127.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.5127.0141 

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

For Approval: I move to approve Resolution 2022-42 to terminate the Local Disaster 

Emergency as presented.  

 

For Denial: I move to deny Resolution 2022-42 to terminate the Local Disaster Emergency as 

presented. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

161

Item #12.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-42 

RESOLUTION TERMINATING A LOCAL DISASTER EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 

municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the Town’s 

Home Rule Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with the authority to administer the affairs of the 

Town; and  

WHEREAS, the Colorado Disaster Emergency Act, C.R.S. § 24-33.5-701, et seq., and 

Article VIII of Chapter 2 of the Johnstown Municipal Code (“Code”) authorize the Mayor (or the 

Mayor acting in concert with the Town Council) to declare a local disaster emergency; and 

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 31-15-401(1)(b) authorizes the governing body of a municipality to 

do all acts and make all regulations necessary or expedient for the promotion of health or the 

suppression of disease; and 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, the Town Council approved Resolution 2020-07, which 

declared a local disaster emergency in the best interests of the Town and of the public peace, health, 

safety and welfare due to the outbreak of COVID-19; and   

WHEREAS, the impact of COVID-19, while substantial for the past 2 years, has been 

mitigated at this time; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council may terminate a local disaster emergency in compliance 

with Section 2-151(d) of the Code; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the disaster emergency conditions no longer 

exist, and that termination of the local disaster emergency is in the best interests of the Town.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

Section 1.  Termination of Local Disaster Emergency. Based on the recitals set forth above, 

the Town Council hereby terminates the local disaster emergency for the Town of Johnstown.   

Section 2.  Effect. The Town Manager shall immediately issue and publish a notice of the 

termination of the local disaster emergency.  This resolution shall be filed with the Town Clerk 

and a copy shall be forwarded to the Colorado Division of Emergency Management.  

 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

By: ___________________________  By: _______________________________ 

   Hannah Hill, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

162

Item #12.



 

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2022-43: Authorizing the Town Manager To Execute 

All Documents To Effectuate the Sale of the Real Property, 

Known As Tract A and Lots 2-5, West Ledge Rock Center 

Subdivision Filing No. 1 

 

ACTION PROPOSED: Consider Approval of Resolution 2022-43 as presented 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  1. Resolution 2022-43 

    2. Map of Tract A & Lots 2-5 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

    

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

  

Enclosed for your review and consideration is Resolution 2022-43 that will permit the Town 

Manager to complete the transfer and sale of Tract A and Lots 2-5, West Ledge Rock Center 

Subdivision Filing No. 1 to Ledge Rock Center, LLC (LRC). As part of the ongoing Ledge Rock 

Center development, one of the commitments by the Town was to convey this property to LRC 

for the planned commercial development. The land is to be convey not later than the anticipated 

bond sales which are expected in the month of October. To facilitate this sale and transfer, this 

resolution authorizes the Town Manager to complete the transaction as necessary and appropriate 

to meet the obligations of the project and the agreements previously approved and adopted by 

Town Council.  

 

A map depicting the land represented by Tract A and Lost 2-5 is attached. 

 

LEGAL ADVICE:  

 

The Town Attorney drafted the Resolution.  

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE:  

 

163

Item #13.



 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.5127.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.5127.0141 

NA 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-43 as presented.  

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

For Approval: I move to approve Resolution 2022-43 authorizing the Town Manager to 

complete the sale of Tract A and Lots 2-5 of the West Ledge Rock Center Subdivision Filing No. 

1 to Ledge Rock Center, LLC.  

 

For Denial: I move to deny Resolution 2022-43 as presented. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

____________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

164

Item #13.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-43 

 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS TO 

EFFECTUATE THE SALE OF THE REAL PROPERTY, KNOWN AS TRACT A 

AND LOTS 2-5, WEST LEDGE ROCK CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1, A 

SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2 OF PLAT OF OXY LAND SUBDIVISION, SITUATED 

IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, 

RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COUNTY OF 

WELD, STATE OF COLORADO, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 7.835 

ACRES, TO LEDGE ROCK CENTER, LLC 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule municipality, 

duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the Town’s Home Rule Charter; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with authority to administer the affairs of the Town; and 

 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No 2022-224 and the Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning 

Purchase and Sale of Real Property for Ledge Rock Center Commercial, between the Town and Ledge 

Rock Center, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“Ledge Rock”), dated September 12, 2022 

(“Purchase and Sale Agreement”), the Town Council authorized the sale of real property and the 

improvements thereon known as Tract A and Lots 2-5, West Ledge Rock Center Subdivision Filing No. 1, 

a subdivision of Lot 2 of Plat of Oxy Land Subdivision, situated in the Northwest Quarter of Section 11, 

Township 4 North, Range 68 West of the 6th P.M., Town of Johnstown, County of Weld, State of Colorado, 

consisting of approximately 7.835 acres (“Property”), to Ledge Rock; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to authorize Matthew LeCerf, the Town Manager, to execute 

all documents necessary for the consummation of the sale of the Property to Ledge Rock; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that adoption of this Resolution is in the best interests of the 

Town. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

1. Matthew LeCerf, the Town Manager, is directed to work with Heritage Title Company with respect 

to the sale of the Property and is authorized to take all steps and execute all documents necessary 

for the consummation of the sale of the Property from the Town to Ledge Rock. 

2. This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption, and has not been modified or revoked. 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 3rd day of October, 2022.  

ATTEST:       TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

By:__________________________                           By:________________________________ 

      Hannah Hill, Town Clerk                                            Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

165

Item #13.



WELTY

CO
. R

D.
 7

CO. RD. 48

CLEARVIEW
SUBDIVISION

CO
LO

RA
DO

   
BL

VD
.

LEE HOME
FARM, LLC

PURCELL
CONSERVATION

GROUP

LARSON FRONT
RANGE FARMS

MARKHAM
WILLIAM G

MLD
EQUITIES

IN
TE

RS
TA

TE
 2

5

HARDING
SUBDIVSION

CO. RD. 48 / HWY. 60

VISTA
COMMONS

H
IG

H
 P

LA
IN

S 
BL

VD
.

GATEWAY
CENTER

GREAT WESTERN RAILROAD

CO. RD. 46

LOT
3

LOT
4

LOT
5

LOT
6

15' MAINTENANCE EASEMENT
DITCH RIDER'S ROAD (BK. 1590, PG. 123)

20' UTILITY EASEMENT
(REC. # 4673580)

50' PIPELIN
E RIGHT O

F W
AY

[CEN
TERED O

VER LO
CATED LIN

E]

(REC. # 1930795 &
 REC. # 1930796)

20
' F

IB
ER

 O
PT

IC
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

[C
EN

TE
RE

D 
O

VE
R 

LO
CA

TE
D 

LI
N

E]
(R

EC
. #

 1
51

48
12

)

30' RIGHT OF WAY (BK. 86, PG. 273) DEED: RIGHT OF WAY
(REC. # 4690405)

DE
ED

: R
IG

HT
 O

F 
W

AY
(B

K.
 1

04
1,

 P
G.

 2
74

, R
EC

. #
 8

14
45

9)

DEED: RIGHT OF WAY (BK. 1477, PG. 288, REC. # 1254276)

DE
ED

: R
IG

HT
 O

F 
W

AY
(B

K.
 1

58
0,

 P
G.

 4
05

, R
EC

. #
 1

35
14

59
)

DE
ED

: R
IG

HT
 O

F 
W

AY
(R

EC
. #

 4
69

04
05

)

RIGHT OF WAY WIDTH VARIES

COLORADO STATE HIGHWAY 60

LOT 1
1,105,763 SQ. FT.
+/- 25.385 ACRES

LOT 4
PLAT OF OXY LAND SUBDIVISION

(REC. # 4785196)

659.89'

530.01'

N
00

° 2
6'

 1
8"

W
  4

93
.1

2'

S89° 33' 42"W  295.80'

N
00

° 2
6'

 1
8"

W
22

4.
07

'

L4

L1

L2

L3

L7

L8

L5

L6

L1
1

L12

L9

L10

L1
8

L19

L2
0

L21

L2
2

L23

L2
4

L25

L2
6

L27

L2
8

L13 L15
L16

L17
L14

S58° 51' 02"E  218.11'

S21° 51' 59"E  125.35'

LOT 5 TIE TO LOT 2

LOT 2
294,734 SQ. FT.
+/- 6.766 ACRES

NORTH LINE N.W. 1/4 SEC. 11
N89° 13' 50"E     2645.56'

BA
SI

S 
O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G 
&

 E
AS

T 
LI

N
E 

O
F 

TH
E 

N
.W

. 1
/4

 S
EC

. 1
1

S0
0°

 2
6'

 1
8"

E 
   

 2
65

8.
19

'

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

N
.W

. 1
/4

 S
EC

. 1
1

N
00

° 2
3'

 0
6"

W
   

  2
66

4.
75

'

8.80'
TIE

LOT 3 TIE TO LOT 2

S55° 11' 44"W
  211.04'

N87° 30' 43"W  212.22'

LOT 4 TIE

TO LOT 2

LOT 6 TIE TO LOT 2

N1
4°

 4
3'

 1
1"

E
73

.6
8'

N89° 59' 43"E
52.05' N1

4°
 4

2'
 4

7"
E

14
8.

20
'

S80° 35' 23"E117.19'

N1
4°

 4
3'

 1
8"

E 
   

 4
37

.6
9'

N83° 18' 36"E     1000.90'

N88° 55' 28"E     963.21'

S0
0°

 0
0'

 1
0"

E 
   

 6
40

.4
4'

N89° 59' 49"E
170.82'

S0
0°

 2
6'

 1
8"

E
79

.6
9'

S89° 13' 30"W     2464.07'
1934.06'

303.32'

S66° 38' 44"W  256.12'

TIE

LINE TABLE

TAG #
L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

LENGTH
80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

80.00'

36.21'

2.00'

39.50'

2.00'

17.29'

63.00'

4.00'

152.25'

4.00'

63.00'

93.00'

63.00'

5.00'

152.25'

5.00'

63.00'

DIRECTION
S89°33'42"W

N00°26'18"W

N89°33'42"E

S00°26'18"E

N00°26'18"W

N89°33'42"E

S00°26'18"E

S89°33'42"W

N00°26'18"W

N89°33'42"E

S00°26'18"E

S89°33'42"W

N89°33'42"E

N00°26'17"W

N89°33'43"E

S00°26'18"E

N89°33'44"E

S00°26'17"E

N89°33'42"E

S00°26'18"E

S89°33'42"W

S00°26'17"E

S89°33'42"W

N00°26'17"W

S89°33'42"W

N00°26'18"W

N89°33'42"E

N00°26'18"W

LOT IDENTIFIER
LOT 1

AREA
1,105,763 SQ. FT.

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

294,734 SQ. FT.

6,400 SQ. FT.

6,400 SQ. FT.

6,400 SQ. FT.

27,327 SQ. FT.

A SUBDIVISION OF
LOT 2, OF PLAT OF OXY LAND SUBDIVISION,

SITUATED IN THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE SIXTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 P
LA

T

W
EL

D
 C

O
UN

TY
, C

O
LO

RA
D

O

SH
EE

T 
1/

1

03
.1

8.
20

22
- - - - -

O
RI

G
IN

A
L 

PR
EP

A
RA

TIO
N

- - - - -

D
A

TE
D

ES
C

RI
PT

IO
N

- - - - - -

PO
IN

T C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
, L

LC
84

60
 W

 K
EN

 C
A

RY
L 

A
V

E 
#

10
1

LI
TT

LE
TO

N
, C

O
  8

01
28

72
0-

25
8-

68
36

w
w

w
.p

nt
-ll

c.
co

m
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
C

IV
IL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

LA
N

D
SC

A
PE

 A
RC

HI
TE

C
TU

RE
LA

N
D

 S
UR

V
EY

IN
GLOT 2, OF PLAT OF OXY LAND SUBDIVISION, SITUATED

IN THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 11,
TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE SIXTH
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,
COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO.
AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE NORTH QUARTER CORNER OF
SAID SECTION 11 AND ALONG ITS NORTH/SOUTH
CENTER SECTION LINE S00°26'18”E, A DISTANCE OF
8.80 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED, RECEPTION NO. 4690405;
THENCE DEPARTING SAID SECTION LINE S66°38'44”W,
A DISTANCE OF 256.12 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF LOT 2, PLAT OF OXY LAND SUBDIVISION,
RECEPTION NO. 4785196 AND THE POINT OF
BEGINNING;
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED THE FOLLOWING THREE (3)
COURSES:

1. S00°00'10”E, A DISTANCE OF 640.44 FEET,
2. N89°59'49”E, A DISTANCE OF 170.82 FEET,
3. S00°26'18”E, A DISTANCE OF 79.69 FEET;

THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE S89°13'30”W, A
DISTANCE OF 2,464.07 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST
LINE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED, RECEPTION NO.
4690405;
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED THE FOLLOWING SEVEN (7)
COURSES:

1. N14°43'11”E, A DISTANCE OF 73.68 FEET,
2. N89°59'43”E, A DISTANCE OF 52.05 FEET,
3. N14°42'47”E, A DISTANCE OF 148.20 FEET,
4. S80°35'53”E, A DISTANCE OF 117.19 FEET,
5. N14°43'18”E, A DISTANCE OF 437.69 FEET,
6. N83°18'36”E, A DISTANCE OF 1,000.90 FEET,
7. N88°55'28”E, A DISTANCE OF 963.21 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING 1,105,763 SQUARE FEET OR 25.385
ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

SU
RV

EY
 P

LA
T

JO
B 

N
O

. 2
1.

02
2

-

W
ES

T 
LE

D
G

E 
RO

C
K 

C
EN

TE
R

SU
BD

IV
IS

IO
N

 F
IL

IN
G

 N
O

. 1

WEST LEDGE ROCK CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1

THIS PLAT SUBDIVIDES LOT 2, OF PLAT OXY LAND
SUBDIVISION.

PURPOSE STATEMENT
1. ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST

DISCOVER SUCH DEFECT.  IN NO EVENT, MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE OF
THE CERTIFICATION SHOWN HEREON.

2. THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH BY POINT CONSULTING, LLC.  FOR INFORMATION REGARDING BOUNDARY, EASEMENTS AND TITLE, POINT
CONSULTING, LLC RELIED UPON THE FOLLOWING TITLE COMMITMENT PREPARED BY OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY:
ORDER NO. FCC25188854-3, EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER 21, 2021 AT 5:00 P.M.

3. PUBLISHED PROPERTY ADDRESS: VACANT LAND, JOHNSTOWN, CO 80534.

4. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY CONTAINS 1,447,024 SQUARE FEET OR 33.219 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

5. UNIT OF MEASURE: DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE U.S. SURVEY FOOT.

6. BASIS OF BEARINGS: BEING THE EAST SECTION LINE OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN AS MEASURED BETWEEN THE MONUMENTS FOUND AND SHOWN HEREON AS S 00°26'18" E.

7. FLOOD ZONE DESIGNATION: ACCORDING TO FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (F.I.R.M.) NUMBER 08069C1405G, WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY 15, 2021, THE
ENTIRE PROPERTY LIES ENTIRELY WITHIN THE FOLLOWING ZONE DESIGNATION:ZONE X - AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN.

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1000
SCALE 1" = 100'

N

50 200

SECTION LINE
BOUNDARY LINE

ADJACENT BOUNDARY LINE

EASEMENT LINE

FOUND REBAR
FOUND IRON PIPE
FOUND NAIL & TAG
FOUND CHISELED CROSS / CUT X
FOUND GOVERNMENT CORNER
SET NAIL & ALUMINUM TAG "SURVEY LS 38570"
SET 24" #5 REBAR & ALUMINUM CAP "LS 38570"

MAP LEGEND:

LOT LINE

RIGHT OF WAY CENTERLINE

VICINITY MAP
Scale 1" = 3,500'

SITE

THIS PLAT, TO BE KNOWN AS WEST LEDGE ROCK CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1,
IS APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, BY RESOLUTION
NUMBER                                             , PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FINAL READING AT A
REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN,
COLORADO HELD ON THE           DAY OF                           20       .

BY:                                                                     ATTEST:                                                               .
       MAYOR  TOWN CLERK

TOWN APPROVAL:

STATE OF COLORADO                  )
COUNTY OF                                              )

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS        DAY
OF                                           ,  20        A.D.

BY                                                                             AS                                                     OF

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL:

NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARIAL:

SS I, ADAM R. ZETTLEMOYER,  BEING A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE
STATE OF COLORADO, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT OF WEST LEDGE ROCK CENTER
SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 1 BEING A SUBDIVISION OF LOT 2, OF PLAT OF OXY LAND
SUBDIVISION WAS MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION.

DATED THIS ______ DAY OF ______________, 2022.

ADAM R. ZETTLEMOYER, PLS
COLORADO LICENSE NUMBER 38570
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
POINT CONSULTING, LLC
8460 W KEN CARYL AVE
LITTLETON, CO  80128
(702) 258-6836
azettlemoyer@pnt-llc.com

SURVEYING CERTIFICATE:

SQUARE FOOT
ACRE

WEST

RIGHT OF WAY

EAST

ABBREVIATIONS:

U.S. SURVEY FOOT

RECEPTION NUMBER

SOUTH

SECTION

NORTH

SQ. FT.
AC.

W

R.O.W.

E

FT.

REC #

S

SEC.

N

CORNERCOR.

CHORD LENGTH

ARC LENGTH

RADIUS

CHORD BEARING

DELTA ANGLE

CHL

L

R

CHB

Δ

166

Item #13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: 

 

October 3, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2022-40 Approving an Amendment to the 2534 P.U.D. 

Design Guidelines Land Use Plan on 2.1 Acres, to allow Multifamily 

 

ACTION PROPOSED: Hold Public Hearing and Consider Resolution 2022-40 an 

Amendment to the 2534 P.U.D. Design Guidelines Land Use Plan  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 2022-40 

2. Vicinity Map  

3. Proposed Land Use Plan 

4. PZC Agenda Memorandum 

 

PRESENTED BY: Kim Meyer, Planning & Development Director 

  

 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

 

The Town has received an application from MNC Holdings, LLC, for consideration of an 

amendment to the land use designation in the 2534 P.U.D. Design Guidelines, which apply to the 

area known as the 2534 P.U.D. The subject property for this proposed amendment is 

approximately 2.1 acres and located at the NW corner of Exposition Dr. and Thompson Pkwy. 

(Attachment 2). The subject property is zoned PUD-MU with a land use designation of B.1 (office, 

flex, and retail). The applicant proposes a change to B.2 to allow multi-family development 

(Attachment 3). 

 

The property affected is located in a high-density residential area and is surrounded to the north, 

west, and south, by multi-level apartment complexes. The proposed land use amendment from 

“B.1” to “B.2” to allow multi-family housing is compatible with the surrounding land uses. The 

applicant has expressed intent for future townhome development to provide a housing type that is 

currently not offered in the 2534 area.  

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC) held a public hearing on September 14, 2022, to 

consider the 2534 Land Use Amendment (Case ZON22-0008). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission Agenda Memorandum (Attachment 4) provides background and historical use of the 

property. Based upon the materials submitted, analysis, and findings, the PZC approved a motion 

(5-0) to recommend to Town Council approval of this request. No public comments were received. 

167

Item #14.



 

The Community That Cares 
Johnstown.Colorado.gov  

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 

The Johnstown Review Committee (JRC) reviewed this project and no concerns or comments were 

noted. Staff has no remaining outstanding concerns. 

 

LEGAL ADVICE: 

 

Resolution was prepared by the Town Attorney 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE: 

 

NA 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-40 Approving the Amendment to the 

2534 Design Guidelines Land Use Plan. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

For Approval 

I move that the Town Council approve Resolution 2022-40 Approving the Amendment to the 2534 

Design Guidelines Land Use Plan. 

 

For Denial 

I move that the Town Council deny Resolution 2022-40. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

168

Item #14.



TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-40 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2534 DESIGN GUIDELINES 

LAND USE PLAN TO DESIGNATE THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF EXPOSITION DRIVE AND THOMPSON 

PARKWAY AS “AREA B.2” TO ALLOW MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Johnstown, Colorado (“Town”) is a Colorado home rule 

municipality, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Colorado and the Town’s 

Home Rule Charter; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is vested with authority to administer the affairs of the 

Town; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2004, the Town Council approved and adopted design 

guidelines for the 2534 Development (“2534 Design Guidelines”); and 

WHEREAS, since the initial approval, the Town Council has approved amendments to 

the 2534 Design Guidelines, consistent with the evolving needs and desires of the 2534 

Development; and  

WHEREAS, MNC Holdings, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, submitted an 

application for an amendment to the 2534 Design Guidelines Land Use Plan to modify the zoning 

of the property located at the northwest corner of Exposition Drive and Thompson Parkway from 

an Area B.1 designation (office, flex and retail) to an Area B.2 designation (office, flex, retail and 

multifamily residential), to allow, in addition to the current uses, multifamily residential 

development; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1.5.5 of the 2534 Design Guidelines provides that a change in land 

use constitutes a major change and shall require action by the Planning and Zoning Commission 

and final approval by the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 

and voted to recommend approval of the proposed land use change; and  

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2022, the Town Council held a public hearing to consider the 

application, and, based upon the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation and 

evidence presented at the public hearing, found that proposed land use change is appropriate and 

in the best interests of the Town; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to approve the proposed land use change.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO, THAT: 

169

Item #14.



Section 1.  The 2534 Design Guidelines Land Use Plan shall be amended to designate the 

property located at the northwest corner of Exposition Drive and Thompson Parkway as “Area 

B.2.” 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 

passage and approval.   

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of October, 2022. 

ATTEST:     TOWN OF JOHNSTOWN, COLORADO 

 

By: ___________________________  By: _______________________________ 

   Hannah Hill, Town Clerk          Gary Lebsack, Mayor 

 

170

Item #14.



2534 Land Use Amendment Vicinity Map 

 

 

171

Item #14.



172

Item #14.



 

 

 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
ITEM: Public Hearing and Consideration of an Amendment to the 2534 Planned Unit 

Development (P.U.D.) Design Guidelines (ZON22-0008) 
 
DESCRIPTION: 2534 Land Use Designation Amendment for 2.1 acres within the 2534 P.U.D. 
 
LOCATION:   NW corner of Exposition Dr. and Thompson Pkwy 

APPLICANT:  Nico Campana, MNC Holdings LLC / Aliversa Builders 

STAFF:   Kara Washam, Planner I    

HEARING DATE: September 14, 2022 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
1- Land Use Application 
2- Proposed Amended 2534 Land Use Plan 
3- 2534 Land Use Plan (current) 
4- Conceptual Site Plan - Townhomes 
5- 2534 DRC Letter of Support 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
This project request is for a change of land use designation in the 2534 P.U.D. Design Guidelines, which 
apply to the full area known as the 2534 P.U.D. The subject property for this proposed amendment is 
approximately 2.1 acres, located at the NW corner of Exposition Dr. and Thompson Pkwy, and is zoned 
PUD-MU with a land use designation of B.1 (office, flex, and retail) (Attachment 3). The applicant proposes 
a change to B.2 (office, flex, retail, and multi-family) (Attachment 2) 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING & LAND USE 
North:  PUD-MU – B.2 (office, flex, retail, and multi-family) – Cortland at 2534 Apartments 
East:  PUD-MU – G (gun store and related accessory uses) – Liberty Firearms Institute 
South:  PUD-MU – B.2 (office, flex, retail, and multi-family) – Rise at 2534 Apartments  
West:  PUD-MU – B.2 (office, flex, retail, and multi-family) – Cortland at 2534 Apartments 
Floodplain: No 
 
PROJECT BACKGROUND & SUMMARY 
The property comprising the 2534 P.U.D. was annexed into the Town of Johnstown in 2000. As part of  

173

Item #14.



 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

that Annexation Agreement, Johnstown and the Property Owners agree to performance standards for the 
purpose of addressing design considerations including architectural, site planning, landscaping, 
streetscape and sign elements for land uses within 2534. 2534 Design Guidelines are the performance 
standards and serve as the design standards for the 2534 Master Association. The current 2534 Design 
Guidelines was adopted on February 20, 2019. Projects must be submitted to the 2534 Design Review  
Committee (DRC) to ensure proposed developments meet the standards as established in the Design 
Guidelines in order to maintain a consistency of planning and design for the entire project. The 2534 
Design Guidelines legally apply to all land that is part of 2534, regardless of ownership, and are in addition 
to the zoning and land use regulations of the Town. 
  
SUBMITTAL AND REFERRALS 

Based upon the changes proposed, this land use designation amendment did not warrant a full referral 

review by the Johnstown Review Committee (JRC). Submitted documents were provided to the JRC for a 

preliminary evaluation. No concerns or comments by the JRC were noted.  

 

The project was referred to and reviewed by: 

• Public Works Department 

• Utilities Department 

• IMEG (Town Engineer) 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

This property is located in a high-density area and is surrounded by multi-level apartment complexes. 
The proposed land use designation change from “B.1” to “B.2” to allow multi-family housing is compatible 
with the surrounding land uses. The applicant has expressed intent for future townhome development 
to provide a housing type that is currently not offered in the 2534 area (Attachment 4). In addition, the 
land use designation proposal was evaluated by the 2534 Design Review Committee (DRC). The applicant 
has provided a letter of support from the 2534 DRC (Attachment 5). 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Notice for the Planning & Zoning Commission hearing was published in the local paper of widest 

circulation, the Johnstown Breeze, on Thursday, August 25, 2022.  This notice provided the date, time, 

and location of the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing, as well as a description of the project.   

 

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING 

No neighborhood meeting was held for this requested change of land use designation as the proposed 
change to “B.2” is the current land use designation of adjacent properties. 
 

RECOMMENDED PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION FINDINGS AND MOTIONS 

It is recommended that Planning and Zoning Commission send a positive recommendation to Town 
Council that the 2534 Land Use Designation Amendment be approved based upon the following findings: 
 

1. The proposed land use designation is in agreement with the Johnstown Area Comprehensive Plan 
and its Future Land Use Map. 

174

Item #14.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

The Community That Cares 
johnstown.colorado.gov 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

2. The level of development of the proposed land use designation appears serviceable by Town 
systems, services and utilities, with required improvements that will be reflected in future 
development and construction plans. 

3. The land use change is a more compatible use in this area, with regard to surrounding residential 
development and uses.  

Recommended Motion 
Based on the application received, associated submittal materials, and the preceding analysis, the 

Planning & Zoning Commission finds that the request for the Land Use Amendment to the 2534 Design 

Guidelines furthers the Johnstown Area Comprehensive Plan goals, is compatible with the surrounding 

land uses in the 2534 P.U.D., and therefore moves to recommend to the Town Council approval of the 

requested action based upon the findings as stated in this memo. 

Alternate Motions 

a. Motion to Approve with Conditions: “I move that the Commission recommend to Town Council 

approval of the 2534 Land Use Amendment with the following conditions…” 

 

b. Motion to Deny: “I move that the Commission recommend to the Town Council denial of the 2534 

Land Use Amendment.” 

 
Planner:       

 

Kara Washam 

Planner I 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

175

Item #14.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

AGENDA DATE:  October 3, 2022  

 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Resolution 2022-41 Approving the Final 

Subdivision Plat for Johnstown Farms Filing No. 2 

 

ACTION PROPOSED: Open Public Hearing and Continue to October 17, 2022 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  1. Not Applicable Currently 

 

PRESENTED BY:  Matt LeCerf, Town Manager 

 

    

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The Public Hearing required for Resolution 2022-41 to consider the Final Subdivision Plat for 

Johnstown Farms Filing No. 2 was properly noticed as required by law. However, the associated 

Subdivision Development Agreement was not executed in time for this item to be run in concert 

with this action item.  

 

Accordingly, Staff is requesting that the Public Hearing be opened for this item and then a 

motion made to continue the Public Hearing until October 17, 2022 when it is expected to be 

fully evaluated as quasi-judicial.  

 

LEGAL ADVICE: 

 

Continuing the Public Hearing was recommended by the Town Attorney. 

 

FINANCIAL ADVICE: 

 

NA 

 

RECCOMMENDED ACTION: Continue the Public Hearing until October 17, 2022 after 

opening the Public Hearing. 

 

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

176

Item #15.



 

The Community That Cares 
www.TownofJohnstown.com 

P: 970.587.4664 | 450 S. Parish Ave, Johnstown CO | F: 970.587.0141 

 

For Approval: I move to continue the Public Hearing for Resolution 2022-41 the Final 

Subdivision Plat for Johnstown Farms Filing No. 2 until October 17, 2022. 

 

For Denial: I move to deny Resolution 2022-41 the Final Subdivision Plat for Johnstown Farms 

Filing No. 2 requiring the applicant to fully re-notice the hearing and other applicable 

requirements. 

 

Reviewed and Approved for Presentation, 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Town Manager 

 

 

177

Item #15.

http://www.townofjohnstown.com/


 

 

 
 

 
 

Building Permit Statistics 
July, 2022 

 

Single Family Residential Commercial  
Issued ytd 232 *New Building Issued ytd      25 

 
Other Residential    Other Commercial  
    (basements/alterations/additions)     *(tenant finish/alterations/additions) 

Issued ytd 149 Issued ytd                                   19 
 
            
  *Commercial:              (New Building)                           
                                                  
                       
                BLD21-0861   Leaf Comm – 5360 Ronald Reagan Blvd – Verizon Cell Tower                                                        06/17/22 
                BLD21-1135   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Clubhouse                                                    06/27/22 
                BLD21-1136   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Apt Bldg #1000   02/11/22 
                BLD21-1173   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Apt Bldg #2000   02/11/22 
                BLD21-1177   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Apt Bldg #3000   02/11/22 
                BLD21-1178   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Apt Bldg #4000   02/11/22  
                BLD21-1193   Evergreen Industrial – 5002 Marketplace Dr – Core & Shell                                                             05/02/22 
                BLD21-1237   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Maintenance Bldg                                        06/27/22 
                BLD21-1238   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #100   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1239   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #200   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1246   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #300   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1248   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #400   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1249   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #500   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1250   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 7 bay garage #600   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1251   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – 5 bay garage #700   03/29/22 
                BLD21-1252   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Mail center    03/29/22 
                BLD21-1254   Moltz Construction – 3269 High Plains Blvd – WWTP expansion (Bio-reactor bldg)  01/19/22 
                BLD21-1255   Moltz Construction – 3269 High Plains Blvd – WWTP expansion (Headworks bldg)  01/19/22 
                BLD22-0001   Adolphson Peterson – 3349 Roosevelt Pkwy – New High School    02/07/22 
                BLD22-0002   Adolphson Peterson – 3349 Roosevelt Pkwy – High School Greenhouse   02/07/22 
                BLD22-0003   Adolphson Peterson – 3311 Roosevelt Pkwy – High School Field House   02/07/22 
                BLD22-0004   Adolphson Peterson – 3311 Roosevelt Pkwy – Field House Ticket Booth   02/07/22 
                BLD22-0044   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Trash Enclosure 
                BLD22-0073   Anadarko – Kerr-McGee – 8501 WCR 44 – Oil Well Facility    03/16/22 
                BLD22-0077   Oakwood – Thompson Metro Dist – 4432 River Ranch Pkwy – Clubhouse/pool/fitness center        
                BLD22-0252   Artemis Development – 4530 Venture Dr  (Limelight Properties) – Core & Shell Bldg 1  05/26/22 
                BLD22-0403   AP Mountain States – 4660 Concord Ave – (Secant Holdings) – Core & Shell  05/12/22 
                BLD22-0434   LEC Properties – Crowne @ 2534 – 4590 Trade St – Cody’s Pools -  Pool at Clubhouse               07/07/22 
                BLD22-0628   Ledge Rock LLC – 4450 Ledge Rock Dr – Bldg 8A Murdock’s – F&F only                                      07/19/22 
                BLD22-0631   Ledge Rock LLC – 4360 Ledge Rock Dr – Bldg 9 – F&F only 
                BLD22-0632   Ledge Rock LLC – 4320 Ledge Rock Dr -  Bldg 10 – F&F only 
                BLD22-0634   Artemis Development – 4520 Venture Dr (Limelight properties) – Core & Shell Bldg 3 
                BLD22-0636   Artemis Development – 4540 Venture Dr (Limelight properties) – Core & Shell Bldg 2                    07/26/22  
                BLD22-0641   Carson Development – 4155 Carson Ln – (Ledge Rock Center) – Apt. 1 – F&F only 
                BLD22-0642   Carson Development – 4155 Carson Ln – (Ledge Rock Center) – Apt. 4 – F&F only 
                BLD22-0643   Carson Development – 4155 Carson Ln – (Ledge Rock Center) – Apt. 5 – F&F only 
                BLD22-0749   K & L Contractors – 60 Gateway Cir – Steel Building – Vehicle/trailer storage 
                BLD22-0934   GRNE Solar – 6681 CR 50 – Solar Farm 
                BLD22-0943   Lockard Development – 355 Mountain View Road – Bldg 1 – Storage Units 
                BLD22-0494   Lockard Development – 355 Mountain View Road – Bldg 3 – Storage Units 
                BLD22-0495   Lockard Development – 355 Mountain View Road – Bldg 2 – Storage Units 
                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

178

Item #16.



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  *Commercial  (Tenant Finish - alterations) 
                                                               
                  
  
BLD21-1267   Western Telecom, Inc - 372 Mtn. View Rd– Dish Antenna Satellite Installation                    01/27/22 
BLD22-0026   Adolphson Peterson – 2300 Cinnamon Teal – Pioneer Ridge school renovation                                             02/25/22 
BLD22-0027   Runyon Construction – 4950 Thompson Pkwy – Clinical Health Spa                                                               02/08/22 
BLD22-0076   Mowery Development – 4822 Larimer Pkwy – Maven Dental                                                                           03/04/22 
BLD22-0097   Sampson Construction – 4755 Ronald Reagan – Fuzziwigs remodel    03/16/22 
BLD22-0098   Creative Construction – 3600 Ronald Reagan – Loading dock addition                                                           02/22/22 
BLD22-0242   Photon Brothers – 165 Settler Wy – YMCA Solar System     03/25/22 
BLD22-0246   Evergreen Industrial – 5002 Marketplace Dr – Tenant Finish                                                                           07/19/22 
BLD22-0288   Murray & Stafford – 4151 Ronald Reagan #100 – Tenant Finish     05/02/22 
BLD22-0343   GR Builders – 4836 Larimer Pkwy – Tenant Finish                                                                                           07/12/22 
BLD22-0424   Kimbel Mechanical Systems – 3607 Ronald Reagan #140 – Tenant Finish    05/25/22 
BLD22-0425   Liberty Fire Arms – 4984 Ronald Reagan – Gun painting booth 
BLD22-0447   Fransen Pittman – 400 S Parish - Library Renovation      05/13/22 
BLD22-0471   John Cornish – 396 Mountain View Rd -  T Mobile Tower Additions                                                                06/22/22 
BLD22-0528   Damien Berg – 20 S Parish Ave – Tenant remodel – Therapeutic – Sports Massage                                     06/07/22 
BLD22-0532   Clark Enterprises – 3 Industrial Pkwy – Warehouse addition                                                                           06/10/22 
BLD22-0626   LEC Properties – 4590 Trade St – Crown @ 2534 – retaining wall                                                                 07/12/22 
BLD22-0633   EJCM, LLC – 10 Angove St – Tenant finish                                                                                                     07/20/22 
BLD22-0735   Urban Build NOCO, LLC – 4691 Concord Ave #103  - Tenant Finish 
BLD22-0771   Murray & Stafford – 4151 Ronald Reagan Blvd #130 – Tenant Finish       
BLD22-0903   Mapp Construction – 4691 Concord Ave #1 – Tenant Finish 
BLD22-0922   Poudre Valley Const. – 39 S Parish #3 – Tenant Remodel – Quilt Studio 
 
 
 
 
 
 
**  Residential     (Multi family) 
  
BLD22-0054 thru 22-0058   Baessler Townhomes 5-plex – 223, 229, 235, 241, 247 Molinar St   02/08/22 
BLD22-0075 thru 22-0081   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 253, 259, 265, 271, 277 Molinar St  02/14/22 
BLD22-0138 thru 22-0142   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 283, 289, 295, 301, 307 Molinar St                           03/07/22 
BLD22-0191 thru 22-0195   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 325, 331, 337, 343, 349 Molinar St                 03/18/22 
BLD22-0282 thru 22-0286   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 187, 193, 199, 205, 211 Molinar St  04/07/22  
BLD22-0380 thru 22-0384   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 326, 332, 338, 344, 350 Oriole Way  04/28/22 
BLD22-0481 thru 22-0483   Baessler Townhomes 3-Plex -- 305, 313, 321 Oriole Way   05/24/22 
BLD22-0484 thru 22-0486   Baessler Townhomes 3-Plex -- 251, 255, 259 Penguin St   05/24/22 
BLD22-0800 thru 22-0802   Baessler Townhomes 3-Plex – 287, 291, 295 Penguin St 
BLD22-0841 thru 22-0843   Baessler Townhomes 3-Plex – 299, 303, 307 Penguin St 
BLD22-0897 thru 22-0901   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex – 296, 302, 308, 314, 320 Oriole Way 
BLD22-0946 thru 22-0950   Baessler Townhomes 5-Plex -- 266, 272, 278, 284, 290 Oriole Wa 

179

Item #16.



JONES MEMORIAL LIBRARY CASH FLOW REPORT - JULY 2022 Y-T-D 2022 BUDGET Notes

BEGINNING CHECKING BALANCE 507,706.03$           -$                         20,000.00$              To Date

INFLOWS Donations/Grants -$                         3,500.00$                

Interest 21.17$                      21,564.14$             5,000.00$                

Misc Income 843.00$                    1,246.71$                7,500.00$                

Investments -$                         100,000.00$          -$                          

Town of Johnstown 94,816.12$              924,045.63$           1,140,000.00$        

High Plains Library District 54,106.54$              486,563.66$           488,959.00$            

Transfer from Reserve Account -$                          -$                         -$                          

INFLOWS TOTAL 149,786.83$           1,533,420.14$        -$                          

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 657,492.86$            1,664,959.00$       

OUTFLOWS Advertising 1,885.00$                11,819.00$             22,000.00$              

Audio/DVD -0 -$                          4,017.19$                15,000.00$              121

Books - 6 148.14$                    15,638.74$             50,000.00$              1073

Collection Fees/Bad Debts -$                          -$                         2,000.00$                

Computer Expenses -$                          256.73$                   5,000.00$                

Equipment & Furniture 338.28$                    17,348.07$             60,000.00$              Maker Space 

Gifts Given 264.86$                    638.76$                   2,500.00$                

Insurance, Bldg. Contents -$                          -$                         5,000.00$                

Investments 500,000.00$            1,150,000.00$        192,959.00$            

Legal Fees/Consulting Fees -$                          -$                         10,000.00$              

Maintenance 954.95$                    22,775.90$             60,000.00$              

Memberships/Licenses 45.00$                      45.00$                     2,500.00$                

Milliken Location 26.47$                      359.66$                   20,000.00$              

Outreach -$                          118.32$                   10,000.00$              

Professional Enrichment -$                          781.89$                   5,000.00$                

Programming 946.07$                    14,850.17$             100,000.00$            

Salaries/Compensation 92,852.02$              183,580.13$           500,000.00$            

   Health Ins./retirement -$                          -$                         18,000.00$              

   Staff Bonuses/Perks -$                          1,750.10$                12,000.00$              

   Workers' Comp 87.83$                      174.32$                   3,000.00$                

Subscriptions, Periodicals -$                          533.63$                   5,000.00$                

Supplies, Janitorial -$                          298.37$                   3,000.00$                

Supplies/Expenses, Library 796.10$                    3,163.14$                12,000.00$              

Telephone 230.22$                    2,212.90$                10,000.00$              

Utilities 2,713.89$                18,314.53$             40,000.00$              

Capital Improvement -$                          80,682.90$             500,000.00$            

OUTFLOWS TOTAL 601,288.83$            1,529,359.45$        1,664,959.00$       

ENDING CHECKING BALANCE 56,204.03$              
180

Item #16.



Notes

BEGINNING PETTY CASH BALANCE 907.84$                    

Programming -$                          

ENDING PETTY CASH BALANCE 907.84$                    

COLORADO TRUST INVESTMENT Y-T-D

BEGINNING BALANCE 5,746,264.69$        

Dividend - 1.6547% 8,080.86$                21,489.02$             

Contribution 500,000.00$            

Withdrawal -$                          

ENDING  BALANCE 6,254,345.55$        

181

Item #16.



July 19, 2022      

The regular meeting of the Glenn A. Jones, M.D. Memorial Library Board was called to order at 7:05 pm by Chad Young.   
Debi Sauer, Corina Strickland, Sheryl Ballard and Director Kristi Plumb were also in attendance.   

Since there was no June meeting, the May minutes were approved.  The financial reports for May and June were 
reviewed, ending with the approval of June as follows: 

June beginning balance      $ 360,735.23                       Petty Cash beginning balance   $ 907.84 

            Inflow                     167,039.36                                                     -0-  

      Outflow                    20,068.56                        -0- 

              Ending balance       $ 507,706.03                        $ 907.84 

                                          CO Trust:  $ 5,746,264.69 

Director’s Report:   

  Artist-in-Residence-June:  Keith Deppe-shell collection!  July:  Braxdon Johnson-Lego creations! 

  Building:  Makerspace punch list items down to three:  floor outlets, epoxy floor finish at window walls and air 
pressure.  East door needs sweep adjustments and this area will receive carpet the last week of July.  New front door 
installation will begin September 12th.  Kristi presented the most recent landscape plans and after review, will request 
prices.  Trees need to be planted soon, although prior irrigation evaluation will take place-the outcome of this evaluation 
and subsequent action will determine the actual timing of tree planting.  Kristi will reach out to FP and Environmental 
Landworks Company. 

  Staff:  CSU student Danara Lowery approached Kristi about the possibility of doing an internship with a focus in the 
Makerspace.  She will be working 135 hours. 

  Outreach:  Johnstown BBQ Days float, designed by Suzanne, won a 3rd place plaque and $200!  This float will re-appear 
on August 13th in the Milliken Beef n’ Bean Day parade as the ‘Honored Organization’!   

  Library of Things:  VERY popular!  Hoping to budget for additional ‘things’ this coming year 

  Passes:  Continue to be well used!  Kristi is attempting to quantify ‘check out’ numbers for passes.  Newest pass is for a 
Rock wall in Loveland. 

  Grant:  Recent $5,000 grant from the District does not have to be spent on things that ‘check out’. 

  Difficult/disruptive patrons:  Staff is reluctant to call police and file a report on these patrons, but this procedure is 
necessary for everyone’s protection.  So…Kristi will be writing up Staff that refuses to follow protocol. 

SRP foam party in the park on Thursday, July 28th, 5 – 6 pm! 

Meeting adjourned at 9:05 pm.  Next meeting will be August 16, 2022. 

May/June statistics:  Johnstown—door count:  6785/8164  circulation—7282/10667                                                  
Milliken—door count:  386/910  circulation—544/815 

Respectfully submitted, Sheryl Ballard, secretary 

 

182

Item #16.



183

Item #16.



184

Item #16.



185

Item #16.



186

Item #16.



187

Item #16.



188

Item #16.



189

Item #16.



190

Item #16.



191

Item #16.



192

Item #16.



193

Item #16.



194

Item #16.



195

Item #16.



196

Item #16.



197

Item #16.



198

Item #16.



199

Item #16.



200

Item #16.



201

Item #16.



202

Item #16.



203

Item #16.



204

Item #16.



205

Item #16.



206

Item #16.



207

Item #16.



208

Item #16.



209

Item #16.



210

Item #16.



211

Item #16.



212

Item #16.



213

Item #16.



214

Item #16.



215

Item #16.



216

Item #16.



217

Item #16.



218

Item #16.



219

Item #16.



220

Item #16.



221

Item #16.



222

Item #16.



223

Item #16.



224

Item #16.



225

Item #16.



226

Item #16.



227

Item #16.



228

Item #16.



229

Item #16.



230

Item #16.



231

Item #16.



232

Item #16.



233

Item #16.



234

Item #16.



235

Item #16.



236

Item #16.



237

Item #16.



238

Item #16.



239

Item #16.



240

Item #16.



241

Item #16.



242

Item #16.



243

Item #16.



244

Item #16.



245

Item #16.



246

Item #16.



247

Item #16.



248

Item #16.



249

Item #16.



250

Item #16.



251

Item #16.



252

Item #16.



253

Item #16.



254

Item #16.



255

Item #16.



256

Item #16.



257

Item #16.



258

Item #16.



259

Item #16.



260

Item #16.



261

Item #16.



262

Item #16.



263

Item #16.



264

Item #16.



265

Item #16.



266

Item #16.



267

Item #16.



268

Item #16.



269

Item #16.



270

Item #16.



271

Item #16.



272

Item #16.



273

Item #16.



274

Item #16.



275

Item #16.



276

Item #16.



277

Item #16.



278

Item #16.



279

Item #16.



280

Item #16.



281

Item #16.



282

Item #16.



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

First Party Supplemental 
Environmental Project (SEP)  
Modification Request (Revised 9/7/2022) 

 

Document is completed by the first party, regulated entity. 

The regulated entity, identified below, submits the following SEP modification request to the 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (the department) for consideration. If 
the modification is approved, it shall be signed by appropriate representatives of both the 
source and the department and shall serve to modify the existing SEP agreement for the project 
at issue. All terms of the existing SEP agreement, not directly addressed through the 
amendment(s) below, remain in full force and effect. 

Enforcement action information 
Regulated entity name: Town of Johnstown 

Enforcement case no.: DO-200123-1 and DO-200123-2 

Regulated entity/First party project manager 
Matt LeCerf 
Town Manager 
Town of Johnstown 
450 S. Parish Ave. 
PO Box 609 
Johnstown, CO 80534 
970-587-4664 
mlecerf@townofjohnstown.com 

Project title 
Town of Johnstown Recreation Center Solar Program 

Basis for modification request 
Need to extend completion date. There is a delay in Xcel charging the system. 

SEP proposal section as modified 

Project work plan 
Please specify project activities or deliverables below, as well as completion dates associated 
with project milestones and reports. Status reports are required biannually for projects 1 year 
in duration or longer. For projects under one year, a status report is required approximately 
half way through the project. Add rows as needed. 

283

Item #16.



Page 2 of 4 
 

Past modification dates are in blue strikeout and text. This modification lists date 
adjustments in red strikeout and text. 

Activities / Deliverables Staff responsible Due date 

 

SEP Project Start Date Matt LeCerf 
Within 30 days of 
effective date of 

the Consent Order 

SEP Project Reporting Orientation Matt LeCerf September 1, 2021 

Verify installation method to not 
compromise roof warranty Matt LeCerf September 1, 2021 

Issue RFP for Solar Panel System Bids Matt LeCerf 
July 15, 2021  

September 15, 2021 
October 1, 2021 

Select and award contractor Matt LeCerf 
September 1, 2021 
November 1, 2021 
December 13, 2021 

Complete any necessary permits or pre-
construction legal requirements Matt LeCerf March 1, 2022 

Biannual Status Report Due Date Matt LeCerf April 15, 2022 

Construction complete Matt LeCerf August 15, 2022 

Final inspection by Xcel Matt LeCerf 

October 7, 2022 
 

(If inspection fails, 
the second final 

inspection due date 
is May 31, 2023) 

Project completion date Matt LeCerf 

August 31, 2022 
November 11, 

2022 - If system 
passes Oct 7 
inspection  

 

284

Item #16.



Page 3 of 4 
 

June 22, 2023 - If 
system fails Oct 7 

inspection 

SEP completion report due Matt LeCerf 

August 31, 2022 
December 11, 

2022 - If system 
passes Oct 7 
inspection  

 
July 22, 2023 - If 
system fails Oct 7 

inspection 
 

Timeline attachment 

 

 

This section to be completed in the event of an approved SEP modification only. 

285

Item #16.



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

I, Matt LeCerf, Town Manager certify on the behalf of Town of Johnstown that Town of 
Johnstown approved the above modifications to the SEP Agreement.  

 

Signed and dated 

Matt LeCerf, Town Manager, Town or Johnstown 

 

 

Department use only 
This SEP modification has been reviewed and approved by the Colorado Department of Public 
Health and Environment. 

  

 

Signed and dated 

Nathan Moore, Clean Water Program Manager 

Water Quality Control Division 

Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

 

 

Signed and dated 

Elizabeth Scherer, Supplemental Environmental Projects Coordinator 

Division of Environmental Health and Sustainability 

Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 

 

Matt LeCerf Digitally signed by Matt LeCerf 
Date: 2022.09.28 07:16:18 -06'00'

Nathan T. Moore Digitally signed by Nathan T. Moore 
Date: 2022.09.23 09:37:17 -06'00'

Elizabeth A. Scherer Digitally signed by Elizabeth A. Scherer 
Date: 2022.09.23 08:45:33 -06'00'

286

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 1 

Regional Transportation Solutions 
Elected Officials Roadshow Summary 
May through August 2022 
 
The communities of Larimer County are strongly interconnected, and a safe and reliable regional transportation 
network is needed to support the communities’ travel needs. Although there is transportation funding legislation 
at both the State and Federal levels, significant gaps remain in the ability to meet the regional transportation 
needs in the county.  
 
In May through August of 2022, Larimer County sought input from the elected officials of the communities of 
Larimer County on their desire to collaborate and cooperate on regional transportation solutions. Mark 
Peterson and/or Laurie Kadrich (Larimer County) and consultant Jenny Young (FHU) presented to the elected 
officials of the eight municipalities and the Larimer County Board of County Commissioners to provide 
background context on regional transportation, explore alternative approaches to achieve mutually beneficial 
solutions, and to hear about each community’s desires for further conversations on the topic of regional 
transportation.  
 
The dates of the meetings with the elected officials are listed below, and Attachment 1 includes the presentation 
and polling questions used for all meetings.  
 

• May 9, 2022: Larimer County Board of County Commissioners 
• May 10, 2022: Timnath Town Council 
• May 17, 2022: Wellington Board of Trustees 
• May 23, 2022: Windsor Town Board 
• May 24, 2022: Fort Collins City Council 
• June 27, 2022: Johnstown Town Council 
• June 28, 2022: Estes Park Town Board 
• August 9, 2022: Loveland City Council 
• August 23, 2022: Berthoud Town Board 

 
Polling Results 

Live, interactive polling was used to gauge the elected officials’ interests and to understand the relative priority 
of regional transportation. The following charts summarize the results of the polling by community. For the 
purpose of this summary, an average value was calculated for each community. The detailed polling results from 
each community are included in Attachment 2. Fort Collins’ City Council did not participate in the interactive 
polling.  

Q1. What are the critical issues for your community that impact regional transportation? 

Elected officials were asked to rank five critical issues. Overall, the critical issues were ranked in the following 
order, with the cost of living/affordable house being the most impactful on regional transportation: 

1. Cost of living/affordable housing 
2. Congestion on regional corridors 
3. Jobs/housing balance 
4. Lack of public transit options 
5. Tourism 

287

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 2 

The charts below show how each community rated the critical issues. Points closest to the center of the 
diagram indicate a high ranking by that community.  

Cost of living/affordable housing was ranked the 
highest by Larimer County, Berthoud, Loveland, and 
Wellington. All communities ranked it in the top 3.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Johnstown, Timnath, and Windsor ranked congestion 
on regional corridors as the most impactful issue on 
regional transportation. Most communities ranked it 
in the top 3, with the exception of Estes Park, who 
ranked it 4th. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Estes Park ranked Jobs/housing balance as the most 
impactful issue on regional transportation. Several 
communities, including Johnstown, Loveland, Timnath, 
and Wellington ranked it 2nd.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

288

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 3 

Larimer County ranked lack of public transit options 
as the 2nd most impactful issue on regional 
transportation. Berthoud and Windsor both ranked 
it 3rd. Other communities ranked it lower relative 
to the other critical issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

While most of the communities ranked tourism as 
the least impactful to regional transportation, 
tourism was ranked 3rd by Estes Park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

289

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 4 

Q2. How important is regional transportation compared to other topics in your community? 

Larimer County prioritized regional transportation the highest compared to other topics. Most communities 
identified regional transportation as a moderate or moderate/high priority. Estes Park prioritized regional 
transportation as a low priority compared to other topics in the community.  

 

 

Q3. How important is it to address regional transportation needs compared to local 
transportation needs within your community? 

Most communities indicated that both local and regional transportation needs are important within their 
community. Larimer County and Berthoud indicated the highest relative importance for regional transportation 
while Estes Park indicated the highest relative importance for local transportation.  

 

 

290

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 5 

Q4. What is your level of interest in coordinating and cooperating on regional transportation 
solutions with other communities in Larimer County? 

Most communities indicated coordinating on regional transportation is a moderate priority. Larimer County’s 
level of interest was the highest, while Estes Park’s interest was the lowest – midway between a low and 
moderate priority.  

 

Q5. What approaches are you interested in exploring to address regional transportation needs? 

The possible approaches to address regional transportation are listed in priority order in the chart below. 
Lobbying for transportation funding at the State or Federal level received the highest level of interest from the 
communities collectively. The communities collectively are least inclined to focus on new funding that would 
require additional fees or taxes, as indicated by the three lowest ranked approaches. 

 

 

291

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 6 

Q6. What resources is your community willing to contribute?  

The charts below show the percentage of elected officials from each community that demonstrated support for 
contributing resources to regional transportation discussions. It should be noted that these responses do not 
represent a vote or formal decision about committing resources; rather they provide a gauge on each 
community’s willingness to offer tangible support for the effort.  

Only four communities 
(Larimer County, Berthoud, 
Timnath, and Windsor) had 
more than half of their 
elected officials indicate a 
willingness to fund the 
planning effort for regional 
transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The elected officials showed 
stronger support for offering 
staff resources for regional 
transportation conversations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

292

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 7 

Similarly, there was relatively 
strong support for active 
participation from leadership 
and elected officials in 
regional transportation 
conversations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Q7. Should there be consideration for expanding the "region" beyond Larimer County? 

More than half of the elected 
officials from each community 
feel the region should be 
expanded beyond Larimer 
County for the purpose of 
regional transportation 
discussions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Responses as to what the geographic extent of the region should include (numbers represent the frequency of 
each response from individual elected officials): 

• Weld and Boulder Counties (8) 
• Weld County (6) 
• Northern Colorado (5) 
• A portion of Weld County (3) 
• I-25 communities (3) 
• Longmont, Denver, Boulder, Weld Counties (2) 
• North Front Range Metropolitan Planning Organization (NFRMPO) (2) 
• Greeley (1) 
• Boulder and Grand Counties (1) 

293

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 8 

Discussion Questions 

Two open-ended questions were posed to the elected officials about the “must haves” and “deal breakers” for 
their community to coordinate on regional transportation. This section summarizes the verbal responses from 
the elected officials.  

Q8. What are the “must haves” for your community to coordinate on regional transportation 
solutions? 

• Project(s) that directly benefit our community must be included with local control (Wellington) 
• A detailed plan that includes year by year project priorities (Windsor) 
• Inclusion of all of Windsor (not just the portion within Larimer County) (Windsor) 
• Representation of all community members in Johnstown (not just those that live within Larimer County) 

(Johnstown) 
• Spread any new money evenly to all communities (Johnstown) 
• Contributions for planning effort should be pro-rated based on population (Johnstown) 
• Address coordination of transit services (Johnstown) 
• If we were to move forward with pursuing a new funding source; must learn from the 2018/2019 

experience (Estes Park) 
• Would like to see the previous Estes Park projects (from the 2018/2019 effort) carried forward (Estes 

Park) 
• In the long term we need a strategic plan for regional transportation; it would be short-sighted for our 

community to not be at the table, even if it’s not our top priority (Estes Park) 
• The hours of operation for regional transit service are important for public transportation to help 

address the workforce housing issue (Estes Park) 
• Consider rural transportation needs and the needs of unincorporated towns like LaPorte and Red 

Feathers (Larimer County) 
• A commitment from communities to fund the planning effort and have some skin in the game (Larimer 

County) 
• A willingness to listen and work together (Larimer County) 
• Recognize the unique mobility challenges for people with disabilities (Larimer County) 
• Discussion of regional rail (Larimer County) 
• Include transit, multimodal (Larimer County) 
• Representation in the governance of funds (Timnath) 
• Direct benefits to our community (Timnath) 
• Contribution to the planning effort shouldn’t be the same amount for all communities (Timnath) 
• Any coordinated effort to create regional transportation solutions should be transit focused (Fort Collins) 
• Any plan moving forward should be based on good data and a complete understanding of the needs (Fort 

Collins) 
• Regional transit should be coordinated through the NFRMPO instead of Larimer County (Fort Collins) 
• It could make sense to coordinate other regional needs, such as the regional trail network, within 

Larimer County (Fort Collins) 
• Comments were made that supported individual project regional collaboration with cost sharing based 

on project benefits (Fort Collins) 
• A seat at the table (Loveland) 
• A fair share; Fort Collins typically is the focus (Loveland) 
• Solutions that are technologically advanced, clean, reliable (Loveland) 

294

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 9 

• Inclusive; don’t leave people out due to language barriers or affordability (Loveland) 
• Focus on public/private partnerships (Loveland) 
• Address safety (Loveland) 
• All communities collect local impact fees to offset development impacts (Berthoud) 
• Polling of, and meetings with, businesses and community members to understand their priorities 

(Berthoud) 
• Sharing the burden; compromises between communities for the greater good of the region (Berthoud) 
• That our community is included and not forgotten about (Berthoud) 
• A transit solution/service for every community (Berthoud) 
• Recognition that an improvement in another community benefits our residents, given the dynamic travel 

patterns in Larimer County (Berthoud) 
• More willingness to provide carrots to encourage desired behaviors (Berthoud) 

 

Q9. What are the “deal breakers” that would prevent your community from coordinating on 
regional transportation solutions? 

• A new sales tax could be considered, but not an additional property tax (Wellington) 
• Affordability is a major issue, and a new tax would further contribute to the problem (Wellington) 
• SH 1/LCR 62e is a major priority for the Town; it would be a deal breaker if that project fell out of 

favor (Wellington) 
• Any new taxes (Johnstown) 
• Larger communities receive all the money/benefits (Johnstown) 
• Workforce housing is so critical; the timing is really the issue and right now regional transportation is 

just not the highest priority (Estes Park) 
• Don’t want the communities to feel like they’re being roped into these conversations; there must be a 

willingness and desire from the communities to advance this topic (Larimer County) 
• Community is sensitive to taxes (Timnath) 
• Opinions of the Council regarding new vehicular capacity ranged from “not supportive of any new 

capacity” to “any new capacity needs to come with an addition of strong emphasis on transit, regional 
trail connections, and other multimodal strategies” (Fort Collins) 

• Cost (Loveland) 
• Doubling up on management (e.g., overlap with NFRMPO responsibilities) (Loveland) 
• No improvements are included in our community (Berthoud) 
• Too much large entity oversight (Berthoud) 
• Significant tax increase (Berthoud) 
• Financial or priority imbalance (Berthoud) 

 

  

295

Item #16.



 

September 27, 2022 DRAFT   Page 10 

Summary and Recommendations 

Real estate prices and inflation have caused cost of living and availability of affordable housing to be a pressing 
topic for most of the communities in Larimer County. Although indirectly related to transportation, some 
communities (most notably Estes Park) feel their focus should be addressing this community issue.  

• Overall, addressing regional transportation needs is a moderate priority to the communities of Larimer 
County compared to other topics. Communities collectively view addressing regional transportation 
needs as equally important as addressing local transportation needs. 

• The communities expressed only moderate interest in coordinating on regional transportation. The 
Larimer County Board of County Commissioners (BCC) expressed the greatest interest; however, they 
noted that they only want to advance the discussions if the local communities are interested. 

• Collectively lobbying for State or Federal funds received the overall highest level of interest; however, 
this was notably the approach with the least interest (of the 12 presented) from the Larimer County 
BCC. 

• Given current economic conditions, there is an aversion to pursing new funding for regional 
transportation through new fees or taxes. 

• Less than half of the communities expressed willingness to contribute financially to a regional 
transportation planning effort. The communities are, however, more willing to commit staff resources 
and involvement from leadership and elected officials. 

• All communities indicated that the planning region should be expanded beyond Larimer County for the 
purpose of discussing regional transportation; however, the definition of the appropriate geographic 
extents varied. 

• Although elected officials were not directly asked about the type of transportation solutions they would 
be interested in, some disparities in thinking around regional transportation solutions became evident in 
the “must have” and “deal breaker” discussion. For example, the City of Fort Collins expressed that any 
coordinated effort to create regional transportation solutions should be transit focused; while some of 
the smaller communities noted the need to complete their roadway capacity infrastructure.  

• There was a strong sense of parochialism from the elected officials – they want to make sure their own 
community gets their “fair share.” There was a general lack of regional thinking that could lead to strong 
collaboration and consensus building. A notable exception was a comment from a Berthoud Trustee, 
who stated that a transportation improvement in another community in Larimer County would benefit 
Berthoud residents because of the interconnected nature of the region.  

 

296

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Larimer County Board of County Commissioners Polling Results 
May 9, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

297

Item #16.



298

Item #16.



299

Item #16.



300

Item #16.



301

Item #16.



302

Item #16.



303

Item #16.



304

Item #16.



305

Item #16.



306

Item #16.



307

Item #16.



308

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Timnath Town Council Polling Results 
May 10, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

309

Item #16.



310

Item #16.



311

Item #16.



312

Item #16.



313

Item #16.



314

Item #16.



315

Item #16.



316

Item #16.



317

Item #16.



318

Item #16.



319

Item #16.



320

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wellington Town Board Polling Results 
May 17, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

321

Item #16.



322

Item #16.



323

Item #16.



324

Item #16.



325

Item #16.



326

Item #16.



327

Item #16.



328

Item #16.



329

Item #16.



330

Item #16.



331

Item #16.



332

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Windsor Town Board Polling Results 
May 23, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

333

Item #16.



334

Item #16.



335

Item #16.



336

Item #16.



337

Item #16.



338

Item #16.



339

Item #16.



340

Item #16.



341

Item #16.



342

Item #16.



343

Item #16.



344

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Johnstown Town Council Polling Results 
June 27, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

345

Item #16.



346

Item #16.



347

Item #16.



348

Item #16.



349

Item #16.



350

Item #16.



351

Item #16.



352

Item #16.



353

Item #16.



354

Item #16.



355

Item #16.



356

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Estes Park Town Board Polling Results 
June 28, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

357

Item #16.



358

Item #16.



359

Item #16.



360

Item #16.



361

Item #16.



362

Item #16.



363

Item #16.



364

Item #16.



365

Item #16.



366

Item #16.



367

Item #16.



368

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Loveland City Council Polling Results 
August 9, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

369

Item #16.



370

Item #16.



371

Item #16.



372

Item #16.



373

Item #16.



374

Item #16.



375

Item #16.



376

Item #16.



377

Item #16.



378

Item #16.



379

Item #16.



380

Item #16.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Berthoud Town Board Polling Results 
August 23, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

381

Item #16.



382

Item #16.



383

Item #16.



384

Item #16.



385

Item #16.



386

Item #16.



387

Item #16.



388

Item #16.



389

Item #16.



390

Item #16.



391

Item #16.



392

Item #16.



Regional Transportation Solutions
Discussion with [NAME]

[DATE] 2022

393

Item #16.



Assess and inspire your 
community’s desire to collaborate 
and cooperate on regional 
transportation solutions

Meeting Purpose

A cohesive and collaborative strategy is needed to identify 
solutions for regional transportation needs

394

Item #16.



AGENDA

1. Defining Regional Transportation

2. Regional travel snapshot

3. Current Funding Environment

4. Interactive polling and discussion

395

Item #16.



Regional Transportation Solutions
Improving mobility for people, goods and services using any 
travel mode (driving, riding transit, bicycling, walking etc.) 
between communities and across our region.

396

Item #16.



REGIONAL Travel Snapshot

397

Item #16.



A mobile and interconnected region…
Employed residents who commute elsewhere for work

Source: U.S. Census Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

484 3,639

6,0973,235

12,48726,487

37,1401,317

398

Item #16.



A mobile and interconnected region…
Employees who arrive from elsewhere

Source: U.S. Census Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

1,008

5,4352,012

902 8,16228,296

48,1632,479

399

Item #16.



Countywide Travel Patterns

Percent of employed 
residents who commute 
elsewhere for work

Count Share

Larimer County 95,431 60.4%

Weld County 14,611 9.2%

Boulder County 10,641 6.7%

Denver County 8,232 5.2%

Adams County 5,483 3.5%

Arapahoe County 4,863 3.1%

Jefferson County 4,626 2.9%

El Paso County 2,781 1.8%

Douglas County 1,968 1.2%

Laramie County (WY) 1,088 0.7%

All Other Locations 8,368 5.3%

Total 158,092 100.0%
Source: U.S. Census Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

400

Item #16.



Countywide Travel Patterns

Percent of employees who 
arrive from elsewhere

Count Share

Larimer County 95,431 62.8%

Weld County 23,845 15.7%

Boulder County 4,845 3.2%

Jefferson County 3,937 2.6%

Adams County 3,714 2.4%

Arapahoe County 3,429 2.3%

Denver County 3,234 2.1%

El Paso County 2,813 1.8%

Douglas County 1,751 1.2%

Laramie County (WY) 1,059 0.7%

All Other Locations 8,021 5.3%

Total 152,066 100.0%

Source: U.S. Census Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019
401

Item #16.



Source: U.S. Census Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2019

402

Item #16.



403

Item #16.



Each community has a unique 
transportation story and 
priorities; all communities 
generate regional travel

404

Item #16.



Transportation Funding Environment
405

Item #16.



Senate Bill 21-260 (SB 260)

• $5 Billion in transportation funding for Colorado

• Partial distribution via Highway Users Tax Fund (HUTF)
• Approximately $50 million over 10 years

• Emphasis on Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions reduction

• Regionally Significant projects subject to GHG mitigation requirements

• Uncertainty about new gas and registration fees

406

Item #16.



Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA)

• $1.2 Trillion legislation

• 10-year federal infrastructure investment strategy

• New and continuing grant opportunities

• Emphasis on projects with regional impact

• Expected trend in awarding multimodal projects, transit, trails, complete 
streets and resiliency projects; focus on equity

407

Item #16.



Public Perception: 
Transportation is funded!

408

Item #16.



NOTABLE
Funding Gaps and 
Considerations

• Increasing construction costs

• Federal Infrastructure Bill is grant 
heavy; competitive, local match 
requirements 

• Non “Regionally Significant” projects 
(as defined in SB 260 and CDOT 
Rulemaking)

• Shift in focus to multimodal and transit 
projects reduces ability to fund 
capacity projects

• Uncertainty about how greenhouse gas 
rulemaking will be applied

409

Item #16.



Local Funding Attempt

• Technical Advisory Committee and Regional Task 
Force formed in 2018

• Compiled regional transportation infrastructure 
projects ($547M in needs)

• Evaluated and ranked infrastructure projects and 
developed strategy for project “short list”

• Identified eligibility criteria for transit

• Unsuccessful Half Penny sales tax ballot question 
in 2019

Short List of Projects
410

Item #16.



KEY  TAKEAWAYS

• Identifying the right mix of projects that works for all 
communities and resonates with the public is challenging

• Message was not getting back to City Councils, community 
leaders

• Municipalities should have “skin in the game” – Council 
involvement and monetary contribution to planning effort

• Bundling transportation with facilities was a mistake

411

Item #16.



Interactive Polling
Go to www.menti.com

412

Item #16.

http://www.menti.com/


413

Item #16.



414

Item #16.



415

Item #16.



416

Item #16.



417

Item #16.



418

Item #16.



419

Item #16.



420

Item #16.



421

Item #16.



422

Item #16.



423

Item #16.



What are the “must haves” for 
your community to coordinate on 
regional transportation solutions?

424

Item #16.



What are the “deal breakers” that 
would prevent your community 
from coordinating on regional 
transportation solutions?

425

Item #16.



Thank you!

426

Item #16.


	Top
	Item #2.	August 29, 2022 Town Council Special Meeting Minutes
	8-29-2022 SM draft

	Item #3.	September 7, 2022 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes
	9-7-22 min

	Item #4.	WSSA Evergreen Flex
	TAC WSSA Triple Covid Confidence - Evergreen Flex 10 03 22
	WSSA Evergreen Flex Triple Covid Confidence 10 03 22

	Item #5.	WSSA  LRC Commercial
	TAC WSSA Ledge Rock Center Commercial 10 03 22
	WSSA Exec Ledge Rock Center Commercial Phase I Indoor 10 03 22

	Item #6.	WSSA Lockard Gateway Storage
	TAC WSSA Lockard Gateway Storage 10 03 22
	WSSA Atlas Lockard Gateway Storage 10 03 22

	Item #7.	August 2022 Financial Statements and Sales Tax Report
	August 2022 FS with Sales Tax Report

	Item #8.	Resolution 2022-39 Acknowledging Receipt of the Fiscal Year 2023 Preliminary Budget
	TAC - 2023 Budget Acknowledgement (2)
	Resolution 2023 Budget Acknowledgement (1)
	2023 Budget - Draft 10

	Item #9.	September 2022 List of Bills
	September 2022 List of Bills

	Item #10.	Manager Report
	Town Report 10-03-2022

	Item #11.	Amend Water Treatment Plant Design Agreement with Burns & McDonell
	TAC 10.3.22 - WTP Design Amendment
	Amendment 01 - Residuals & Southern Property
	Amendment 02 - Preconstruction Services_r1
	Amendment 03 - Membrane GAC_r2

	Item #12.	Resolution Terminating A Local Disaster Emergency
	TAC - Local Disaster Emergency Termination
	Res Emergency Declaration 09292022

	Item #13.	Resolution 2022-43
	TAC Transfer & Sale - Tract A Lots 2-5
	Res 2022-43Ledge Rock Property Conveyance 10 03 22 (1)
	21022_SXR_Legal_West Ledge Rock Center Subdivision Filing No 1

	Item #14.	Res Amending 2534 Design Guidelines
	TAC 2534 Land Use Amendment 10-3-2022 (1)
	Res 2022-40 Amend 2534 Design Guidelines 10 03 22.doc
	Vicinity Map
	Proposed Amended 2534 Land Use Plan
	PZC Staff Report 9-14-22

	Item #15.	Res Johnstown Farms Filing 2 Sub
	TAC JF Filing II

	Item #16.	Informational items
	YTD Bldg Report stats - 2022 July
	LIBRARYJULY2022
	Library July 2022
	Library August 2022
	GAJLaugust2022
	Johnstown_Johnstown_PVSolar_SEPMod#3_09.2022 - ES NM
	Elected Officials Roadshow Summary_092722
	Attachment 2 Polling Results (2)
	Attachment 1 Regional Transportation FINAL TEMPLATE (1)

	Bottom

